Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held
David Hicks 1 - Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40
1BN on WEDNESDAY 14 AUGUST 2019 AT 7.00 PM

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive
Published on 6 August 2019

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities
Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services

The Underpinning Principles
Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel
efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

MEMBERSHIP OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Councillors
Simon Weeks (Chairman)
Gary Cowan
Abdul Loyes
Angus Ross

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Chris Bowring (ViceChairman)
Carl Doran
Andrew Mickleburgh
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey

Stephen Conway
Pauline Jorgensen
Malcolm Richards

SUBJECT

24.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

25.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on
10 July 2019.

26.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declaration of interest

27.

APPLICATIONS TO BE DEFERRED AND
WITHDRAWN ITEMS
To consider any recommendations to defer
applications from the schedule and to note any
applications that may have been withdrawn.

PAGE
NO.

5 - 14

28.

Norreys

APPLICATION 191010 - LAND AT AND ADJACENT
TO ASHRIDGE FARM, NORREYS
Recommendation: Conditional approval.

15 - 44

29.

Norreys

APPLICATION 191640 FOUNDRY COLLEGE,
BUDGES GREEN, WOKINGHAM RG40 1PX
Recommendation: Conditional approval

45 - 72

30.

Emmbrook

APPLICATION 191024 LAND AT
MATTHEWSGREEN FARM, WOKINGHAM
Recommendation: Conditional approval subject to
completion of a Deed of Variation.

73 - 108

31.

Shinfield South

APPLICATION 191651 SILVER MEADOW PRIMARY
SCHOOL, ALDER GROVE, SHINFIELD RG2 9RA
Recommendation: Conditional Approval

109 - 120

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following abbreviations were used in the above Index and in reports.
C/A
CIL
R
LB
S106
F
MU
RM
VAR
PS
Category

Conditional Approval (grant planning permission)
Community Infrastructure Levy
Refuse (planning permission)
(application for) Listed Building Consent
Section 106 legal agreement between Council and applicant in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(application for) Full Planning Permission
Members’ Update circulated at the meeting
Reserved Matters not approved when Outline Permission previously granted
Variation of a condition/conditions attached to a previous approval
Performance Statistic Code for the Planning Application

Callum Wernham
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
0118 974 6059
democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 25.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON 10 JULY 2019 FROM 7.00 PM TO 10.22 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Simon Weeks (Chairman), Chris Bowring (Vice-Chairman), Stephen Conway,
Gary Cowan, Carl Doran, Pauline Jorgensen, Abdul Loyes, Andrew Mickleburgh,
Malcolm Richards, Angus Ross and Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey
Councillors Present and Speaking
Councillors: Laura Blumenthal and Shirley Boyt
Officers Present
Marcia Head, Development Management Team Leader
Judy Kelly, Highways Development Manager
Rachel Lucas, Legal Specialist
Callum Wernham, Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
Case Officers Present
Jeanette Davey
Adriana Gonzalez
Natalie Jarman
Senjuti Manna
15.
APOLOGIES
An apology for arriving late was received by Malcolm Richards, whom arrived at 8:10pm.
16.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 June 2019 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
MEMBERS' UPDATE
There are a number of references to the Members’ Update within these minutes. The
Members’ Update was circulated to all present prior to the meeting. A copy is attached.
17.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
18.
APPLICATIONS TO BE DEFERRED AND WITHDRAWN ITEMS
No applications were recommended for deferral, or withdrawn.
19.
APPLICATION NO. 191011 - 30 PITTS LANE, EARLEY, RG6 1BT
Proposal: Full planning application for the proposed erection of 1 no. 4 Bedroom
detached house and 2 no. 3 Bedroom semi-detached houses with associated parking,
access and landscaping.
Applicant: Hicks Development Ltd.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in agenda
pages 17 to 44.
The Committee were advised that the Members Update included:

5




Clarification to paragraph 8;
Inclusion of Table 1 to paragraph 24.

Rosemary Cook, Earley Town Council, spoke in objection to the application. Rosemary
stated that Earley Town Council had concerns over the height of the proposed dwellings
and the impact on the SULV which the development would take place within. Rosemary
added that there were also concerns over the maintenance of the buffer on the eastern
size of the development.
Jenny Lissaman, on behalf of the Residents’ Association, spoke in objection to the
application. Jenny stated that TB22 set out the Site of Urban Landscape Value (SULV) for
the Bulmershe area, and added that the proposed development site was situated within it.
Jenny commented that there had been a long history of planning applications within the
area and its surrounding parts. Jenny stated that Woodley Town Council had made no
comments on this application, however Jenny added that this was the case as Woodley
Town Council had not been consulted regarding this application. Jenny was of the opinion
that the new development would be out of keeping with the character of the area and
added that many trees within the garden had been cut down, in addition to a TPOd tree
which had been severely ‘pruned’. Jenny felt that the proposed dwellings would overlook
the existing properties in the area, would be a case of overdevelopment and would look
out of place in the context of the surrounding area. Jenny felt that there was a risk that the
access road for this development could be used as a free local car park. Jenny asked that
new planting and soft landscaping take place in the separate 10 dwelling development that
had been allowed at appeal, as per the S106 agreement. Jenny asked that the Committee
carefully consider the impact of this application on the character of the area and the SULV,
and subsequently refuse it.
Steve Hicks, Applicant, spoke in favour of the application. Steve stated that a planning
application for further development at Addington School had recently been approved whilst
also being located within the SULV. Steve stated that the landscape buffer reduced the
proposed development’s impact on the SULV and suggested that this buffer would be
commuted to Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) for maintenance. Steve stated that no
TPOd trees would be removed as part of this application, and added that the proposed
dwellings were no higher than those of properties found on Pitts Lane. Steve stated that
landscaping would be provided and a commuted sum for affordable housing contributions
formed part of this application. Steve commented that each of the proposed dwellings
would now comply with all amenity standards and would be situated within an area of high
housing demand and would provide a social house in addition to an off-site commuted
sum.
Shirley Boyt, Ward Member, spoke in objection to the application. Shirley stated that the
site fell within the SULV and development within said SULV was contrary to the local plan.
Shirley stated that she was concerned with the proximity of plot 3 to a TPOd tree and
added that another TPOd tree had already been ‘decimated’. Shirley stated that the SULV
was a valuable community asset which could not continue to be encroached upon.
The Committee were reminded that issues regarding lack of internal amenity space and
lack of affordable housing had now been addressed, and the Committee should therefore
consider the impact of the proposed development on the SULV and impact on TPOd trees.

6

Carl Doran commented that contrary to the report, the proposed development was in fact
in the SULV, in addition to being visible from Bulmershe Park. Carl added that more
needed to be done in future to protect the SULV from development. Carl queried how
TPOd trees would be protected, referring to how one such tree had been severely
‘pruned’. Carl queried whether a landscape and visual impact assessment had been
undertaken, and commented that the proposed dwellings would be of significantly larger
scale than the bungalow opposite.
Senjuti Manna, Case Officer, clarified that the previously refused application included two
TPOd trees that were within the garden boundary, this had been rectified within the current
application and the majority of the root protection area now sat outside of the residential
curtilage, in addition, any work carried out to TPOd trees was reviewed and approved by
Council Officers. Senjuti stated that a buffer of 37m to the SULV was present within this
application, in comparison to a buffer of 20m that was allowed at appeal for a nearby
application. Senjuti clarified that that the height of each dwelling had been reduced by
approximately 1.35m compared to the previously refused application, which made each
dwelling of a lesser scale than those allowed by an inspector at the nearby Hitch Hill Close
development. Senjuti stated that although no official landscape and visual impact
assessment had been undertaken, a landscape Officer had reviewed the proposals and
had no objections to the application, subject to conditions.
Pauline Jorgensen raised further concerns regarding the impact on the SULV should this
application be approved. Pauline queried what would be done regarding the existing
fencing at the proposed development site. Senjuti Manna clarified that the existing fencing
would be removed and further planting would take place. Senjuti added that this would
open up the SULV to the public, considering it was currently private, and would help to
deter anti-social behaviour as the proposed dwellings would be able to overlook this area.
Andrew Mickleburgh commented that the proposals should be considered within the
context of the existing area, taking in to account the changed environment of the allowed
10 dwellings. Andrew added that the proposed double storey dwellings would be out of
character with the single storey bungalow opposite.
Stephen Conway was of the opinion that the proposed benefit of the removal of the fence
and the opening of the SULV to the public compared to the erection of 3 dwellings, was a
matter of judgement and subjective.
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey commented that in the light of the allowed 10 dwellings for a
nearby development, it would be difficult to refuse this application and the chance of a
successful appeal by the applicant should the application be refused was high, thereby
costing the Council money.
Angus Ross commented that the Committee needed to resolve how prejudicial this
development would be to the SULV, taking in to account the previously allowed 10
dwelling development nearby. Simon Weeks added that the Committee needed to decide
whether the development would be significantly detrimental to the SULV and surrounding
area in the context of the existing character of the area, looking only at the application
proposals in front of them.
Pauline Jorgensen queried what precedent would be set should the application be
approved, and asked what the status of the buffer land would be. Simon Weeks clarified

7

that the buffer land would be transferred to the Council should the application be
approved.
RESOLVED That application 191011 be approved, subject to conditions and informatives
as set out in agenda pages 18 to 24, and clarifications added within the Members’ Update.
20.
APPLICATION 190990 - 128 CHURCH ROAD, EARLEY
Proposal: Full application for the proposed erection of 6 No residential apartments with
associated parking and access following demolition of existing.
Applicant: Mr Bal Hans.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in agenda
pages 45 to 74.
The Committee were advised that the Members Update included:








Clarification regarding Technical Housing Standards;
Clarification that Woodley Town Council did not discuss the application;
An additional neighbour comment;
Updated response from Earley Town Council that the application should be refused;
Correction to Councillor Shirley Boyt’s name;
Update to table on agenda page 56;
Clarification that images on agenda pages 57 and 69 were duplicates.

Rosemary Cook, Earley Town Council, spoke in objection to the application. Rosemary
stated that Earley Town Council had concerns regarding the visual impact of the
development on the Site of Urban Landscape Value (SULV). Rosemary added that the
SULV was being eroded ‘bit by bit’ and needed protection and commented that Church
Road was already very busy with traffic and Earley Town Council had concerns that this
development would only add to this problem.
Tim Marsh, Residents’ Association, spoke in objection to the application. Tim stated that
the proposed development site was situated on an exposed corner of the SULV and was
therefore sensitive in terms of visual impact on the SULV. Tim added that it was
Wokingham Borough Council’s (WBC’s) policy to protect the status of the SULV. Tim
stated that the existing bungalow was in keeping with the character of the area and was
not intrusive. Tim felt that the proposed two storey building would not be effectively
screened by the tree to the front of the property, as the tree was deciduous and would not
screen the property in the winter months. Tim stated that towards the rear of the
development unit 5 was located in an exposed position which would be a prominent
feature which would dominate the remaining open area of the SULV. Tim raised concerns
over the parking allocation at the proposed development, and felt that the application
should be refused as it was not appropriate to the area in which it would be located and
was overbearing on the SULV.
Paul Butt, Agent, spoke in support of the application. Paul stated that the current scheme
had been significantly reduced in scale compared to a previously refused application, with
the bulk of the property being reduced. Paul commented that the inspector had no
objection to the principle of development, and additional space would be provided at the
front of the property for car parking. Paul stated that three outbuildings currently located
within the SULV would be demolished as part of the application proposals, and tree

8

planting would take place to provide a softer edge to the SULV. Paul stated that there
would be an improved relationship with number 13 Church Road who had posed no
objections. Paul concluded by stating that the application would retain the large garden,
protect two TPOd trees, provide soft landscaping benefits and provide an affordable
housing contribution.
Shirley Boyt, Ward Member, spoke in objection to the application. Shirley stated that the
proposed development would have a negative visual impact on the SULV, as it would be a
large property which would be visible from the boundary fence. Shirley stated that it was
unclear whether the existing shrubbery would remain to screen the development, and
added that there were mature trees towards the bottom of the garden within the SULV.
Shirley raised concerns regarding the parking provision at the proposed development, and
asked for clarification regarding the affordable housing contribution.
Natalie Jarman, Case Officer, clarified that an off-site commuted sum would be contributed
toward affordable housing as part of this application.
Carl Doran queried why a landscape visual impact assessment had not been completed
for this application, and commented that the proposal was situated within a very prominent
area of the SULV.
A number of Members raised concerns regarding the size of the property when compared
to the existing bungalow. Natalie Jarman clarified that at appeal for the previously refused
application the Inspector raised no objections to the principle of redevelopment. Natalie
added that the property has a smaller width than the adjacent properties.
A number of Members reiterated concerns regarding the impact of the proposed
development on a prominent part of the SULV. Natalie Jarman stated that a Landscape
Officer had raised no objections to the application subject to conditions, and reiterated that
the Inspector previously raised no objections to the principle of such a redevelopment at
the site.
RESOLVED That application 190990 be approved subject to conditions and informatives
as set out in agenda pages 46 to 52, and various clarifications and corrections as set out
in the Members’ Update.
21.
APPLICATION NO. 191126 - 24 CAMPBELL ROAD, WOODLEY, RG5 3NA
Proposal: Householder application for the proposed first floor side extension, conversion
of existing garage to create habitable accommodation, two storey rear extension following
the demolition of existing single storey rear, plus changes to fenestration and internal
alterations.
Applicant: Mr M Joshi.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in agenda
pages 75 to 100.
The Committee were advised that there were no Members’ updates.
Laura Blumenthal, Ward Member, spoke in objection to the application. Laura stated that
there were several issues with the application. Laura queried why a manhole would be
concreted over as part of the application. Laura stated that the proposed development was

9

opposite a primary school which was consequently situated on an extremely busy road
with cars using on street parking. Laura raised concerns over the tandem parking at the
proposed development, stating that it could encourage the residents of the proposed
development to park on the already congested road. Laura was of the opinion that should
the application be approved, then construction on the main extension should not occur
prior to the completion of the driveway as otherwise construction vehicles may be forced to
park on-street. Laura asked that in its current state, the application be refused.
Simon Weeks reminded the Committee that they could only consider whether the previous
reasons for refusal, parking spaces and setback distance, had been addressed.
Pauline Jorgensen queried whether the proposed development could be split up into three
separate apartments in the future. Marcia Head, Development Management Team Leader,
stated that a change of use to three apartments would require further planning permission.
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey queried what parking restrictions were present outside of the
proposed development site. Judy Kelly, Highways Development Manager, stated that
there was an advisory no parking during school hours restriction in place.
Gary Cowan queried why the proposal was recommended for approval considering there
was not a separation distance of at least 1m at the site boundary. Adriana Gonzalez stated
that although this element of the application was not compliant with the borough design
guide, number 22 Campbell road had a single storey rear extension built to its site
boundary. Simon Weeks added that the issue of boundary separation distance was not a
previous reason for refusal and was therefore considered acceptable in the context of the
application.
A number of Members queried the covering up of a manhole on the development site.
Simon Weeks clarified that this was not a matter for the Planning Committee to resolve as
it was a building control regulation and was therefore outside of the remit of the Planning
Committee.
Malcolm Richards queried what extra permission the applicant would need to obtain in
order to extend the dropped kerb outside of the proposed development site. Judy Kelly
stated that the applicant would need to apply for a S184 licence. Judy added that several
other properties in the area had successfully applied for such permission previously.
Simon Weeks proposed that a further condition be added, in order to apply standard hours
of construction to this application (8am-6pm Monday to Friday, 8am-1pm Saturday, no
construction to take place on Sunday or Bank Holidays) due to the site’s proximity to
neighbouring properties. The proposal was moved, seconded and passed, and
subsequently added to the list of conditions.
RESOLVED That application 191126 be approved, subject to conditions and informatives
as set out in agenda pages 76 to 78, and additional standard hours of construction
condition as detailed above.
22.

APPLICATION 191243 - THAMES VALLEY PARK, BUILDING 1, THAMES
VALLEY PARK DRIVE, EARLEY
Proposal: Full planning application for the proposed alterations to the site wide
landscaping including amendments to the car parking provision, erection of cycle parking
store, provision of electric charging points plus bin store and other associated works.

10

Applicant: Speer Street Capital.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in agenda
pages 101 to 118.
The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included:












Summary update to agenda page 101;
Updated condition 2, 3 and 9;
Updated informative 4;
Clarification of proposed parking spaces to 316;
Additional consultation responses;
Revised proposals following comments from Trees and Landscape Officers;
Replacement of paragraph 9;
Replacement of paragraph 13;
Replacement of paragraph 14;
Removal of paragraph 18;
Amendment of paragraphs 21 to 30.

Kenya Sharland, Agent, spoke in support of the application. Kenya stated that the scheme
before the Committee was uncontentious and was proposed to renovate and modernise a
long term vacant building. Kenya stated that the site had recently been purchased by a
new owner whom was committed to undertaking a scheme of refurbishment works to the
existing building for prospective new tenants. Kenya stated that prospective new tenants
now came to expect features such as additional disabled parking spaces, electric car
charging bays and bicycle storage as standard.
RESOLVED That application 191243 be approved, subject to conditions and informatives
as set out in agenda pages 102 to 106, updated conditions 2, 3 and 9, and updated
informative 4 and various other amendments, clarifications and replacements as set out
within the Members’ Update.
23.
APPLICATION NO. 191090 - 30 HILLTOP ROAD, EARLEY, RG6 1DA
Proposal: Full planning application for the use of existing side extension as an
independent dwelling (retrospective).
Applicant: Mr A Hussain.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in agenda
pages 119 to 132.
The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included clarification that pages
129 to 132 were duplicate plans for a different application.
Rosemary Cook, Earley Town Council, spoke in objection to the application. Rosemary
stated that the property was originally a small bungalow which had been developed in to a
very large house. Rosemary added that the original annex was intended to be a granny
annex however neighbours had stated that it was never used as such and was used as a
second dwelling and rented out to tenants. Rosemary stated that there were frontage
concerns and Earley Town Council would like to see soft vegetation at the front of the

11

property. Rosemary was of the opinion that this was a concerning application due to the
order in which it had come about.
Tim Marsh, Residents’ Association, spoke in objection to the application. Tim stated that
there was no greenery towards the front of the property, and the brick did not match
between the original property and the subsequent annex. Tim felt that the property was out
of keeping with the character of the area. Tim was of the opinion that there had been
planning breaches related to this property which had subsequently encouraged the owner
to apply for retrospective planning permission to turn the property into two separate
dwellings. Tim stated that there was a need for soft vegetation and planting outside of the
annex.
Brenda Cutler, Resident, spoke in objection to the application. Brenda stated that the
annex was a three bedroom property which was being rented out to tenants, and added
that there was a further extension towards the other side of the property. Brenda outlined
that there was no vegetation or greenery towards the front of the property and the property
was out of keeping with the street scene.
Adlan Hussain, Applicant, spoke in favour of the application. Adlan stated that he had
purchased the property in a dilapidated state for himself, his wife and family and parents.
Adlan added that both parents were now ill and were in need of specialist care which he
could no longer provide in a home environment. Adlan stated that his wife’s cousin had
lived in the annex for a period of time, and had subsequently left. Adlan outlined that this
application intended to make no changes to the external portion of the property and there
was sufficient parking for both the annex and the original dwelling to function as separate
dwellings. Adlan stated that he had tried to procure the same bricks as used on the
original dwelling, however that particular brand were no longer in production and he
subsequently found as similar a colour as possible. Adlan felt that the application was in
keeping with national planning policies and parking standards.
Shirley Boyt, Ward Member, spoke in objection to the application. Shirley stated that the
original plans were for a 1 bedroom annex, however it was used as a 3 bedroom semidetached house. Shirley stated that the original planning permission explicitly stated that
the annex was not to be used as an independent dwelling, and felt that the applicant had
made no attempt to procure similar coloured bricks or to retain soft vegetation or planting.
Shirley was of the opinion that this application showed a cynical disregard for planning
policy.
Simon Weeks reminded the Committee that it was not an offence to submit a retrospective
planning application and the application needed to be considered thoroughly by the
Committee.
A number of Members queried why ongoing enforcement issues had not been included
within the report. Jeanette Davey, Case Officer, stated that these issues were likely
confidential and routinely only official enforcement notices were reported.
Carl Doran queried whether the property was originally built as a single dwelling and
sought clarification regarding the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Jeanette Davey
stated that the property was built as an annex with a link between the two properties, this
being a glass door. Jeanette added that should the application be approved, there would
be no impact on the surrounding area compared to what was originally approved and built.
Jeanette stated that, following a second site visit expressly for the purposes of checking

12

the potential for a CIL charge, that the need for a payment now seemed less likely but this
was to be confirmed by the relevant officers of the Council.
Stephen Conway queried why Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) were now prepared to
allow the property to operate as two independent dwellings when the S106 agreement
previously strictly prohibited this function. Marcia Head, Development Management team
Leader, stated that the S106 agreement was used to ensure that WBC retained control in
this situation. Marcia added that in any given year, approximately six applications to vary a
S106 agreement were received.
Andrew Mickleburgh commented that to many people passing by the property, they would
assume that it was a single dwelling. Andrew asked whether soft landscaping and planting
could be undertaken between the two dwellings. Marcia Head stated that an informative
requesting soft landscaping could be included, however this would not be enforceable.
Chris Bowring queried whether approving this application would nullify any potential
retrospective enforcement action. Jeanette Davey stated that this would not be the case,
and the application before the Committee was only to change the dwelling into two
separate dwellings going forwards.
Simon Weeks commented that under the current conditions, the annex could be used by
four young family members for example, each with a car, which could have the same
impact as what this application was seeking permission for.
Pauline Jorgensen asked how the tarmacked parking outside the front of the dwelling was
originally approved. Jeanette Davey stated that these details, including landscaping, were
absent from the originally approved application.
A number of Members commented that the property was out of keeping with the character
of the surrounding area.
A number of Members were of the opinion that this application would set a precedent to
apply for planning permission for an annex, and subsequently apply for permission to have
two separate dwellings. Carl Doran moved an alternative motion to refuse the application,
on the grounds that the application was contrary to TB06, TB21 and the original S106
agreement, and would damage the character of the area by means of creating two
separate dwellings. This was seconded by Gary Cowan and upon being put to a vote the
motion failed.
RESOLVED That application 191090 be approved, subject to conditions and informatives
as set out in agenda pages 119 to 120, with additional amendments altering the wording of
the CIL informative (No 2) from ‘The development hereby permitted is liable to pay…’ to
‘The development hereby permitted may be liable to pay…’.

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 28.
Application
Number
191010
Applicant
Site Address
Proposal

Expiry Date

Parish

Ward

20/08/2019
Wokingham
Norreys
Wokingham Borough Council C/O WSP
Land at and adjacent to Ashridge Farm
Full application for a section of the Northern Distributor Road
through Ashridge Farm, linking Bell Foundry Lane to the west with
Kentwood Farm to the east, incorporating a new priority junction on
Bell Foundry Lane and associated works including a shared
footway/cycleway.
Type
Full
PS Category
1
Officer
Sophie Morris
Reason
for Major application
determination
by committee
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 14th August 2019
Assistant Director – Place Based Services

SUMMARY
The proposal is known as the Ashridge Farm section of the Northern Distributor Road
(NDR) and has been submitted by Wokingham Borough Council for consideration by the
Local Planning Authority. The road is identified with the adopted Core Strategy and
Supplementary Planning Documents.
The Ashridge Farm section of the NDR forms part of an essential piece of infrastructure
that is required to mitigate the impact of the effect of additional traffic associated with
planned housing growth in North Wokingham. The requirement for a distributor road is
identified in the Wokingham Borough Council Core Strategy, Strategic Development
Location SPDs, Infrastructure Contributions SPD and subsequent planning permissions.
The NDR is an essential part of strategic infrastructure and will comprise a new road
around north Wokingham from Coppid Beech / London Road in the east to Reading Road
in the west, linking with the Winnersh Relief Road. Sections have been completed through
existing developments at Matthewsgreen and Mulberry Gove (Kentwood Farm East) and
along Bell Foundry Lane while the other sections are under construction, through Keep
Hatch site and Kentwood Farm West. Planning permission was recently approved for the
westernmost section which will tie in the existing Matthewsgreen section with Reading
Road to the west.
The section being considered under this application is one of the central sections of the
overall route, and is the final section to obtain planning permission. The entire route is
due to be open in 2021 and is a key strategic piece of infrastructure which will assist the
Council’s strategy for managing the highway network up to 2026 and beyond and in
improving the environment of existing residents within North Wokingham, in particular
along Warren House Road for this section.
The North Wokingham Highways study undertaken in 2012 identified a distributor road
as being the most appropriate highway scheme to ensure the impacts arising from
additional traffic associated with new planned development in North Wokingham would

15

be suitably mitigated. A public consultation process commenced in 2013, where three
alternatives to the route west of Twyford Road were presented. A further Refinement
Study was subsequently undertaken to examine options within the preferred route
alignment. The outcome of the refinement study recommended a single route for the
distributor road termed the ‘deliverable route option’. This was presented to and approved
by WBC’s Executive in September 2015 and forms the basis for the current application.
The application is submitted in full and includes details of the access, appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale. This report is based on an assessment of the application
against relevant policies in the Wokingham Borough Council Core Strategy, Managing
Development Delivery DPD, other relevant policy and EIA regulations.

PLANNING STATUS
 Within North Wokingham Strategic Development Area
 Bat Roost Habitat Suitability
 Water Utility Consultation Zones
 Contaminated Land Consultation Area
 Ordinary Watercourses Consultation Area
 7KM Thames Basin Heath SPA
 Tree Preservation Orders
 Flood Risk Zones 1,2, and 3
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions and informatives:
Conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
Approved details
2. This permission is in respect of the submitted application plans and drawings
numbered in the table below. The development hereby permitted shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the local planning authority.
General Arrangement Plan 70039495-ASHF-0100-001 Rev 2
Revised Landscape Plan 70039495-ASHF-3000-003
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby
approved.

16

Detailed highway design
3. Prior to the commencement of the construction of the road, full details of the
construction of roads and footways, including levels, widths, construction
materials, depths of construction, surface water drainage, road signage and
lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.
The lighting details submitted shall include a “lighting design strategy for
biodiversity” for light sensitive species and shall:
a) Identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for bats and
that are likely to cause disturbance in or around their resting places or along
important routes used to access key area of their territory, for example for foraging;
and
b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using
their territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting places.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
maintained thereafter. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting
be installed without prior consent from the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that roads and footpaths are constructed to a standard that
would be suitable for adoption as publicly maintainable highway, in the interests of
providing a functional, accessible, safe and high-quality development and to
maintain favourable conservation status of the site for protected species and
species of principal importance. Relevant policies: Core Strategy policies CP3,
CP6 & CP7.
Visibility splays
4. Prior to the commencement of the construction of the road, details of the proposed
accesses and junctions to include visibility splays for all users shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The accesses shall be
formed as so-approved and the visibility splays shall be cleared of any obstruction
exceeding 0.6 metres in height prior to the completion of the development. The
access shall be retained in accordance with the approved details and used for no
other purpose and the land within the visibility splays shall be maintained clear of
any visual obstruction exceeding 0.6 metres in height at all times.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience. Relevant Policy: Core
Strategy policy CP6.
Construction Environmental Management Plan
5. Construction work of the development hereby permitted shall not begin until a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) which will detail the
measures to be implemented to protect site workers, site users, ecology and the
environment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall be implemented thereafter in accordance with
the approved CEMP. The CEMP shall include the following matters:

17

i)

ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)

viii)

ix)
x)

xi)
xii)
xiii)
xiv)
xv)
xvi)
xvii)

xviii)
xix)
xx)
xxi)

a construction travel protocol or Green Travel plan for the construction
phase including details of parking and turning for vehicles of site personnel,
operatives and visitors;
Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
Piling techniques;
Storage of plant and materials;
Programme of works (including measures for traffic management and
operating hours);
Provision of boundary hoarding and lighting;
Protection of important trees, hedgerows and other natural features,
including a scheme for the provision and management of an 8 metre wide
(minimum) buffer zone from the top of the bank of the Ashridge Stream;
Relevant ecological mitigation measures for badger, reptiles, breeding
birds, and invertebrates, along with integration of any licence requirements
for bats and amphibians.
Control of rats and other vermin particularly during site clearance
Details of proposed means of dust suppression, fume mitigation and noise
mitigation. The CEMP shall include a noise management plan that sets out
how construction noise will be minimised to protect residential amenity
(including methodology for piling and compaction and use of pumps and
generators overnight). Particular attention should be given to protecting
dwellings that are likely to be exposed to high levels of construction noise
as identified in the application noise and vibration assessment.
Details of measures to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the site during
construction;
Details of any site construction office, compound and ancillary facility
buildings. These facilities shall be sited away from woodland areas;
Lighting on site during construction;
Measures to ensure no on site fires during construction;
Monitoring and review of the CEMP;
Implementation of the CEMP through an environmental management
system;
Details of the control of surface water run-off, including protection of the
Ashridge Stream, surface water bodies and groundwater from
contamination during the construction phase;
measures to prevent new contamination from various construction activities
such as re-fuelling and operation of welfare facilities
Details of the excavation of materials and the subsurface construction
methodology;
Details of the haul routes to be used to access the development; and
Appointment of a Construction Liaison Officer.

Reason: To protect occupants of nearby dwellings from noise and disturbance
during the construction period, in the interest of highway safety and convenience
and to minimise the environmental impact of the construction phase in accordance
with Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policies CP1, CP3, CP6 and CP7 and
TB23 of the Managing Development Delivery Local Plan Policy.

18

Levels
6. No development shall take place until a measured survey of the site and a plan
prepared to scale of not less than 1:500 showing details of existing and proposed
finished ground levels (in relation to a fixed datum point) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory form of development relative to
surrounding buildings and landscape. Relevant policy: NPPF and Core Strategy
policies CP1 and CP3.
Accommodation of Construction Vehicles and Deliveries
7. No development shall commence until provision has been made to accommodate
all site operatives, visitors and construction vehicles loading, off-loading, parking
and turning within the site during the construction period, in accordance with details
to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The
provision shall be maintained as so-approved and used for no other purposes until
completion of the development, or otherwise as provided for in the approved
details.
Reason: To prevent queuing and parking off site, in the interests of highway safety
and convenience. Relevant policy: Core Strategy Policies CP1, CP3 and CP6.
Hours of operation
8. No work relating to the development hereby approved, including works of ground
clearance or preparation prior to commencement of construction operations shall
take place other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 hours Monday to
Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank
or National Holidays.
Reason: To protect the occupiers of neighbouring properties from noise and
disturbance outside the permitted hours during the construction period. Relevant
policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3 and Managing Development Delivery
Local Plan policy CC06.
Noise control
9. Prior to the operational use of the road hereby permitted, mitigation details which
demonstrate how attenuation against externally generated noise would be
provided to the properties at 1 & 2 Bell Foundry Lane shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures to be identified
in the scheme shall ensure that ambient internal noise levels for the dwellings meet
the BS8233/2014 design range ‘good’ for living accommodation and these
mitigation measures shall be implemented wherever possible prior to the opening
of the road.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the existing residents and to ensure those
dwellings shown to be at risk are protected from noise nuisance and disturbance.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and Managing Development Delivery
Local Plan policies, CC03, TB21 & TB24.

19

Flooding and Drainage
10. No development shall take place until full details of the drainage system for the
site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA in consultation
with Highways England. The details shall include:
i) Results of intrusive ground investigation demonstrating seasonal high
groundwater levels for the site and infiltration rates in accordance with BRE365;
ii) Demonstration that the base of SuDS features are at least 1m above seasonal
groundwater level;
iv) A drainage strategy plan for the proposed development, including swale,
basin and outfall details with invert levels and cross sections;
v) A maintenance management plan for the SuDS features throughout the
lifetime of the development, as well as who will be responsible for the
maintenance;
vi) Demonstration that water quality enhancements measures will be included
in the scheme to prevent water pollution downstream.
Reason: To prevent increased flood risk from surface water run-off. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 10 (Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and
Coastal Change), Core Strategy policy CP1 and Managing Development Delivery
Local Plan policies CC09 and CC10.
11. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 190327-JH-ASHF-FLOOD
RISK ASSESSMENT, Dated March 2019 and the following mitigation measures it
details:


The culvert under the road will be a minimum of 3mx1.8m in area which is designed
to keep flows within the bank of the stream.
The minimum soffit level of the culvert is to be set to 49.5m AOD which includes a
600mm freeboard. (The 1%AEP plus 70% climate change water level is 48.91m
AOD)
These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements or
within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local
planning authority. The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained
thereafter throughout the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of flood flows
and reduction of flood storage capacity. Relevant policy: NPPF Section 10
(Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal Change), Core
Strategy policy CP1 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies
CC09 and CC10.

Landscaping
12. Prior to the commencement of the development, full details of both hard and soft
landscape proposals shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. These details shall include, as appropriate, proposed site levels
or contours, means of enclosure (including fencing suitable to provide mitigation
for otters), other vehicle and pedestrian access, hard surfacing materials and minor
artefacts and structure (e.g. furniture, signs, lighting, external services, etc). Soft

20

landscaping details shall include planting plan, specification (including cultivation
and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment), schedules of
plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate, and implementation timetable.
Soft landscaping details shall also include locations for retained or restored wildlife
habitat, and quantified ecological compensation measures (demonstrating that the
rate is sufficient to replace anticipated losses).
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in
accordance with a timetable approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after planting, are removed,
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of species, size and number as originally approved
and permanently retained.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy
CP3, CP7 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and
TB21
Landscape Management Plan
13. Prior to the commencement of the development a landscape management plan,
detailing long term design objectives, management responsibilities, timescales
and maintenance schedules, including for all ongoing ecological mitigation and
compensation measures, for all landscape areas, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The landscape management
plan shall be carried out as approved.
Reason: In order to ensure that provision is made to allow satisfactory
maintenance of the landscaping hereby approved. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policy CP3, CP7 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03
and TB21
Retention of trees and shrubs
14. No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on
the approved plans shall be felled, uprooted wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut
back in any way or removed without previous written consent of the local planning
authority; any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without consent or dying or being
severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years from the
completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with trees,
shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species unless the local planning
authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that development is being
carried out, of trees, shrubs and hedges growing within the site which are of
amenity value to the area. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21.
Protection of trees
15. a) No development or other operation shall commence on site until a scheme
which provides for the retention and protection of trees, shrubs and hedges

21

growing on or adjacent the site in accordance with BS5837: 2012 has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority (the Approved
Scheme); the tree protection measures approved shall be implemented in
complete accordance with the Approved Scheme for the duration of the
development (including, unless otherwise provided by the Approved Scheme)
demolition, all site preparation work, tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works,
soil moving, temporary access construction and or widening or any other operation
involving use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery.
b) No development (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, soil
moving, temporary access construction and or widening or any other operation
involving use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) shall commence
until the local planning authority has been provided (by way of a written notice)
with a period of no less than 7 working days to inspect the implementation of the
measures identified in the Approved Scheme on-site.
c) No excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of
vehicles, deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of
liquids shall take place within an area designated as being fenced off or
otherwise protected in the Approved Scheme.
d) The fencing or other works which are part of the Approved Scheme shall not
be moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works including external
works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus
materials removed from the site, unless the prior approval of the local planning
authority has first been sought and obtained.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that the development is
being carried out of trees shrubs or hedges growing within or adjacent to the site
which are of amenity value to the area, and to allow for verification by the local
planning authority that the necessary measures are in place before development
and other works commence Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21
Ecological Mitigation Measures
16. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
proposed ecological mitigation measures as stated within Table 5-1 of the
submitted Ecology Impact Assessment.
Reason: To ensure that species of principal importance, protected under the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), are not adversely affected by the
development, in accordance with CP7.
Archaeology
17. No development shall take place until the applicant or their agents or successors
in title have secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in
accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted by
the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The written
scheme of investigation shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.

22

Reason: Further work is required to ensure that any archaeological remains within
the site are adequately investigated and recorded or preserved in situ in the
interest of protecting the archaeological heritage of the borough.
Contamination
18. (a) If contamination is found at any time during site clearance, groundwork and
construction the discovery shall be reported as soon as possible to the local
planning authority. A full contamination risk assessment shall be carried out and if
found to be necessary, a ‘remediation method statement’ shall be submitted to the
local planning authority for written approval. Should no evidence of contamination
be found during the development a statement to that effect shall be submitted to
the local planning authority
(b)Works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved ‘remediation
method statement’ (submitted to comply with condition 20) and a final validation
report shall be submitted to the local planning authority upon completion of
remedial works.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination of the site is identified at the outset to
allow remediation to protect amenity of the site and adjacent land. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 11 (Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment)
and Core Strategy policies CP1 & CP3.
Informatives:
1. This development may require an Environmental Permit from the Environment
Agency under the terms of the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales)
(Amendment) (No. 2) Regulations 2016 for any proposed works or structures, in,
under, over or within 8 metres of the top of the bank of designated ‘main rivers’.
This was formerly called a Flood Defence Consent. Some activities are also now
excluded or exempt. An environmental permit is in addition to and a separate
process from obtaining planning permission. Further details and guidance are
available on the GOV.UK website: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-riskactivities-environmental-permits#
2. The applicant is advised to apply to Environmental Health for ‘prior consent’ under
s.61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of construction
site noise
3. Adequate precautions shall be taken during the construction period to prevent the
deposit of mud and similar debris on adjacent highways. For further information
contact the Highway Authority on tel.: 0118 9746000
4. Any works/ events carried out by or on behalf of the developer affecting either a
public highway or a prospectively maintainable highway (as defined under s.87
New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 (NRSWA)), shall be co-ordinated and
licensed as required under NRSWA and the Traffic Management Act 2004 in order
to minimise disruption to both pedestrian and vehicular users of the highway.
Any such works or events, and particularly those involving the connection of any
utility to the site must be co-ordinated by the developer in liaison with the Borough’s
Street Works team (0118 974 6302). This must take place AT LEAST three months

23

in advance of the intended works to ensure effective co-ordination with other works
so as to minimise disruption.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Application Number Proposal
190284
Ashridge section of the NDR
screening opinion request
170083
Reserved Matters approval for
Kentwood
Farm
West
(225
dwellings) including a section of the
NDR
172952
Application for Reserved Matters for
a section of the Northern
Distributor
Road
(NDR)
and
associated infrastructure, including a
cycle and footway, relating to Bell
Foundry Lane (pursuant to outline
planning permission 161839).
SUMMARY INFORMATION
Site Area:
Previous land use:
Proposed land use:

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
South East Water
Berkshire Archaeology

Environment Agency

Natural England
Historic England
Thames Water
National Grid

SSE Power Distribution
Southern Gas Networks
Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue
Berks, Bucks and Oxon Wildlife Trust
WBC Biodiversity
WBC Conservation Officer
WBC Drainage
WBC Environmental Health

Decision
Replied 22/05/19 – Not
EIA Development
Approved 23/10/17

Approved 21/09/18

4.4ha
Agriculture/farmland, highway.
Public
highway,
including
vehicle
carriageway, cycleway and footway.

No comments received
No objection subject to condition requiring a
programme of archaeological mitigation in
accordance with a written scheme of
investigation, prior to commencement
No
objection
subject
to
condition
development being carried out in accordance
with submitted FRA and mitigation measures
No comments received
Concern over lighting scheme and
landscaping
No comments received
Response from ESP Utilities Group advising
they have no gas or electric apparatus within
the vicinity of the site.
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No objection
No objection
No objection
No objection. Recommends various
conditions.

24

WBC Highways

No objection. Recommends various
conditions.

WBC Tree & Landscape

No objection subject to conditions relating to
retention/protection of existing trees, a
landscaping scheme and landscape
management plan.

WBC Public Rights of Way

No comments received

REPRESENTATIONS
Town/Parish Council:
Wokingham Town Council – No comments received
Local Members: No comments received
Neighbours:
Consultation letters regarding the proposal were sent to over 300 properties.
One response in respect of the scheme has been received from a resident in Benning
Way. The comments raised in the response are summarised as follows: How much more green land is going to be built on?
 This is probably the only remaining green field between St Annes Manor and the
Wokingham Reading Road;
 Please stop building on green space – Government policy with local government
carrying it out
Officer response: The need for the NDR was established a number of years ago, through
the Core Strategy, associated SPD’s with the deliverable route being subsequently
agreed in 2015. The principle of the development in this location is already established
as being acceptable.

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP4

Infrastructure Requirements

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP7

Biodiversity

CP8

Thames
Basin
Protection Area

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

CP10

Improvements to the Strategic Transport
Network

CP11

Proposals outside development limits
(including countryside)

CP17

Housing Delivery

25

Heaths

Special

CP20

North Wokingham Strategic Delivery
Location

Adopted Managing Development CC01
Delivery Local Plan 2014

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

Infrastructure
Delivery
Contributions SPD

CC02

Development Limits

CC03

Green
Infrastructure,
Landscaping

CC06

Noise

CC09

Development and Flood Risk (from all
sources)

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB21

Landscape Character

TB23

Biodiversity and Development

TB24

Designated Heritage Assets

TB25

Archaeology

TB26

Buildings of Traditional Local Character
and Areas of Special Character

Trees

and

and

North
Wokingham
Strategic
Development Location SPD

PLANNING ISSUES
Application site and surroundings:
1. The majority of the application site is situated within land at Ashridge Farm, which
is located approximately 1 mile to the north of Wokingham town centre, and to the
south of the A329 (M). The application site extends out to the west to include a
small part of Bell Foundry Lane. The site is located within the North Wokingham
SDL, as identified within the Core Strategy.
2. The immediately surrounding area comprises the Ashridge Farm house, barns and
outbuildings which are located approximately 100m to the south of the application
site. The Farmhouse is a Grade II* Listed building fronting on to Warren House
Road. The barns which would have originally been associated with the farmhouse
include a collection of 6 outbuildings comprising a timber and brick roadside barn,
listed individually at grade 2 and a series of predominantly brick and timber
outbuildings which are of lesser interest, but are considered curtilage listed. These
outbuildings have planning permission and listed building consent for their
conversion into 5 dwellings, although this has not as yet been implemented.
3. To the east of the application site is the housing development site of Kentwood
Farm West (otherwise known as Mulberry Place), which has planning permission
for 225 dwellings. This is currently under construction and includes the next section

26

of the NDR which would tie in with the section being considered under this
application. Beyond the Kentwood West site is the Kentwood Farm East site
(Mulberry Grove) which is substantially completed, and this site also includes a
section of the NDR running through it.
4. The western boundary of the application site adjoins the Cantley Park recreation
ground and to the north west of the site along Bell Foundry Lane, is the Bell Farm
development, which has planning permission for 127 units. These are currently
under construction. Part of the planning permission for the site included the
provision of land to facilitate upgrading works to a section of Bell Foundry Lane to
incorporate it into part of the NDR route. These works have been undertaken and
this section of the NDR is now open. To the north of the site lies the Thames Water
Sewage Treatment works and two semi-detached dwellings. Access to these
properties and to the Sewage Treatment works is via a lane off Bell Foundry Lane.
5. The Ashridge Farm building and its immediate curtilage is no longer directly
connected with the wider land around it, although the land is currently in use for
agricultural purposes and accommodates several large modern agricultural
buildings. The Ashridge Stream runs up through the eastern side of the site from
south to north, before it heads in a north westerly direction where it joins the Emm
Brook at Old Forest Road. The general topography of the site is reasonably flat,
although is slightly higher in the west.
Principle of Development:
6. Wokingham Borough Core Strategy policy CP17 establishes a requirement to
provide at least 13,487 new dwellings with associated development and
infrastructure in the period 2006-2026. The majority of this new residential
development will be in four Strategic Development Locations (SDLs), one of which
is in North Wokingham.
7. Core Strategy Policy CP20 is amplified by Appendix 7 of the Core Strategy, the
North Wokingham Strategic Development Location Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) and Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions SPD, which
address the associated infrastructure impacts across the borough. These
documents establish the requirement for a mixed-used development and make
clear that a co-ordinated approach to the development of the SDL will be required
to deliver the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the expanded
community.
8. Policy CP20 seeks improvements to transport capacity along the A321 and A329
and the provision of the Northern Distributor Road (NDR). The proposed NDR
route, as outlined in WBC’s adopted SPD Masterplan, will run from the A329 (near
the M4 over-bridge) Forest Road in the west, through the SDL development and
eventually to Coppid Beech Roundabout, where a park and ride facility is
proposed.
9. The North Wokingham Highways study undertaken in 2012 identified a distributor
road as being the most appropriate highway scheme to ensure the impacts arising
from additional traffic associated with new planned development in North
Wokingham would be suitably mitigated. A public consultation process
commenced in 2013, where three alternatives to the route west of Twyford Road

27

were presented. A further Refinement Study was subsequently undertaken to
examine options within the preferred route alignment. The outcome of the
refinement study recommended a single route for the distributor road termed the
‘deliverable route option’. This was presented to and approved by WBC’s
Executive in September 2015 and forms the basis for the current application.
10. The NDR is key strategic road infrastructure considered necessary under the Core
Strategy and will link with the Winnersh Relief Road and forms part of the wider
strategic infrastructure improvements being constructed such as the Coppid Beech
roundabout, Station Link Road, Southern Distributor Road, Arborfield Relief Road,
Nine Mile Ride Extension and Eastern Relief Road.
11. The NDR is designed to be an attractive route through the new residential areas
of North Wokingham, operating a 30/40mph speed limit. The NDR will take the
majority of the new traffic in addition to existing development traffic. This part of
the route will provide a key section of the Council's strategic NDR which as a whole
is identified as a necessary piece of infrastructure required to facilitate the delivery
of housing numbers identified for the North Wokingham SDL. The NDR delivery is
therefore part of the Council’s strategic response to providing the borough’s
identified housing needs and associated infrastructure necessary to accommodate
the new development. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in
principle.
Description of Development:
12. This application comprises a relatively small section of the NDR which will link the
Kentwood West NDR section with the recently completed Bell Foundry Lane
section, across land at Ashridge Farm. The alignment would be a single
carriageway, approximately 0.5km in length and approximately 7.3m wide. In
addition to the proposed highway, the scheme includes provision for pedestrians
and cyclists, by way of a shared use 3m wide pathway alongside each side of the
carriageway and a 2m green verge along all the areas where these are achievable.
13. The overall NDR route extends around north Wokingham from Coppid Beech /
London Road in the east to Reading Road in the west, linking with the Winnersh
Relief Road. Sections have been completed through existing developments at
Matthewsgreen and Mulberry Grove (Kentwood Farm East) and along Bell
Foundry Lane while other sections are under construction, through Keep Hatch
site and Kentwood Farm West (Mulberry Place). Planning permission for the
western most section of the NDR to the west of Toutley Road and Old Forest Road
was approved at planning committee on 8th May 2019 (ref 190198). This section
under consideration will complete the central section of the overall route and is the
remaining part to obtain planning permission. The entire route is due to be open in
2021.
14. At the western end of the site, this section of the NDR will tie in with the end of the
recently completed Bell Foundry Lane improvement works and will then continue
south for a short distance along the existing Bell Foundry Lane alignment before
turning east to head in a north easterly direction across the Ashridge Farm site. At
the point where the NDR would turn to continue over land at Ashridge Farm, a new
junction arrangement would be provided on Bell Foundry Lane, whereby the
priority would be for traffic travelling along the NDR. The existing access lane off

28

Bell Foundry Lane which currently serves 2 residential properties and the Thames
Water Sewage Treatment works would be stopped up and in its place, a new
access would be provided off the north side of the NDR. The road will then continue
across the land at Ashridge Farm, including over the Ashridge Stream (which will
be culverted) and will tie in with the Kentwood Farm West section of the NDR on
the eastern boundary of the site.
Access and Movement:
15. The planning application is supported by a Transport Assessment. The document
has fully assessed the nature and extent of transport impacts together with any
cumulative impact associated with known future development.
16. The assessment draws upon modelling data derived from the Wokingham
Strategic Transport Model and takes into account the SDL developments together
with on-site infrastructure provision and known off-site transport interventions. The
model was developed to represent average weekday AM peak hour (08:00 09:00), Inter peak hour (average 10:00 – 16:00) and PM peak hour (17:00 - 18:00).
17. The forecast year used for this development is 2026. It is accepted practice to carry
out an assessment 15 years after the opening year, however it was agreed to
assess 2026 as being in line with the end of the current Local Plan period.
18. Due to the design of this scheme, no existing junctions would be amended.
However, a new priority junction would be built changing the priority for the
southern part of Bell Foundry Lane. The new junction was assessed using
standard junction modelling tools for 2026 where it was found that the new junction
operated well within capacity.
19. The modelling has predicted that the two-way flows along Warren House Road
would reduce by between around 470 vehicles in AM peak hour and by around
320 vehicles in the PM peak hour by 2026. This reduction in traffic would lead to
improvements in noise and air pollution and improving the environment for local
residents, particularly along Warren House Road and pedestrians and cyclists.
Speed, lighting and highway safety
20. The design speed proposed along the distributor road would be 30mph. The road
geometry is considered acceptable for the design speeds proposed.
21. Lighting is proposed along the route, the details and specifications for which would
be required to be submitted by recommended condition 3. Such details would also
need to take into account any ecological sensitivity considerations as well as the
comments received by Historic England with regards to the setting of the nearby
Listed Farmhouse.
22. Reflective road markings, high quality road studs and illuminated signs and
bollards are proposed along the alignment, the details for which would be required
to be submitted for approval under condition 3. There would be two uncontrolled
pedestrian crossings along the route enabling pedestrians to cross both the new
road and Bell Foundry Lane allowing access to Cantley Park and central
Wokingham

29

23. The Transport Assessment is supported by an independently assessed Stage 1
Road Safety Audit and did not identify any significant issues. Future stages in the
Road Safety Audit process will be carried out at later stages where this is
appropriate.
24. Therefore, the road alignment, layout and design is considered to be acceptable.

Public Rights of Way:
25. There are no Public Rights of Way through the site which would be affected as a
result of the proposal and the PROW officer has made no comment on the
application.
Trees and Landscape:
26. Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP3 require a high quality design that respects its
context. This requirement is amplified by MDDLP Policies CC03 and TB21 which
require development proposals to protect and enhance the Borough’s Green
Infrastructure, retaining existing trees, hedges and other landscape features
wherever possible and incorporating high quality - ideally native – planting as an
integral part of any scheme, within the context of the Council’s Landscape
Character Assessment. Policy CC02 states that planning permission for proposals
at the edge of settlements will only be granted where they can demonstrate that
the development, including boundary treatments respects the transition between
the built-up area and the open countryside by taking account of the character of
the adjacent countryside and landscape’.
27. It is inevitable that a new road across what is currently predominantly an
agricultural field will result in some harm to the existing landscape. The
accompanying Arboricultural report identifies that the application site contains 40
high quality trees (Category A) of which 36 are protected by a Tree Preservation
Order (TPO) and 32 are identified as notable or veteran species. The scheme
would result in the removal of 20 individual trees, 6 groups of trees and partial
removal of 5 hedgerows. Of the 20 trees to be removed, 9 are Category A trees,
two of which are veteran and six are notable trees. As such, their removal would
have a detrimental impact upon the existing landscape due to the importance of
these within the wider landscape character of the area. The general alignment of
this section of the road has, however, been designed in consultation with WBC
Trees and Landscape officer in order to seek to minimise as much as possible, the
number of trees which would require removal.
28. However, it is considered that with a suitable programme of landscape mitigation
measures proposed in conjunction with the construction of the road, the impacts
upon the surrounding landscape can be reduced. Such measures include verge
and tree planting along the sides of the road (in the region of 70 new trees), as is
consistent along the NDR route as a whole. In addition, the scheme now provides
for suitable shelterbelt/woodland planting between the road and Ashridge Farm, in
order to maintain a visual and physical separation for the listed building and its
curtilage.

30

29. The originally submitted landscape proposals have been revised to provide for
better planting between the road and the listed building, along with tree planting
within the verges along either side of the road. The originally submitted details did
not provide for this and it was considered that although this section of the road
passes through agricultural land, the overall character and appearance of the NDR
is one of tree lined verges, so it was considered important to continue that
consistent design along this relatively short section of the NDR, which is
considered to be located in a semi-rural, urban fringe location. It is considered that
the revised Landscape Plan now provides an acceptable overall planting strategy,
consistent with the landscaping approach along connecting sections of the NDR
and provides sufficient information on the overall type and location of planting
proposed. Detailed landscape plans would need to be agreed with the LPA prior
to commencement under condition 12. This would be implemented in conjunction
with a Landscape Management Plan (LMP), details of which would be provided
under the requirements of condition 13.
30. Although the alignment of the road would result in the loss of a number of trees
and other vegetation, suitable replacement planting is indicated as part of the
landscape proposals. Retained trees and hedges would be protected during the
construction process (as required by condition 16) and condition 15 is proposed in
order to ensure the new planting establishes successfully within the landscape.
31. In summary, the impact of this section of the NDR is considered to be acceptable
in landscape terms, and the benefits of the road, subject to mitigation, are
considered to outweigh the harm.
Heritage:
32. The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 establishes a
statutory duty to consider the effect on heritage assets: development should
preserve or enhance the character and setting of listed buildings. The NPPF
stresses the need to avoid or minimise conflict between the conservation of listed
buildings and development (paragraph 190), states that any harm to a listed
building needs to be clearly and convincingly justified (paragraph 194) and
weighed against the public benefits of the proposals (paragraph 196).
33. In considering designated heritage assets, the NPPF (Para 132) requires ‘great
weight to be given to the asset’s conservation’, and that any harm should require
‘clear and convincing justification’. The MDD Local Plan (TB24) requires that
‘…works to or affecting heritage assets or their setting to demonstrate that the
proposals would at least conserve and, where possible enhance the important
character and special architectural or historic interest of the building.’
34. The application site itself does not contain any nationally designated (protected)
heritage assets, such as scheduled monuments, listed buildings or registered
parks and gardens. The site is also not located within a Conservation Area.
However, approximately 100m to the south of the proposed alignment of the road
is the Grade II* Listed Ashridge Farm and associated barns.
35. Historic England responded to the application consultation, advising that they had
concerns in respect of the proposed landscaping details and lighting. They
acknowledge that the visual connection between the listed buildings and the land

31

to the north is not particularly strong, as it has been compromised by the presence
of modern farm buildings and sewage treatment works. However, they consider
that the proximity of the road, together with the associated noise, and light
pollution, would have an appreciable (albeit moderate and less than substantial)
impact on the setting of the farm. They referred to there being no lighting details
submitted with the application and considered that lighting is too an important issue
to leave to a condition, as they consider that it would be unlikely to receive
adequate scrutiny at that point. However, an indicative lighting scheme was
submitted with the application, which showed potential locations of lighting
columns and degree of light spill along the proposed route. Following the above
mentioned comments made by Historic England, the lighting plan was sent directly
to them for comment, and the Historic England officer responded, advising that
there looked to be a lot of lights and that a scheme relating to a more rural setting
should be considered.
36. Further lighting details will be expected to be submitted at the detailed design
stage, as they form part of the requirement under the construction details to be
submitted under condition 3. The lighting proposals are also important in respect
of ecological issues, particularly in respect of the likely presence of bat roosts in
the locality. As such the details are likely to include lower level lighting provision
with cowl fittings which would reduce light spillage and which incidentally would
also provide for a lighting scheme more likened to a rural setting, as advised by
Historic England. It is therefore considered that the concerns raised by Historic
England will be satisfactorily dealt with through the submission of details relating
to the lighting strategy for the scheme.
37. With regards to landscaping, Historic England did not consider that the
landscaping proposals went far enough to reduce the impact of the road on the
farmstead. The landscaping proposals have been revised since receiving these
comments, as WBC’s Trees and Landscape Officer also considered that a
‘shelterbelt’ of trees could be provided on part of the southern embankment
between the road and the Listed Building, in order to help reduce the visual impact
of the road upon the setting of the Listed Farmhouse. A revised landscape plan
has been submitted which now proposes such woodland planting as described
above. As discussed elsewhere in this report, these revised landscaping proposals
are now considered acceptable, consistent with the general landscape strategy for
the NDR as a whole, but with additional tree/woodland planting where considered
necessary in order to help minimise associated impacts of the presence of the
road.
38. Notwithstanding the above, it is noted, however, that although the Listed
Farmhouse and associated barn buildings were once part of the working farmstead
at Ashridge Farm, this is no longer the case. The Farmhouse and its immediate
curtilage is visually separated from and has no direct relationship with the current
agricultural related uses associated with the site. The barns which would have
originally been associated with the farmhouse have recently received planning
permission and listed building consent in 2018 for their conversion into 5 dwellings
(in consultation with Historic England). The site is therefore already considered to
be fragmented and when considering the presence of the Sewerage Treatment
works adjacent, new housing developments and Cantley recreational ground and
associated floodlighting nearby, it is therefore considered that the presence of the

32

road, (subject to the implementation of appropriate landscaping and lighting) would
not have a significant harmful impact upon the setting of the Listed Building.
Flooding and Drainage:
39. Core Strategy Policy CP1 and MDDLP Policies CC09 and CC10 establish that new
development should avoid increasing and where possible reduce flood risk (from
all sources) by first developing in areas with lowest flood risk, carrying out a Flood
Risk Assessment (FRA) where required and managing surface water in a
sustainable manner.
40. The majority of the application site falls within Flood Zone 1 where the risk of
flooding is low. However, parts of the site are located within flood zones 2 & 3,
these areas being located in proximity to the route of the Ashridge stream on the
eastern end of the site. The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment
and Drainage Strategy. The indicative Surface Water drainage strategy
demonstrates that the proposed scheme will be drained via a network of swales
located alongside the road which will discharge to attenuation basins located on
the north side of the road. The swales located to the south of the road are needed
to accommodate the existing greenfield run-off from the land to the south. There
is a new culvert proposed under the road to accommodate the stream.
41. The attenuation proposed will cater for the 1 in 100 flood event with a 40%
allowance for climate change prior to being discharged at existing greenfield runoff
rates. Proposed condition 10 requires the submission of details to demonstrate
that the existing rate of discharge would be maintained or improved.
42. WBC as the lead local flood authority (LLFA) have reviewed the submitted Flood
Risk Assessment and associated flood modelling details and have raised no
objection to the proposal subject to the development being carried out in
accordance with the submitted FRA. This is secured through condition 11.
43. The development is therefore considered acceptable in drainage terms subject to
further ground investigation surveys, demonstration of SUDs feature levels, and a
finalised drainage strategy and maintenance plan with water quality enhancements
measures. Such details would be required to be submitted under proposed
Condition 10.
Environmental Health and Residential Amenity:
44. Core Strategy Policy CP3 requires that new development should be of a high
quality of design that does not cause significant detriment to the amenities of
adjoining land users and their quality of life.
45. The applicant has submitted a detailed Noise & Vibration Assessment Report
which considers both construction and operational noise.
Construction Noise and Vibration
46. For the majority of dwellings in the vicinity and at other noise sensitive locations,
the impact of construction noise will be low if ‘best practicable means’, as defined
by the Control of Pollution Act 1974, are used.

33

47. The report concludes that properties 1 and 2 Bell Foundry Lane are most likely to
be affected significantly by noise during construction and for extended periods of
time and therefore recommends the use of localised screening or site hoarding to
reduce noise levels at these locations. Condition 5 relating to the submission of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan also includes the requirement to
provide a noise management plan that sets out how construction noise will be
minimised to protect residential amenity and states that particular attention should
be given to protecting dwellings that are likely to be exposed to high levels of
construction noise. It is therefore expected that the details submitted under this
condition will include suitable noise mitigation measures for the occupants of 1 and
2 Bell Foundry Land during the construction phase. In addition, a further condition
is recommended to limit the hours of work (condition 8) and informative 2
recommends that the appointed contractor applies for ‘prior consent’ under s.61 of
the Control of Pollution Act 1974 (informative 2). The above proposed measures
should therefore ensure that the impact of the construction phase in respect of
noise upon the occupiers of 1&2 Bell Foundry Lane is minimised. The existing
residents along Warren House Road, including the listed building, should benefit
from the scheme in that the main flow of traffic will no longer be passing directly
adjacent to the front and rear of their properties.
Operational Noise
48. The submitted noise report also considers various scenarios for changes to the
noise environment during operation of this section of the road. These scenarios
include the ‘do nothing’ and ‘do something’ options in 2019 and 2036. In summary,
the short term impacts are that 46 dwellings and 1 non-residential sensitive
receptor will experience a negligible increase in noise (between 0.1 and 2.9dB)
Two dwellings (1 and 2 Bell Foundry Lane) will experience a ‘moderate’ increase
in noise. All dwellings are predicted to experience absolute noise levels above the
‘lowest observable adverse effect level’ (LOAEL) but below the ‘significant
observable adverse effect level’ (SOAEL). In the longer term (2036) 46 dwellings
+1 non-residential receptor are predicted to experience no change in noise but two
properties 1 & 2 Bell Foundry lane will experience a moderate increase in noise.
49. The noise report advises that an assessment of acoustic screening to protect 1
and 2 Bell Foundry Lane has been carried out that could potentially provide
between 5dB (just line of site) and 15dB noise attenuation provided that the
barriers were suitably designed with correct density and with no gaps. Due to
issues concerning the practicalities of installing such a barrier at this location and
other planning considerations such as visual impacts, the provision of acoustic
screening was not considered a suitable option to pursue. However, a preliminary
Noise Insulation Regulations appraisal has been carried out which indicates that
there would be no eligibility for a noise insulation grant for these affected
properties. As such, it is therefore considered reasonable for a condition to be
imposed requiring further details of an assessment of potential noise protection
measures to be submitted to the Council for approval, in order to ensure that the
existing residential amenities of these two properties are not significantly harmed
in terms of noise impacts once the road is operational. Condition 9 therefore refers.
Air quality
50. An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted with the application which
considers both construction and operational impacts.

34

Construction
51. The ‘residual’ effects of dust (during construction) are considered to be negligible
provided there is good site practice and implementation of mitigation measures.
As such, a condition is recommended requiring submission for approval, of a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to include the control of
dust (condition 5).
Operational
52. The air quality impacts of redistributed traffic has been considered, and the
residual effect of the scheme is concluded as being negligible. WBC’s
Environmental Officer advises that the conclusions within the submitted report are
acceptable and that there will be no significant detrimental impacts on existing Air
Quality Management Areas
Contamination
53. A Generic Quantative Risk Assessment accompanies the application which
considers potential impacts on controlled waters and human health arising from
the construction of the new road. The potential mobilisation of contaminants and
changes to existing gas migration regimes were considered.
54. The report concludes that there is a very low risk to human health and controlled
waters but as a precaution, appropriate health and safety protocols during
construction should be implemented to protect construction workers should
unexpected contamination be encountered. If unexpected contamination is
encountered then remediation may be required and as such WBC Environmental
Health Officer recommends the standard condition for dealing with unexpected
contamination should this arise (condition 18).
Ecology:
55. Core Strategy Policy CP7, carried forward by MDD LP Policy TB23, requires
appropriate protection of species and habitats of conservation value. Design
Principle 1b (i-ii) is concerned with protection of ecological habitat and biodiversity
features, together with mitigation of any impacts that do arise.
56. An Ecological Impact Assessment has been submitted alongside the application,
with the ecological baseline status of the site and wider area being established
through desk and field survey. The application site does not include any statutory
or non-statutory designated sites. There are no Ancient Woodlands or Habitats of
Principal Importance as mapped on Natural England’s Habitats Inventory within
the site. However, a range of sites, habitats and species were considered in the
Assessment including statutory and non-statutory wildlife sites, Habitats of
Principal importance, veteran trees, bats, badgers, hedgehogs, Great Crested
Newts, reptiles, breeding birds, invertebrates and other Species of Principal
Importance.
57. The results of the baseline surveys were used to assess the likely significant
ecological effects of the proposed scheme both within the construction and
operational phases, taking into account the various mitigation measures that are
proposed.

35

58. In summary, while there are likely to be some moderate adverse effects to habitat
during the short term construction phase, there will be residual positive ecological
benefits in the longer term as a result of habitat creation. Therefore, the
development would not have a significant effect on receptors.
Protected species
59. The surveys undertaken in association with the submitted ecology impact
assessment indicated an unlikely presence of some protected species within the
application site. This included badgers and amphibians (Great Crested Newts).
However, the report advises that precautionary mitigation measures will be
included within the Construction Environmental Management Plan (to be
submitted under condition 5) in order to ensure that the site is protected during
construction and monitored.
60. With regards to bats, the proposed soft landscaping scheme is likely to increase
the foraging quality of the site in the medium to long-term. The risk to tree roosts
has been assessed and compensation is proposed for the loss of potential roost
features (for those features not completely ruled out as bat roosts). The
implementation of the mitigation and compensation measures for bats as stated
within Table 5-1 of the submitted Ecology Impact Assessment would be secured
through the requirement to implement the general ecology related mitigation
measures (condition 17). The proposal includes the provision of bat boxes, the
number and location of which will need to be agreed, and should therefore be
included within the LMP submission (condition 13).
61. The general habitat creation measures associated with the proposal includes the
provision of hedgerow planting, amenity grassland, scrub and woodland planting,
together with the provision of drainage ditches and attenuation basins to be planted
with a wetland meadow mix.
62. Other measures to facilitate ecological permeability through the site includes the
provision of a mammal pass in culvert of the Ashridge Stream which crosses the
site. This would be detailed within the conditions submission relating to the detailed
highway design. A further mammal ledge would be required on the eastern
boundary of the site where the road will link with the Kentwood Farm section of the
NDR. There is an existing ditch which the road will cross, and as such, a similar
provision for mammal permeability will need to be provided in this location also.
Again, the details of this would be secured through the details submitted pursuant
to condition 3.
Hedgerow
63. The application identifies that circa 550m of hedgerow will be lost at various points
along the proposed alignment which would result in habitat fragmentation and a
net loss for biodiversity without appropriate mitigation. However, the general
proposed landscape mitigation measures which include woodland planting
between the new road and the Listed Farmhouse, wildflower grassland planting,
scrub and wetland habitat, are considered to satisfactorily demonstrate that
appropriate levels of new habitat creation would be provided.
Net gain for biodiversity
64. The NPPF para 170 (d) requires development to provide net gains for biodiversity
where possible. The revised landscape strategy would result in the same

36

conclusions as the original landscape scheme, in that the proposals would result
in a net gain of area-based habitats, but a net loss of linear habitats (i.e.
watercourses and hedgerows). Such provision would be required to be replaced
at a ratio of 3:1 to achieve this. The ability to replace the amount of hedgerow on
this site is limited due to the need to limit the land take for the scheme. Therefore,
with this in mind, it is considered that the proposal achieves a good balance
between the provisions of net gain for biodiversity in terms of area-based habitats,
whilst limiting the extent of land which would be required to deliver the project.
Demonstration of the area based habitat net gains will also need to be
demonstrated through the landscaping details submitted pursuant to condition 13.
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
65. WBC commissioned a Habitats Regulations Assessment study to be undertaken
in order to assess the cumulative impact of a number of infrastructure projects
across the borough, and their potential impact of particulates on the Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA). The application scheme was included as
part of the assessment, the results of which have been conveyed to Natural
England who have confirmed that after reviewing the assessment they are satisfied
that there would not be an adverse impact on designated sites in respect of
Predicted Environmental Concentrations.
Archaeology:
66. MDD Policy TB25 requires applicants to provide a detailed assessment of the
impact on archaeological remains. If development is likely to affect an area of high
archaeological potential or an area which is likely to contain archaeological
remains, the presumption is that appropriate measures shall be taken to protect
remains by preservation in situ. Where this is not practical, applicants shall provide
for excavation, recording and archiving of the remains.
67. As part of the assessment of the impacts of the proposed road, desk-based
research, followed by a programme of exploratory archaeological field evaluation
were undertaken along the proposed route, the conclusions of which were that
there were no finds, features or deposits recovered.
68. However, Berkshire Archaeology comment that the area proposed to be the
temporary compound area for the development was not subject to the exploratory
field evaluation undertaken. As such works are likely to include significant
earthmoving which has the potential to impact on any below ground deposits,
Berkshire Archaeology recommend a condition requiring a written scheme of
investigation to be submitted and approved by the LPA, prior to works commencing
on site. This is therefore secured under condition 17.This is in accordance with
Paragraph 141 of the NPPF which states that local planning authorities should
‘require developers to record and advance understanding of the significance of any
heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their
importance and the impact, and to make this evidence (and any archive generated)
publicly accessible’.
69. The development is therefore considered acceptable in archaeology terms, subject
to the requirements of proposed Condition 17 being satisfied.

37

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
70. The proposal is infrastructure development and therefore is not CIL liable.
Public Sector Equality Duty
71. In determining this application the Committee is required to have regard to its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The duty is to have due regard to the need
(in discharging its functions) to:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not. This may include removing or minimising
disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are connected to that characteristic; taking steps to meet the special needs of
those with a protected characteristic; encouraging participation in public life (or
other areas where they are underrepresented) of people with a protected
characteristic(s).
c. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
72. The key equalities protected characteristics include age, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The Council should give greater
consideration to decisions that have a disproportionately adverse impact on a
protected characteristic and this impact may be unintentional. In appropriate
cases, this may involve an understanding of the practical impact on individuals so
affected by the decision. Regard should be had to the effect of mitigation taken to
reduce any adverse impact.

CONCLUSION
The Ashridge Farm section of the NDR forms the central link of the NDR which will run
from Coppid Beech / London Road to Reading Road to link with the Winnersh Relief
Road. The road would provide an essential piece of infrastructure that is required to
support the Council’s planned housing growth within the wider area and one which has
been adopted as part of the Core Strategy and SPD’s.
The development provides for a safe, functional and well landscaped scheme, in keeping
with the Council’s spatial strategy. Appropriate mitigation is proposed to overcome
impacts, where necessary. The proposal would provide benefits to the local area and
town centre including benefits to local residents along Warren House Road. The
application complies with Development Plan polices and can therefore be recommended
for approval.
Enclosures:
1) Site location plan
2) General Arrangement Plan
3) Landscape General Arrangement Plan

38

13 Apartmen ts

B ins and
B ikes
u nd er

S3 - FOR REVIEW

39
c WSP UK Ltd

This page is intentionally left blank

DO NOT SCALE
161
160

LOCATION PLAN
159

WARREN

HOUSE

ROAD

TWYFORD ROAD

A 329(M)

A 329(M)

SANG/ INFORMAL OPEN
SPACE

SS

GG

S

Footpath Link to SANG

Area for
Pumping
Station, Gas
Governor
and Electric
Substation

Footpath Link to SANG

Refuse
collection
13
14

15
12

16
11

17

S

Bikes
1-10

10 Apartments
incl coach
house
93
28
23

Refuse

82

18

22

Bikes

29
19

21

55
77
20

30

54
56

57
121
58

59

60

122
61

71
123
62

124
100

66

63

125

64

126
70

99

65

128
68

67

127

69

13 Apartments

A 321

98

106

107

105

104

103

102

101

97

Bins and
Bikes
under

108-120

PROPOSED PRECAST REINFORCED CONCRETE CULVERT

WARREN

158

HOUSE
ROAD

WARREN

TWYFORD ROAD

HOUSE ROAD

WAY
BENNING

PIGOTT

ROAD
HOUSE
WARREN

LENEY
CLOSE

WAY
BENNING

CANTLEY
SHEFFORD

EUSTACE CRESCENT

CRESCENT
ASHRIDGE ROAD

CRESCENT

HEADINGTON

ROAD

DRIVE

WILTSHIRE

CRESCENT

BOWYER
CRESCENT

CANTLEY
CLOSE

HEADINGTON

WHALEY
ROAD

DEACON
CLOSE
BOWYER

CRESCENT

CHILD CLOSE

WARD
CLOSE

MARTINS

ALL

SAINTS

CLOSE

DRIVE

MARTINS

DRIVE

DRIVE

DRIVE

MARTINS

BISHOPS

ROAD
CRUTCHLEY

BUDGE'S

ROAD

CLOSE
DEACON

AVENUE

SEWELL
AVENUE

MARTINS

DRIVE

JUBILEE

ROAD

BOWYER
CRESCENT

ROAD
BUDGE'S

MARKS

CRUTCHLEY

CLOSE

ROAD

SAINTS

ALL

MARTINS
DRIVE

ALL
SAINTS
CLOSE

ASHRIDGE ROAD

CLOSE
JUBILEE
AVENUE

ROAD
CRUTCHLEY

SAINTS

PAICE GREEN

ALL

DRIVE
BISHOPS

CHEESEMAN
CLOSE

DEAN

SARUM

GROVE

CRESCENT

CRESCENT
SARUM

ABBEY
CLOSE

TAMARISK
RISE
WILTSHIRE ROAD
AVENUE

NORREYS

HOLT

LANE

ACORN
DRIVE

WOOLF
DRIVE

MILTON

LARCH AVENUE

ROAD
STEPHANIE CHASE
COURT

ACORN

DRIVE

WOOLF

BARKHART

WILTSHIRE

DRIVE

GARDENS

ACORN

DRIVE

DRIVE

CLARE

AVENUE

HOLT

LANE

NORREYS AVENUE

ROAD

NORREYS AVENUE

WILTSHIRE

GLEBELANDS ROAD

GLEBELANDS

BARKHART

DRIVE

WILTSHIRE

ROAD

ROAD

READING

CORONATION

SQUARE

ROAD

BEALE

CLOSE

MILTON

DRIVE

128

127

WOR

13 Apartments

K EX
TENT

HV V
/H H
O /H HV
O /H
O

LA/12
DNOC

113

3.65
3.65

107

112

108-120

LA/11
DNOC

HV V
/H H
O /H HV
O /H
O

Bins and
Bikes
under

111

HV V
/H H
O /H HV
O /H
O

LA/09
DNOC
3.65
3.65

43m

2.4m

e

KEY:

"

e
anc
dist

43m

PROPOSED PRECAST REINFORCED CONCRETE CULVERT

"x"

anc

ist
y" d

110

HV V
/H H
O /H HV
O /H
O

LA/08
DNOC

nce
ista
d
"
"y

HV V
/H H
O /H HV
O /H
O

NT
E
T
EX
K
R
WO

LA/10
DNOC

PAVEMENT TYPE A1
7A

3.65

AD
RO

3.65

LA/07
DNOC

PAVEMENT TYPE B1

ENT

XT
RK E

PROPOSED VERGE AREA

WO

PROPOSED HARD SHOULDER
PROPOSED DROPPED KERB
PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT KERB

LA/06
DNOC

PROPOSED TAPER KERB

41

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN REFUGE,
REFER WBC STANDARD DETAILS.
PROPOSED BAGWORK HEADWALL
PROPOSED EARTHWORKS
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING

WO

RK

EX/14
DNO

3.78

PROPOSED SWALE

EX
TE
N

LA/05
DNOC

T

PROPOSED DITCH
PROPOSED BACK TO BACK TRAFFIC SIGNAGE

3.65

VISIBILITY ENVELOPE

LA/13
DNOC

3.6
5

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGNAGE
3.8

0

3.65

2.4m

3.65

3.6
5

PROPOSED BALANCING POND

"x" d

e
nc
sta

m

43

ce

n
ista

m
43

di
"y"

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN
PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

"y"

LA/04
DNOC

tan

dis

PROPOSED ROAD MARKING
e

ce

3.25

3.65

4.00

LA/01
DNOC

4.00

FULL VISIBILITY SIGHT LINE

LA/03
DNOC

istan
ce

3.00

"x" d

3.00

2.4m

3.65

PROPOSED LANE ARROW

3.65

LA/02
DNOC
43m "y" distance

3.30

c
istan
"y" d
m
3
4

3.65

DRAWING STATUS:

S3 - FOR REVIEW
LA/15
DNOC

XT
WORK E

ENT

BENN

ING

WAY

2 Lansdowne Rd, Croydon, CR9 2ER, UK
T+ 44 (0) 208 263 2413
wsp.com
CLIENT:

AD

USE

REN

RO

HO

WAR

LENEY

PROJECT:

SE

CLO

File name \\UK.WSPGROUP.COM\CENTRAL DATA\PROJECTS\700394XX\70039495 - NWDR ASHRIDGE FARM\02 WIP\HW HIGHWAYS\02 DRAWING\PD-S100\70039495-ASHF-0100-001.DWG, printed on 29 March 2019 14:14:27, by Viggars, Ben

LA/14
DNOC

ASHRIDGE FARM

3.00

TITLE:

ING

NN

BE

WAY

NB: PLEASE NOTE THAT THE DRAINAGE DESIGN
FEATURES, POND AND DITCHES AS WELL AS
LANDSCAPE ARE INDICATIVE ONLY.

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

SCALE @ A0:

CHECKED:

1:500
PROJECT No:

DESIGNED:

70039495

APPROVED:

MB
KP

DB

DRAWN:

NS

DRAWING No:

DATE:

29/03/2019
REV:

70039495-ASHF-0100-001
c WSP UK Ltd

2

This page is intentionally left blank

DO NOT SCALE

General Layout - @ 1 : 500

Existing hedgerow to be retained & protected
during works
Existing hedgerow to be removed

Proposed native hedgerow planted in double
staggered row 30cm apart on 400mm of
topsoil.
Proposed amenity grass seeding: Germinal
A18 grass seed sown at 35g/m2 on 150mm
of topsoil
Proposed scrub planting. Whips to be planted
at 1.5m centres on 400mm of topsoil
Proposed woodland planting. Whips to be
planted at 1.5m centres on 400mm of topsoil
Existing trees to be removed
128

127

Proposed Extra Heavy Standard or Heavy
Standard trees: Planted as shown within the
hedgerow

9no. AcS

13 Apartments

Proposed feathered trees: Planted as shown
within the hedgerow or as scattered trees
north of the attenuation ponds

LA/12
DNOC

Bins and

Existing trees to be retained and protected
during the works

LA/11
DNOC

108-120

under

Drainage ditches and attenuation basins to
be sown with Emmorsgate Meadow mixture
for wetlands at a rate of 4g/m2 in areas
where standing water is not expected

LA/10
DNOC

Site compound area to be reinstated to
pasture land as existing. All stone / debris
removed and topsoil / subsoil spread to
current depths
Wildflower grass seeding: Emorsgate EM4
wildflower grass mix. Seeding for clay soil
sown at 4g/m2 on 150mm topsoil with a low
nutrient content

LA/09
DNOC

2no. Ac
LA/08
DNOC

2no. Tc

Proposed lighting column - refer to
engineers drawing for details

16no. CbFF

1no. Qr

LA/07
DNOC

43

NOTES:
This drawing to be read in conjunction with the
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method
Statement and the Tree Survey Plan
70039495-ASHF-3000-001
LA/06
DNOC

All tree planting to BS8545 2014 Trees from
Nursery to independence in the landscape
All works to be carried out in accordance with
BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design,
demolition and consrtuction recommendations

1no. Qr

All hedge and whip planting to have 60mm tree
shelters with 90cm stake
EHS trees to be staked with a double stake and
cross bar as shown on the tree planting detail

LA/05
DNOC

Canes in Lonicera periclymenum to be removed
immediately after planting.

26no. AcS

LA/13
DNOC

NOTE:
THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN DRAWING IS
INDICATIVE ONLY
LA/04
DNOC

LA/01
DNOC

LA/03
DNOC
LA/02
DNOC

DRAWING STATUS:

LA/14
DNOC

S3 - FOR REVIEW

11no. Qr

2 Lansdowne Rd, Croydon, CR9 2ER, UK
T+ 44 (0) 208 263 2413
wsp.com

LA/15
DNOC
CLIENT:

Wokingham Borough Council
ING

BENN

WAY

PROJECT:

Ashridge Farm

TITLE:

AD

USE

REN
WAR

RO

HO

Revised Landscape Plan
LENEY
CLOS
E

File name \\UK.WSPGROUP.COM\CENTRAL DATA\PROJECTS\700394XX\70039495 - NWDR ASHRIDGE FARM\02 WIP\HW HIGHWAYS\02 DRAWING\PD-S3000\70039495-ASHF-3000-003-00 CM WP.DWG, printed on 15 July 2019 08:45:51, by Martinez de Careaga, Clara

2no. Qr

SCALE @ A0:

3.00

CHECKED:

1 : 500
PROJECT No:

DESIGNED:

70039495

APPROVED:

BV
BV

AW

DRAWN:

CM

DRAWING No:

c WSP UK Ltd
ING

NN

WAY

February 2019
REV:

70039495-ASHF-3000-003
BE

DATE:

00

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 29.
Application
Number
191640

Expiry Date

Parish

Ward

16/08/2019

Wokingham Town

Norreys

Applicant
Site Address
Proposal

Wokingham Borough Council
Foundry College, Budges Green, Wokingham, RG40 1PX
Full planning application for the change of use of office
accommodation (Use Class B1 (a)) to school (Use Class D1) to
form an enlarged school, along with change of use of amenity land
to school playing field, erection of single storey extensions,
relocation of existing temporary classrooms and associated hard
and soft landscape works.
Full Planning
18
Senjuti Manna
for Applicant is Wokingham Borough Council
by

Type
PS Category
Officer
Reason
determination
committee

FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on Wednesday, 14 August 2019
Assistant Director – Place

SUMMARY
The proposal is for expansion of the existing Foundry College to provide the required area
needed to support the existing cohort of 47 students. The existing building currently
accommodates three uses – The Foundry College; The WBC’s Neighbourhood and
Children’s Services offices; and Brambles Children’s Centre. The proposal includes
relocation of the WBC offices to include additional area within Foundry College, change
of use of external amenity space into the school’s playing field by relocating the boundary
fencing, erection of two single storey extensions, relocation of an existing modular
teaching unit and internal alterations to provide adequate facilities for the school. The
proposal also includes erection of fence between Brambles Children’s Centre and
Foundry College to physically separate these two institutions.
The proposed extensions will be acceptable since these would be of limited footprint and
height and would be subservient to the host building. Proposed subdivision of the existing
building between Brambles Children’s Centre and Foundry College would include
erection of a bow-top fence with natural screening that would provide a secure
environment for students of Foundry College and prevent interaction between users of
these two institutions. Proposed relocation of site boundary would not have significant
impact on the character of the area subject to landscape condition to secure suitable
planting in front of the new fence. The proposal would retain the existing access and
parking arrangements and this is acceptable.
The proposal is also acceptable in terms of landscape impact, ecological impact and
environmental health impact. As such, the proposal would accord with the development
plan and is recommended for approval.
This item is before the Planning Committee as the applicant is Wokingham Borough
Council.

45

PLANNING STATUS
 Major development location
 Heathrow Aerodrome consultation zone
 Water utility consultation zone
 Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area – 5km zone
 Landscape character assessment zone
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions:
Conditions and Informatives:
Conditions:
Timescale
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
Approved details
2. This permission is in respect of the submitted application plans and drawings
numbered FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-(0004/P01; 0006/P02; 0008/P01; 0013/P01;
0014/P01; 0015/P01; and 0016/P01) received by the local planning authority on
18th June 2019 and drawing numbered FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0002/P02 received
by the local planning authority on 18th July 2019. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details unless other minor variations are
agreed in writing after the date of this permission and before implementation with
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby approved.
External Materials
3. Except where stated otherwise on the approved drawings and application form,
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
extension hereby permitted shall be of similar appearance to those used in the
existing building, unless other minor variations are agreed in writing after the date
of this permission and before implementation with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3.
Drainage Details
4. No construction shall take place until details of the proposed drainage system for
the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The details

46

shall include how the site currently drains and will be drained after proposed
development with consideration to SuDS.
Reason: This is to prevent increased flood risk from surface water run-off.
Relevant policy: NPPF Section 10 (Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change,
Flooding and Coastal Change), Core Strategy policy CP1 and Managing
Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC09 and CC10.
Landscape Details
5. Prior to the commencement of the development, full details of both hard and soft
landscape proposals shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. These details shall include means of enclosure including
boundary treatment, car parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and
circulation areas, hard surfacing materials and minor artefacts and structure (e.g.
furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting, external
services, etc). Soft landscaping details shall include planting plan, specification
(including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass
establishment), schedules of plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate, and implementation timetable.
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in
accordance with a timetable approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after planting, are removed,
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of species, size and number as originally approved
and permanently retained.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and Managing Development Delivery
Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21 (and TB06 for garden development)
Parking to be provided
6. No part of any building(s) hereby permitted shall be occupied or used until the
vehicle parking space has been provided in accordance with the approved plans.
The vehicle parking space shall be permanently maintained and remain available
for the parking of vehicles at all times.
Reason: To ensure adequate on-site parking provision in the interests of highway
safety, convenience and amenity.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
Hours of Work
7. No work relating to the development hereby approved, including works of
demolition or preparation prior to building operations, shall take place other than
between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank or National Holidays.
Reason: To protect the occupiers of neighbouring properties from noise and
disturbance outside the permitted hours during the construction period. Relevant

47

policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3 and Managing Development Delivery
Local Plan policy CC06.
Informatives:
1. The applicant is reminded that this approval is granted subject to conditions which
must be complied with prior to the development starting on site. Commencement
of the development without complying with the pre-commencement requirements
may be outside the terms of this permission and liable to enforcement action. The
information required should be formally submitted to the Council for consideration
with the relevant fee. Once the details have been approved in writing the
development should be carried out only in accordance with those details. If this is
not clear please contact the case officer to discuss.
2. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received.
This planning application has been the subject of positive and proactive
discussions with the applicant in terms of:
- a full pre-application process was undertaken by the applicant;
- amended plans being submitted by the applicant to overcome concerns relating
to highway concerns;
The decision to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF is considered to be a
positive outcome of these discussions.
PLANNING HISTORY
Application
Proposal
Number
F/2005/4254 Proposed change of use of infant school to B1 and D1
(accommodation for education, children’s and young
persons’ service with ancillary facilities), erection of a 2
storey addition to junior school and alterations to
internal roads, new access and widening to Budges
Gardens
F/2013/0867
Proposed erection of single storey extensions to
provide an additional teaching room and relocated
administration area, plus internal refurbishment.
152986
Full application for the proposed erection of detached
modular teaching and assessment and admin
accommodation including two single storey teaching
and training buildings, 1 teaching pod, storage shed
and a steel framed canopy and side panels with
associated hard and soft landscaping.
170423
Full application for the proposed installation of a single
storey re-locatable temporary classroom block, to
include entrance lobby, small group room and 2no
classrooms
171192
Application for submission of details to comply with the
following condition of planning consent 170423
(03/04/2017) 5. Protection of Trees

48

Decision &
Date
Approved on
31/08/2005

Approved on
26/06/2013
Approved on
13/01/2016

Approved on
03/04/2017

Approved on
27/04/2017

SUMMARY INFORMATION
Site Area
Previous land use(s) and floorspace(s)

5509 m2
Mixed use B1 (office): 481 m2 and D1
(school): 347 m2
D1 (school): 904 m2, B1 (office): 0 m2
+ 76 m2
+11 (for Foundry College)
44
No Change

Proposed floorspace of each use
Change in floorspace (+/-)
Number of jobs created/lost
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces
CONSULTATION RESPONSES
WBC Drainage

Recommended approval subject to
condition
No objections or comments
Recommended approval subject to
condition
Recommended approval subject to
condition

WBC Environmental Health
WBC Highways
WBC Tree & Landscape

REPRESENTATIONS
Town/Parish Council: Objected to the proposal on safety concerns associated with the
new access and loss of trees.
Local Members: Email received from Councillor Carl Doran enquiring about scheme of
delegation for this application.
Councillor Rachel Burgess commented on the application through the planning website
and objected to the proposal on the following highway safety grounds.
Neighbours: At the time of writing this report, 84 objections/ comments were received
from neighbours objecting to the scheme on following grounds:
Highway safety:










Proposed new access to Brambles Children’s Centre will be created using
existing access to Keep Hatch Primary and Ashridge Nursery. This is not a safe
proposition. Additional traffic to this area will cause major safety concerns for
children using the primary and nursery schools.
Existing access is narrow with narrow footway on one side. Additional traffic will
greatly impact the flow of traffic in this area.
Using existing school access to create new access for Foundry College is not
acceptable.
The access driveway is private and this should not be opened up for additional
vehicles.
Traffic flow into Bramble’s car park will be all through the day – thus increasing
safety concerns.
Additional vehicular fume will have detrimental health impact on children.
Children rush from school to the park opposite. The new access will be in direct
conflict with this movement.
Accident waiting to happen.

49




It is not clear how many parking spaces will be needed for Foundry College
staff. From the information provided in supporting statement, it appears that the
proposed parking will not be adequate for this site.
Traffic survey that was carried out to audit the number of cars using the site
took place on a Tuesday between 11:15 and 11:45am. This is not peak hour
and the numbers do not reflect the actual number of cars coming and going to
the area in school hours.

Officer’s note: A revised plan has been submitted by the applicant removing the new
access and the scheme now proposes to retain the existing parking and access
arrangements. As such, this addresses most of the traffic related concerns. As for
number of parking spaces, the proposal would not result in increase in number of staff
and student and hence parking requirements will not change from existing. Since the
scheme now proposes to retain the existing parking and access arrangements, there is
no objection to the scheme on highway safety grounds.
Trees and Landscape:




Loss of greenspace and relocating boundary closer to the neighbouring
residential properties would result in residential users further exposed to abusive
behaviour from pupils of Foundry College.
Loss of trees will have negative impact on the visual amenity of the area.
New fence will be closer to footpath reducing space to walk on.

Officer’s Note: WBC trees and landscape officer has assessed the proposed removal of
trees and relocation of fencing. Subject to condition securing acceptable plating scheme
in front of the new fencing, the T&L officer has not raised any objection to the proposal.
Behaviour of pupils of Foundry College:






Bad language and loud music is heard from Foundry College.
Children walking to Keep Hatch Primary, Ashridge Nursery and Brambles
Children’s centre will be subject to bad language and abuse by pupils of Foundry
College resulting in safeguarding concerns. There will be noise and disturbances
from the proposed building work.
Foundry College should not be located near other younger children’s facilities
since this will expose younger children to anti-social behaviour such as smoking,
bad language and abusive behaviour.
Proposed plans do not consider safety of younger children using the site.

Officer’s note: Bad language and abusive behaviour are not material considerations in
planning. However, the concern regarding noise of construction works is given due
consideration and a condition is proposed (condition 7) to restrict hours of operation to
minimise noise disturbances.
Other issues:



The site is not big enough for expansion and an alternative site for Foundry
College should be considered.
The site is not suitable for long term need of Foundry College since it is located
within a residential area closer to younger children’s facilities.

50




The proposed extensions would be overbearing to Ashridge Nursery.
The proposal does not conform to policies CP1 and CP3 of Wokingham Council.

Officer’s note: The proposal does not include additional pupil and staff intake. The
subject scheme proposes to provide adequate facilities for the current cohort of 47
pupils of Foundry College.
APPLICANTS POINTS








The proposal includes additional area needed for the school. This is achieved by
proposing two single storey extensions of limited scale and remodelling of existing
spaces.
Subdivision of the building between Foundry College and Brambles Children’s
Centre will provide safe environment for both institutions and help Foundry College
to safeguard their pupils.
A new central courtyard is proposed for medical/ vulnerable pupils who will benefit
from a calm and protected environment.
Relocation of fence to include part of existing amenity into Foundry College will
allow additional outdoor spaces that would be used by pupils.
Hedging with fencing is proposed along the entire boundary of Foundry College that
would limit interaction between pupils of Foundry College and other younger users
of various institutions around the site.
Internal layout is designed keeping various requirements of the school in mind.
Proposed front extension would act as a safe and secure entry to Foundry College.
The design is developed to provide a secure and safe environment for pupils of
Foundry College.

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy
Adopted Core Strategy
DPD 2010

Adopted Managing
Development Delivery
Local Plan 2014

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPG

National Planning Policy Guidance

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP2

Inclusive Communities

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP4

Infrastructure Requirements

CP7

Biodiversity

CP9

Scale and Location of Development Proposals

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

CC02

Development Limits

CC03

Green Infrastructure, Trees and Landscaping

CC04

Sustainable Design and Construction

CC06

Noise

CC07

Parking

CC09

Development and Flood Risk (from all sources)

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB21

Landscape Character

51

Supplementary
Planning Documents
(SPD)

BDG

Borough Design Guide

PLANNING ISSUES
Description of Development:
1. The proposal includes expansion of existing Foundry College by erecting two
single storey extensions – one to the front to create secure entry and other to the
rear to create additional activity space. These extensions would increase the
internal floor space by 76 sq.m. The proposal also includes change of use of part
of the existing building from WBC Office to Foundry College and internal
alterations to the building that would result in a net internal area of 904 sq.m for
Foundry College.
2. Moreover, the proposal includes relocation of the existing fence to incorporate
part of existing amenity green space within the playground of the school; erection
of secure fencing all around the Foundry College and associated hard and soft
landscaping.
Principle of Development:
3. The National Planning Policy Framework has an underlying presumption in
favour of sustainable development which is carried through to the local
Development Plan. Policy CC01 of the MDD Local Plan states that planning
applications that accord with the policies in the Development Plan for
Wokingham Borough will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The site is located within Major Development
Location of Wokingham and as such the development should be acceptable
subject to assessment of the impact of the development on the character of the
street scene, the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers and highway safety.
4. Core strategy policy CP2 states that planning permission will be granted for
proposals that address the requirements of, amongst other groups, children,
young people and families, including co-ordination of services to meet their
needs. Similarly, section 8 of NPPF 2018 gives great importance to providing
community services and paragraph 94 states that “it is important that a sufficient
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new
communities. Local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and
collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that will
widen choice in education”.
5. Foundry College is a Pupil Referral Unit that supports pupils who have been
permanently excluded or, who are at risk of permanent exclusion as well as
those with medical needs who cannot attend school regularly. The existing
school does not have adequate internal space and facilities required to support
the current cohort of 47 pupils. It is considered that proposed expansion of the
facility would be acceptable in principle subject to impact of the proposal on other
material considerations as detailed in this report.

52

Character of the Area:
6. Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy states that development must be appropriate in
terms of its scale, mass, layout, built form, height and character of the area and
must be of high quality design. Section R1 of the Borough Design Guide SPD
requires that development contribute positively towards and be compatible with
the historic or underlying character and quality of the local area.
7. Foundry College is located within a predominantly residential area of Budges
Green. It forms part of a larger group of institutional buildings including Bramble
Children’s Centre, Keep Hatch Primary School and Ashridge Nursery, all located
in the immediate neighbourhood and to the west and south-west sides of the
proposal site. The existing building on site is a large single storey building that is
currently houses 3 different uses – Brambles children Centre, Wokingham
Council’s Children Services and Neighbourhood Team as well as Foundry
College.
8. The proposal is for removal of the WBC Offices from the building and erect
extensions to the single storey building to create additional teaching and learning
spaces for Foundry College. The proposal will also subdivide the site into distinct
uses – Brambles Children’s Centre and Foundry College – both would fall within
use class D1 and as such will not have any significant impact on the character of
the existing building. The extensions are to be located to the front and rear of the
existing building and would be approximately 76 sq.m in footprint. It is also
proposed to permanently retain the modular classroom building sited near the
north western boundary with Budges Road. The scale, mass and height of the
modular building would remain similar to that previously approved under planning
permission 170423. It is noted that the proposal would increase additional builtup area within the site including a new permanent building. However, this will not
have any significant impact on the character of the area given the limited bulk
and height of these extensions. The extensions are designed with materials
distinctively different from the existing materials. Given their limited scale and
institutional nature of the existing building, these variations in materials will be
acceptable. The internal subdivision of the building would include erection of a
1.8m high fence at the north-west side of the building. This will not be readily
visible from public vantage points and as such would not appear intrusive to the
existing street scene.
9. The proposed change of use of amenity land located along the north-eastern and
north-western boundaries to play areas will include relocation of the existing
boundary treatment. The green amenity space borders the main Budges Green
and Budges Road drives along a public walkway, is readily visible on approach
from both directions on Budges Road and forms part of the neighbourhood’s
visual amenity. It also contributes to the largely open planned character of the
area. The existing boundary treatment is in the form of 2m high post and wire
fencing with dense hedging that forms part of the visual amenity of the area.
10. Some properties along Budges Road and Budges Green currently benefit from
high boundary treatment in the form of hedging and similar landscape details. No
hard edges in form of closed board fencing or brick walls are available within the
immediate neighbourhood. The proposal includes a 1m gap between the
relocated fencing and public footway which is proposed to incorporate new soft

53

landscape. This would compensate for the loss of visual amenity and reduce
impact on the character of the area. As such, subject to a pre-commencement
condition to secure acceptable landscape scheme for the 1m strip in front of the
fencing, the proposal is considered acceptable (Condition 5).
11. The proposal retains existing access and parking arrangements within the site.
This is acceptable and as such, the proposal is not considered to have any
significant impact on the character of the host building as well as general
character of the neighbourhood.
Residential Amenities:
12. Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy aims to protect neighbouring amenity and section
R23 of the Borough Design Guide SPD requires that extensions relate to
neighbouring properties.
13. Proposed extensions of the existing building will not have any significant impact
on neighbouring properties since the extensions would be single storey and would
maintain acceptable separation distances from the boundaries. Moreover, the
proposed boundary treatment all around the Foundry College will include
additional screening that will minimise any overlooking impact.
14. Objection was received from neighbouring properties on overbearing impact (on
Ashridge Nursery School) and anti-social behaviour including use of bad language
by Foundry College pupils. The proposed single storey rear extension would be
approximately 20m from the Ashridge Nursery and as such, is not considered to
have overbearing impact due to its limited height. Whilst it is acknowledged that
anti-social behaviour can cause annoyance, it is not a material consideration in
planning and as such is not given much weight for the purpose of subject
application.
Access and Movement:
15. The scheme initially included a new access for Brambles Children’s Centre
utilising existing access to Keep Hatch Primary School. Following public
consultation that received more than 80 objections to the new access, the
proposal has been revised to remove the new access and the existing access
and parking arrangement is now proposed to be retained. This is considered
acceptable since the proposal will not result in additional school places and
additional staff (11 no.) for the Foundry College will be replacing more than 30
existing staff of Council’s offices currently using the parking.
16. The proposal is considered to comply with Council’s parking requirements and
there are no other highway safety issues. WBC Highways Officer has assessed
the scheme and recommended approval subject to condition to permanently
retain the parking spaces (Condition 6).
Flooding and Drainage:
17. The proposal site is in Flood Zone 1 but close to Flood zone 2. There may be
increase in impermeable area as a result of the proposed extension and there is
no objection to the principle of the development. However, the application does

54

not include existing and proposed details. Because of this, the Council’s
Drainage Officer has recommended a pre-commencement condition to secure
drainage details in keeping with the Council’s Sustainable Urban Drainage
System (SuDS) requirements (Condition 4).
Landscape and Trees:
18. The proposal includes change of use of green amenity space to school play
areas that will involve removal of existing trees. The Arboricultural Survey
identifies these trees for removal citing arboricultural reasons of poor health.
Replacement tree planting is proposed which is acceptable. The Tree Protection
Plan submitted with the subject application is acceptable.
19. There are no objections to the new boundary treatment. However, limited details
have been provided with the subject application. The WBC Trees and Landscape
Officer has assessed the scheme and recommended approval subject to
condition to secure acceptable landscape details including replacement planting
and boundary treatment details (Condition 5). As such, there is no objection to
the proposal on Trees and Landscape grounds.
Public Sector Equality Duty
20. In determining this application the Committee is required to have regard to its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The duty is to have due regard to the
need (in discharging its functions) to:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not. This may include removing or minimising
disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are connected to that characteristic; taking steps to meet the special needs
of those with a protected characteristic; encouraging participation in public life (or
other areas where they are underrepresented) of people with a protected
characteristic(s).
c. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
21. The key equalities protected characteristics include age, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The Council should give greater
consideration to decisions that have a disproportionately adverse impact on a
protected characteristic and this impact may be unintentional. In appropriate
cases, this may involve an understanding of the practical impact on individuals so
affected by the decision. Regard should be had to the effect of mitigation taken
to reduce any adverse impact.
22. Foundry College is a pupil’s referral unit and the existing cohort includes pupils
who are excluded or at a risk of being excluded from mainstream schools due to
various reasons including health issues. The proposed extensions to Foundry
College will be fully accessible for disabled users and a proportion of parking
spaces will be provided for those with disabilities. A quiet area is designated to

55

support pupils requiring timeout for various reasons. Save for the potential
positive impact on those with disability as a protected characteristic there is no
indication or evidence (including from consultation on the application) that groups
sharing other protected characteristics will be disproportionately affected in an
adverse way by this planning application. In terms of the key equalities protected
characteristics it is considered there would be no significant adverse impacts as
a result of the development.
Other:
23. There are no objections to the proposal with regard to sustainable location;
environmental health; ecology; and archaeology. The subject scheme is
acceptable in all other aspects.
CONCLUSION
24. The proposed expansion of Foundry College including change of use from Office
(B1) to school (D1) to form an enlarged school; change of amenity land to school
play area; erection of single storey extensions; relocation of existing temporary
classrooms; and associated hard and soft landscape works are considered
acceptable and is recommended that the application is approved subject to
conditions included in this report.

56

Notes:

Existing pupil toilets to
be shared by primary
and medical vulnerable
pupils

Sensory room
added - linked to
primary teaching
accommodation

Ramp at 1:15

Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©

Existing primary classroom
reduced in size
H.L.

Windows added where only
high level windows are
currently provided

Pupil Toilets

7 m2

7 m2

Classroom - Primary

Hall space with movable
partition dividing the space
between secondary and
primary pupils

25

Current office kitchenette
converted into school
staffroom

H.L.

Pupil Toilets

+56.60
Meeting Room

Sensory Room
12

1 m2

Small
Group
Room

Classroom - Primary

+56.14

17 m2
9 m2

Existing plant and server
rooms retained

Proposed opening
within canopy
(above)

Storage rooms
remodelled into staff
shower / changing
facilities

PE / Drama - Primary

Classroom - M/V

32 m2

G/33

2 m2

41 m2

1 m2

15 m2

Large Spaces

Proposed Rooflights within
corridor
Classroom - M/V

Learning Resources

+56.35

G/31

Staff / Admin

33 m2

Storage

21 m2

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

Theraplay

Plant

10 m2

13 m2

Gym / Fitness

New build circulation, creating
a secure boundary to the
building

+56.01

20 m2

m2

Multi Purpose Hall
68 m2

18 m2

Proposed opening
within canopy
(above)

Circulation
Non-net

Staff Workroom
18

Plant
G/02
7 m2

Circulation
7 m2

Classroom - Maths
Server Room

Ramp at 1:20

H.L.

High Level Window

Teaching Store

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

Server Room

7 m2

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

Staffroom

21 m2

Classroom - Humanities
Circulation

15 m2

21 m2

Classroom - English

22 m2

55 m2

Circulation

G/17

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

21 m2

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT
2

Small
Group
Room

Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

15 m2

G/20
3 m2

Staff
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2

7 m2

Pupil Toilets

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

41 m2

Circulation

7 m2

3 m2

20 m2

Meeting Room

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

6 m2

Teaching Store

11 m2

Secure
Entrance

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

Pupil Toilets

2 m2

33 m2

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Classroom - M/V

G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

P01
Rev

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

2 m2

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

General Store

42 m2

Main Reception

5 m2

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

1 m2

Teaching Store

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

G/46

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

Teaching Store

25.03.19
Date

Revisions

+55.85

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX

Main Reception
42 m2

Meeting Room 1

New build entrance to provide
general office space, and a
secure lobby

13 m2

Windows added where only
high level windows are
currently provided
+55.65

H.L.

13 m2

Plant

G/02
7 m2

Plant

18 m2

Staff Workroom

G/03

9 m2

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

17 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

Reception

Counseling Room 1

39 m2

11 m2

Medical Room
15 m2

Training Room

Existing toilets retained

3 m2

3 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

+55.71

Cookery classroom to have
electrical hobs, with commercial
aesthetic (metal workshops etc.)

41 m2

10 m2

H.L.

DIY workshop for practical lessons
e.g. plumbing / plastering /
decorating

Circulation

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

12 m2

Accessible Toilet

G/21
3 m2

External covered
workshop for
mechanical skills e.g.
bicycle maintenance

10 m2

Low level wall between
outdoor workshop
and exterior

Finance Office

General Store

5 m2

Staff
Toilet

Staff Kitchen

22 m2

Store 2

Cleaners Store

G/20
3 m2

3 m2

5 m2

2

m2

Baby Change

Workshop - DIY

7 m2

Toilet

27 m2

9

Staff
Toilet

m2

Foundry College Main
Entrance

Exam
Store

Circulation

Creche

28

m2

3 m2

Classroom - Science

6 m2

3 m2

m2

2 m2

30

11 m2

5 m2

Store

9 m2

8 m2

m2

2

G/19
3 m2

Secure
Entrance

2 m2

Classroom - Cookery

5 m2

Toilet

Waiting
Area

Store

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

39 m2

Store 3

2 m2

Toilet

Science
Prep
Room

Office - SLT

Workshop - Outdoor

2 m2

G/46

G/18
3 m2
Pupil

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

62 m2

Pupil
Toilet

Family / Activity Room

55 m2

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

G/17

7 m2

8 m2

+55.89

+55.85

73 m2

Circulation

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

Circulation

Store

Full height wall

External covered
circulation

10 m2

Workshop - DIY

22 m2

57

Ramp at 1:15
Covered walkway between main building,
modular block and external covered
workshop

Theraplay

39 m2

H.L.

Circulation

H.L.

18 m2

3 m2

Workshop - Outdoor

7 m2

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

G/03

Legend - Other On Site Accom.
Other - Children's Centre

Window and door added
where only high level windows
are currently provided

22 m2

+55.61

5

Teaching Accommodation Medical Vulnerable

H.L.

Classroom - English

3

Teaching Accommodation Secondary

H.L.

32 m2

H.L.

2

Teaching Accommodation Primary

Circulation

+56.24

1

Legend - Foundry College Accom.

Teaching Store

Teaching Store

21 m2

0

5 m2

Teaching Store

Existing modular block converted into
intervention and counselling block external covered circulation between
buildings

21 m2

Circulation

1:100 m

34 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change
3 m2

Classroom - Humanities

3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

Classroom - M/V

2 m2

G/35

+55.89

Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.

20 m2

Staff
Toilet

m2

2 m2

Staffroom

Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.

H.L.

m2

Teaching Store

Gym / fitness suite for
secondary pupils with good
visual connection to hall
space

Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.

Windows added where only
high level windows are
currently provided

Counseling Room 1

Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

9 m2

Relocated Main Entrance to
Brambles Children's Centre

Proposed Ground
Floor Plan

Milk Kitchen Store 1
6 m2

5 m2

H.L.

Circulation
41 m2

Creche

Cleaners Store

27 m2

Store

3

m2

Family / Activity Room

Training Room

62 m2

7 m2

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0004

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:100

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

39 m2

Accessible Toilet
3 m2

Staff Kitchen
10 m2

Store

Store

Baby Change

2 m2

2 m2

5 m2

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

Brambles Children's Centre Ground Floor Plan (continued)
T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©

Existing
RWO
+59.14

Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.

Gutter

+59.07

+59.06

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.
Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.

SP

3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

1:100 m
0

1

2

3

5

SP
+60.42

SP

SP

SP
SP

SP

SP

Legend - Foundry College
Accommodation

SP

SP
Existing
RWO

SP
SP

SP
RL

Modular block rainwater outlet to
be move to the exterior of
proposed over-cladding

EO

Empty Opening (light
source)

RWO

Rainwater outlet

SP

Solar Panels
Existing Foundry College
Roof

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

Proposed Foundry College
Roof
Proposed Aluminium
capping in anthracite grey

RL

Brambles Children's Centre
Roof

Gutter

Existing
RWO

EO

SP

Gutter

+59.45

Modular Block
slanted roof

SP

Proposed Rainwater Channel

+59.15

Rooflight

Gutter

Proposed
RWO

Proposed
RWO

RL

Indicates direction of water
fall
Existing Gutter

59

EO

Proposed rainwater
outlet to be hidden by
column supporting roof
canopy structure

Proposed Rainwater Channel

Aluminium capping in anthracite grey

Proposed Rainwater Channel

EO

Proposed
RWO

Gutter

Proposed
RWO

Existing
RL

+58.63
Ventilation
Unit

Canopy
Workshop - DIY
roof

Ventilation
Unit

Ventilation
Unit

Roof pitch line

G
ut
te
r
P02
P01
Rev

+58.69
Proposed Rainwater Channel

Proposed Rainwater Channel

Proposed
RWO

Gutter

Gutter

Proposed roof drainage to
connect to existing rainwater
drainage system

Ventilation
Unit

10.05.2019
22.03.2019
Date

Revisions

AP
NR
By

AP
AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

Existing
RWO

Ventilation
Unit

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
PRELIMINARY ISSUE FOR COMMENT
Description

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX
Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

Proposed Roof Plan

SP
SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP
Existing
RWO

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0006

P02

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:100

NR

Date

Checked

27.03.2019

AP

SP
SP

SP

SP

Existing
RWO
Brambles Children's Centre Roof Plan (continued)

SP
SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850

SP

SP

SP

LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©
Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.

Existing pedestrian
access gate
Proposed mesh
fence with natural
screening to match
existing

Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.
Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.

Replanted
tree
Replanted
tree

Proposed mesh fence with
natural screening to match
existing

3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

Replanted
tree

1:200 m

High level wall for
outdoor workshop area
with lockable gate

Adjusted school site

Low level timber
wall

Pr
op
os
na ed
tu me
ra
l s sh
cr fen
ee c
nin e w
g ith

0

Bu
dge
's R
oad

2

4

6

10

Legend - Site Areas
Boundary of Client Ownership 23042m2
Boundary of Application Site 5506m2

Location of telecommunication
exchange

Proposed Brambles Children's Centre
Site - 1166m2 total

Location of existing
telegraph pole

Line of previous school boundary

Sheds

1

Proposed Foundry College Secure
Line - Site Area 2407m2

Location of existing access
gate converted to storage
site (relocated sheds)

Ashridge Nurse
ry

Covered area for
outdoor workshop
space

Covered External Circulation

Proposed Ashbridge Nursery site 47m2

Legend - Building Footprints

Relocated
Modular
(Foundry)

Proposed building footprint non-newbuild (Foundry College only) - 903m2
total

Relocated
shed

Adjusted
school site
Soft Play space

Proposed building footprint new-build
(Foundry College only) - 96m2 total

Location of proposed
emergency escape

Other Building Footprints on Brambles
Learning Centre - 384m2 total

Legend - Foundry College Site Uses
Net Area - Soft Play Space - 1100m2 total

Enclosed
Soft
Play space
(quiet)

Net Area - Hard Play / Social Space 285m2 total

Legend - Other Site Uses
Non-net - Car Parking - 1506m2 total
Non-net - Footpaths - 263m2 total

61

Pedestrian
access

Bin location

Location of existing
telegraph pole

Foundry College

Non-net - Green Space - 669m2 total

Legend - Boundary Treatment
Mesh Fence
Timber Fence
Bow Top Fence
Natural Screening

Brambles Children's Centre

P02
P01
Rev

CHANGES TO SITE BOUNDARY
PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

18.07.2019
25.03.19
Date

Revisions

NR
NR
By

AP
AP
Chk

Suitability

Relocated Main
Entrance Children's Centre

29

30

31

32

33

Budge's Garde
ns

Quiet courtyard
- for Medical /
Vulnerable
children and
staff

Existing hedge
with bow top fe
nce

Project

18
24
19

Client

Wokingham Borough
Council

34
Main Entrance Foundry College

25

1

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX

Title

35
6

12

20

26

2
7

13

21

27

8

14

22

28

Proposed Site Plan

Soft landscaping adjusted

Shared Car Park area - all site
users (44 spaces)

36
Pedestrian access

3
4
9

15

10

16

Vehicle access

5
37
11

17

38

39

41

42

43

44

23

Proposed mesh fence with
natural screening

Keep Hatch Primary School

40

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0002

P02

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:200

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

Sheffield bike
stands (9no.)

HLM
Architects
© HLMArchitects
Ground Floor
46 Loman Street
Southwark
London SE1 0EH

www.hlmarchitects.com
T. +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F. +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
london@hlmarchitects.com

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:

Proposed 2 metre mesh
fence with natural screening

Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©

Proposed 2 metre mesh fence
with natural screening

Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.
Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.
Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.
3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

+57.85

+57.61

1:100 m
0

1

2

3

1

4
18 m2

18 m2

Plant

G/02
7 m2

13 m2

3

Staff Workroom
Plant

7 m2

7 m2

Server Room

G/03

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

10 m2

9 m2

8 m2

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

Theraplay

Circulation

22 m2

Workshop - DIY

21 m2
21 m2

Classroom - Humanities

15 m2

Circulation

21 m2

Classroom - English

22 m2

Circulation

G/17

Small
Group
Room

2

2

55 m2 Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

G/20
3

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

15 m2

Staffm
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2

7 m2

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Circulation

Pupil Toilets

3 m2

20 m2

Meeting Room

2

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

6 m2

Teaching Store

11 m2

Secure
Entrance

1

7 m2

2 m2

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

33 m2

Classroom - M/V

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Existing hedge with 2 metre
bow top fence

Pupil Toilets

2 m2
G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

Teaching Store

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

41 m2

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

General Store

1 m2

2

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

42 m2

Main Reception

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

39 m2

Training Room

Teaching Store

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

10 m2

Staff Kitchen

G/46

41 m2

Circulation

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

Staffroom

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

3 m2

Cleaners Store

Counseling Room 1

Creche

5 m2

Baby Change

62 m2

Family / Activity Room

27 m2

2 m2

Store

3 m2

2 m2

Store

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

Store

(1) Proposed West Elevation

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

39 m2

Foundry College

Brambles Children's Centre

Workshop - Outdoor

3

Foundry College

5

4

Proposed 2 metre mesh
fence with natural screening

+58.60
+57.85

Foundry College

63

Brambles Children's Centre
(2) Proposed South Elevation

Proposed 2 metre mesh fence
with natural screening

Existing 2 metre bow top fence
with proposed natural screening

P01
Rev

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

25.03.2019
Date

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Revisions
Project

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX

+58.16
+57.62

Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Foundry College

Title

Brambles Children's Centre
(3) Proposed North Elevation

Proposed Site
Elevations
Modular Block outline
Proposed 2 metre mesh fence
with natural screening

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0008

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:100

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

+57.61

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850

Foundry College
(4) Proposed East Elevation

LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©
Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.
Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.

Proposed 2 metre
mesh fence with
natural screening
between Brambles
Children's Centre and
Foundry College

Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.

New window added
replacing the former
Brambles Children's
Centre main entrance

Velfac aluminium
curtain walling and
door with toughened
glass in anthracite
grey

Foundry College Logo
in anthracite grey

Acetylated Timber
cladding

Existing 2 metre bow
top fence with hedge
to remain

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

1:50 m
0

1

Plant

G/02
7 m2

13 m2

18 m2

Staff Workroom
Plant

7 m2

10 m2

Theraplay

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

7 m2

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

Server Room

G/03

9 m2

21 m2
21 m2

Classroom - Humanities

15 m2

Circulation

21 m2

Classroom - English

22 m2

55 m2

Circulation

G/17

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

Staffroom

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT

Small
Group
Room

2

2

Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

G/20
3

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2

7 m2

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Circulation

Pupil Toilets

3 m2

7 m2

2 m2

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

20 m2

Meeting Room

33 m2

11 m2

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

6 m2

Secure
Entrance

Teaching Store

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Classroom - M/V

G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

2 m2

Pupil Toilets

41 m2

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

General Store

1 m2

Teaching Store

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

42 m2

Main Reception

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

G/46

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

39 m2

Training Room

1

Circulation

8 m2

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

15 m2

Staffm
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

41 m2

Circulation

10 m2

Staff Kitchen

+57.85

18 m2

22 m2

Workshop - DIY

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

3 m2

Cleaners Store

Counseling Room 1

Creche

5 m2

Baby Change

62 m2

Family / Activity Room

27 m2

2 m2

Store

3 m2

2 m2

Store

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

Store

+58.60

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

39 m2

Workshop - Outdoor

2

2.5

1

2

Entrance
Brambles Children's
Centre

Linking Corridor

Classroom M/V

Foundry College

(1) Proposed South Elevation

65
P01
Rev

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

25.03.2019
Date

Revisions

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

Relocated Children's
Centre entrance

Brick upstand to
match existing

Proposed 2 metre
mesh fence with
natural screening

New windows added to
match existing

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

Velfac alumnium
window

Empty opening into Acetylated timber
entrance canopy area
cladding

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX
Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

Proposed Building
Elevations 1 of 4

+57.85

Staff Offices
Foundry College

Brambles Children's Centre

Reception and Administration

Entrance Canopy
Foundry College

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0013

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:50

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

(2) Proposed West Elevation
T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©
Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.
Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.

2 metre Mesh fence
with natural screening

Low level acetylated
timber wall
around workshop
space

Proposed Drainage
Pipe

High level
acetylated
timber wall for
outdoor
workshop area

Proposed
lockable door for
outdoor
workshop area

Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.

Acetylated timber
cladding

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

Velfac aluminium
window with
toughened glass

3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

1:50 m
0

1

2.5

3
18 m2

18 m2

Plant

G/02
7 m2

13 m2

4

Staff Workroom
Plant

7 m2

10 m2

8 m2

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

7 m2

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

Server Room

G/03

9 m2

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

Theraplay

Circulation

22 m2

Workshop - DIY

21 m2
21 m2

Classroom - Humanities

15 m2

Circulation

21 m2

Classroom - English

22 m2

55 m2

Circulation

G/17

Small
Group
Room

2

2

Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

G/20
3

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

15 m2

Staffm
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2

7 m2

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Circulation

Pupil Toilets

3 m2

20 m2

Meeting Room

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

Teaching Store

6 m2

Workshop - DIY

7 m2

2 m2

11 m2

Secure
Entrance

Outdoor Workshop Space

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

33 m2

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Classroom - M/V

G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

2 m2

Pupil Toilets

41 m2

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

General Store

1 m2

Teaching Store

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

42 m2

Main Reception

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

39 m2

Training Room

Teaching Store

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

10 m2

Staff Kitchen

G/46

41 m2

Circulation

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

Staffroom

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

3 m2

Cleaners Store

Counseling Room 1

Creche

5 m2

Baby Change

27 m2

2 m2

Store

3 m2

2 m2

Store

62 m2

Family / Activity Room

+57.61

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

Store

3

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

39 m2

Workshop - Outdoor

4

Secondary Teaching Spaces
Foundry College

(3) Proposed West Elevation

67
P01
Rev

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

25.03.2019
Date

Revisions

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

2 metre Mesh fence
with natural screening

Door added replacing existing
window to match existing

Proposed downpipe in
anthracite grey

Acetylated timber cladding

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

Velfac aluminium door
with toughened glass
added to existing
facade

High level wall
for outdoor
workshop area

Low level acetylated timber
wall around workshop space

Proposed 2 metre natural
screening added to existing bow
top fence

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX
Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

Proposed Building
+57.62Elevations 2 of 4

+58.16

Classroom - Primary

Staff room

PE Drama - Primary

Over-clad modular building
Foundry College

Canopy

Covered area for outdoor workshop space

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-AA-0014

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:50

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

(4) Proposed North Elevation
T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©
Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.
Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.
Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.
3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

1:50 m
0

1

Proposed 2 metre
mesh fence with
natural screening
18 m2

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

Plant

G/02
7 m2

13 m2

18 m2

Staff Workroom
Plant

7 m2

8 m2

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

7 m2

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

Server Room

G/03

9 m2

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

10 m2

22 m2

Theraplay

Circulation

Modular Block outline

Workshop - DIY

Acetylated timber
cladding

39 m2

Existing modular block
windows

5
Workshop - Outdoor

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

2.5

21 m2
21 m2

Classroom - Humanities

15 m2

Circulation

21 m2

Classroom - English

22 m2

55 m2

Circulation

G/17

Small
Group
Room

2

2

Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

G/20
3

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

15 m2

Staffm
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2

7 m2

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Circulation

Pupil Toilets

3 m2

7 m2

2 m2

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

20 m2

Meeting Room

33 m2

11 m2

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

6 m2

Secure
Entrance

Teaching Store

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Classroom - M/V

G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

2 m2

Pupil Toilets

41 m2

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

General Store

1 m2

Teaching Store

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

42 m2

Main Reception

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

39 m2

Training Room

Teaching Store

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

Cleaner's Store

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

10 m2

Staff Kitchen

G/46

41 m2

Circulation

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

Staffroom

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

3 m2

Cleaners Store

Counseling Room 1

Creche

5 m2

Baby Change

62 m2

Family / Activity Room

27 m2

2 m2

Store

3 m2

2 m2

Store

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

Store

5

+57.61

69

Staff Room

Gym / Fitness

Plant

Canopy

Over-clad modular building

Foundry College

(5) Proposed East Elevation
P01
Rev

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

25.03.2019
Date

Revisions

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX
Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

Proposed Building
Elevations 3 of 4
Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0015

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:50

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Notes:
Check all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing.
Report any discrepancies and omissions to HLM Architects.
This drawing is copyright ©
Design
Unless stated otherwise, the designs shown are subject to detailed site survey,
investigations, and legal definition, the CDM Regulations, and the comments and / or
approval of the various relevant Local Authority Officers, Statutory Undertakers, Fire Officers,
Engineers and the like. They are copyright, project specific and confidential and no part is to
be used or copied in any way without the express prior consent of HLM Architects.
Photocopied & Scanned Information
This drawing is based on photocopied / scanned information liable to distortion in scale.
Area Calculations
The areas shown are approximate only and have been measured off preliminary drawings as
the likely areas at the current state of design using the stated option from the Code of
Measuring Practice, 4th edition. RICS / ISVA. These may be affected by future buildings.
Take account of these factors before planning any financial or property development purpose
or strategy and seek confirmation of latest areas before decision making.
3rd-Party Information
This drawing includes information provided by independent surveyors and / or consultants, to
whom all queries shall be made. HLM Architects can accept no liability for its content or
accuracy.

Brick upstand to match
existing

Doors with toughened glass
added for courtyard access

New full height windows with toughened
glass added to match existing

1:50 m
0

1

2.5

18 m2

Counselling
Office /
Intervention
Room

Plant

G/02
7 m2

13 m2

18 m2

Staff Workroom
Plant

7 m2

8 m2

20 m2

3 m2

Teaching Store

Gym / Fitness

7 m2

30 m2

Classroom - Cookery

Server Room

G/03

9 m2

Workshop Store Cookery Pantry

10 m2

22 m2

Workshop - DIY

Theraplay

Circulation

39 m2

Workshop - Outdoor

21 m2
21 m2

Classroom - Humanities

15 m2

21 m2

Circulation

Classroom - English

22 m2

55 m2

Circulation

G/17

9 m2

2 m2

Toilet

2 m2

12 m2
2 m2

3 m2

7 m2
7 m2

5 m2

Staff Shower /
Changing

Pupil Toilets

Circulation

7

20 m2

Meeting Room

33 m2

11 m2

34 m2

Classroom - M/V

1 m2

6 m2

Secure
Entrance

Teaching Store

5 m2

General
Office /
Main
Reception

Waiting
Area

Classroom - M/V

G/31

10 m2

Headteacher's
Office

2 m2

Staff
Toilet

Accessible
Toilet / Wet
Change

G/35

1 m2

Teaching Store

Pupil Toilets

41 m2

32 m2

10 m2

Finance Office

Classroom - M/V

G/33

3 m2

3 m2

12 m2

Exam
Store

Accessib
le /
Visitor
Toilet

General Store

Teaching Store

Sensory Room

Teaching Store

25 m2

17 m2

73 m2

5 m2

5 m2

Store 3

Store 2

42 m2

Main Reception

Circulation

7 m2

Circulation

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

3 m2

39 m2

Training Room

7

Classroom - Primary

2 m2

2 m2

Toilet

Toilet

17 m2

Reception

Accessible Toilet

Cleaner's Store

G/46

Small
Group
Room

2

2

Pupil
Toilet

G/18

Staff
Toilet

G/20
3

3m
Pupil
Toilet

G/19
3 m2

15 m2

Staffm
Toilet

G/21
3 m2

3 m2

10 m2

Staff Kitchen

Cleaners Store

41 m2

Circulation

Medical Room

5 m2

9 m2

Classroom - Maths

9 m2

Science
Prep
Room

Staffroom

32 m2

PE / Drama - Primary

68 m2

28 m2

Classroom - Science

Multi Purpose Hall

11 m2

Office - SLT

13 m2

Meeting Room 1

6 m2

Milk Kitchen Store 1

Counseling Room 1

5 m2

Baby Change

27 m2

62 m2

Family / Activity Room

Creche

2 m2

Store

3 m2

2 m2

Store

Accessible Toilet

7 m2

Store

6

6

Small Group Room

Classroom - Primary

Existing Door

Linking Corridor
(section)

Classroom - M/V

Classroom - M/V

Foundry College

(6) Proposed Courtyard West Elevation

71
P01
Rev

PLANNING DRAWING ISSUE
Description

25.03.2019
Date

Revisions

NR
By

AP
Chk

Suitability

Project

Existing 2 metre mesh
fence with hedge

Acetylated timber
cladding

Velfac aluminium window
with toughened glass

Proposed drainage
pipe in anthracite grey

Foundry College,
Budge's Gardens
Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1PX

Aluminium capping in
anthracite grey

Client

Wokingham Borough
Council
Title

Proposed Building
Elevations 4 of 4

+58.21

Sensory Room (section)

Circulation (section)

Classroom - M/V

Linking Corridor
Foundry College

(7) Proposed Courtyard North Elevation

Circulation
(section)

General Store
(section)

Main Reception
(section)

Drawing No.

Revision

FND-HLM-00-00-DR-A-0016

P01

Scale @ A1

Drawn

1:50

NR

Date

Checked

25.03.2019

AP

GROUND FLOOR
46 LOMAN STREET
LONDON
SE1 0EH

Brambles Children's Centre

T: +44 (0) 20 7921 4800
F: +44 (0) 20 7921 4850
LONDON SHEFFIELD GLASGOW BELFAST CARDIFF MANCHESTER JOHANNESBURG ABU DHABI DUBAI

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 30.
Application
Number
191024
Applicant
Site Address

Expiry Date

Parish

Ward

EXT
Wokingham
Emmbrook
Bovis Homes
Land at Matthewsgreen Farm,
Matthewsgreen Road, Wokingham, RG41
1JX
Proposal
Application for approval of reserved matters pursuant to outline
planning permission (O/2014/2242). The reserved matters comprise
details of the local centre incorporating retail use on ground floor
and 16 dwellings on the upper floors, with associated parking and
landscaping. Details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale to
be determined.
Type
Reserved Matters
PS Category
1
Officer
Sophie Morris
Reason
for Major application
determination
by committee
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 14th August 2019
Assistant Director – Place Based Services

SUMMARY
The application site forms part of the overall Matthewsgreen Farm development site,
which comprises 34 hectares in total and situated approximately 2km to the northwest
of Wokingham town centre and south of the A329 (M). The application site sits within
the development Plan allocated North Wokingham Strategic Development Location
(SDL).
The principle of the development was established through the granting of Outline
planning permission in March 2015 (O/2014/2242) for approximately 760 dwellings, a
primary school, a neighbourhood centre, community facilities, a section of the Northern
Distributor Road and associated works including open space. At the time it determined
the planning application, WBC accepted and established the principle and quantum of
development on the site. WBC has already approved Reserved Matters for 597 of the
760 dwellings (phases 1, 2a, 2b, the majority of phases 3 and 4) and for the Northern
Distributor Road (NDR) running through the site. Reserved matters have also been
approved for the primary school and community centre.
This application seeks reserved matters approval in relation to the local centre serving
the development and local area. The proposal comprises 3 retail units at ground floor
level, with 16 residential units on the first and second floor. The application seeks
reserved matters approval in respect of appearance, design, layout, and landscaping.
The local centre will be positioned in the central area of the overall Matthewsgreen
development, on the north side of the NDR, and adjacent to the school and community
centre site, which will assist with the viability of the shop units. The outline consent
comprised mixed use development for the site (residential and retail) which included
uses within Class A (shops, financial and professional services, restaurants and cafes,
drinking establishments and hot food takeaways) or Class D1 (non-residential

73

institutions) on the ground floor. The type, scale and location of the retail on offer is
intended to serve the local needs and not serve as a destination shopping location. As a
result and owing to market conditions, the amount of retail floorspace being proposed
on the site has been reduced but is flexible and remains comparable to similar shopping
facilities and therefore should remain robust and viable going forward.
The submitted proposal is considered compatible with the design and appearance of the
wider development area, whilst providing a focal building within the central hub of the
site. The proposal accords with the general parameters set out under the outline
permission and the Council’s adopted policies and guidance in terms of scale, design
and appearance. The development would provide high quality development with
appropriate levels of parking and amenity for future occupiers.
This proposal forms part of a wider sustainable development that offers public benefit in
that it helps meet the needs of the community and delivers on Wokingham’s
development aspirations for the North Wokingham SDL. The application will deliver high
quality development in accordance with the Council’s spatial strategy and there are no
other material planning considerations of significant weight that would dictate that the
application should be refused. Officers are therefore recommending the application for
approval, subject to the conditions listed.

PLANNING STATUS
 Within North Wokingham Strategic Development Area
 7KM Thames Basin Heath SPA
 Archaeological Interest
 Flood Zone 1
 Minerals Consultation Zone
 Contaminated Land Zone
 Ground Water Protection Zone
 Landfill Gas Protection Zone
 Minerals Consultation Zone
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF Reserved Matters subject to the
following:
A. Completion of a Deed of Variation relating to the following:
1) Incorporating affordable rent within S106 affordable housing tenure mix;
B. Conditions and Informatives:
1. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to affect or vary the conditions
imposed by planning permission O/2014/2242, which conditions shall remain in
full force and effect save in so far as they are expressly affected or varied by this
permission.
2. This permission is in respect of plan no's listed below. The development hereby
permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and
documents listed unless otherwise agreed pursuant to the requirements of the

74

attached conditions or otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Proposed Elevations plan 18-1256-HT-LC-501 Rev F
Proposed Floor plans 18-1256-HT-LC-500 Rev F
Planting Plan TD922_01B
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
application form and associated details hereby approved.
Parking Management Strategy
3. Prior to the first occupation of the site, a Parking Management Strategy for the
management of the parking arrangements at the local centre shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The submitted Parking
Management Strategy shall include details to ensure that deliveries and servicing
to the site do not take place during school drop off or pick up times. The
management of the parking within the site shall be in accordance with the
approved details thereafter.
Reason: To avoid conflict between retail deliveries and school traffic and to
ensure satisfactory development in the interests of amenity and highway safety in
accordance with Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policies CP1, CP6, CP13
and CP21 and MDDLP policies CC07 and TB20.
4. No dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicular accesses, parking and turning
areas to serve it, including the unallocated spaces, have been provided in
accordance with the plans hereby approved. The vehicle parking and turning
spaces shall be retained and maintained in accordance with the approved details
and the parking spaces shall remain available for the parking of vehicles at all
times and the turning spaces shall not be used for any other purpose other than
vehicle turning.
Reason: To provide adequate off-street vehicle parking and turning space and to
allow vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in the interests of road
safety and convenience and providing a functional, accessible and safe
development and in the interests of amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy
CC07.
5. None of the retail units shall commence trading until such time that the local
centre and shared use parking with the school and community building as
indicated on the approved drawings has been laid out and opened to the public
unless an alternative temporary provision has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Council.
Reason: To provide adequate off-street vehicle parking in the interests of road
safety and convenience and providing a functional, accessible and safe
development and in the interests of amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy

75

policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy
CC07.
6. Prior to the commencement of the operational use of the retail units hereby
approved, details of a parking restriction scheme along Road 24, which could
include double yellow lining shall be submitted to the Council for written approval.
The scheme as approved shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details prior to commencement of the first retail use and shall be maintained
thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of road safety and convenience and providing a
functional, accessible and safe development and in the interests of amenity.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
7. Prior to first occupation of the residential units, details of electric vehicle charging
within the local centre car park shall be submitted to the Council for written
approval. The details as approved shall be installed prior to first occupation, and
shall be maintained thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Council.
Reason: In order to ensure the development contributes towards achieving a
sustainable transport system in accordance with Wokingham Borough Core
Strategy Policies CP1 and CP6, the Parking Standards Study within the Borough
Design Guide 2010 and the North Wokingham Development Location
Supplementary Planning Document (October 2011) and CC07 of the Managing
Development Delivery Local Plan (Feb 2014).
Retail units cycle parking
8. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the
proposed cycle parking for visitors to the retail shops shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Council. The cycle parking shall be provided in
accordance with the details of such hereby approved prior to first occupation and
shall be permanently retained thereafter in its approved form.
Reason: In order to ensure the development contributes towards achieving a
sustainable transport system and to provide parking for cycles in accordance with
Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP6, the Parking
Standards Study within the Borough Design Guide 2010 and the North
Wokingham Development Location Supplementary Planning Document (October
2011) and CC07 of the Managing Development Delivery Local Plan (Feb 2014).
Refuse and recycling
9. The internal and external spaces for the storage of refuse and recyclable
materials for the development hereby approved shall be provided prior to
occupation of the relevant building and retained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for the storage of
recyclables in accordance with Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policy CP1
and CC04 of the Managing Development Delivery Local Plan (Feb 2014), the
Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Document and

76

the North Wokingham Strategic Development Location Supplementary Planning
Document (October 2011).
Local Lettings Plan
10. Prior to occupation of the residential units, a Local lettings plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Council. The letting of the residential
units hereby approved shall be in accordance with the submitted details as
approved, unless any such other agreement is subsequently approved in writing
by the Council.
Reason: To ensure the residential units are made available at the earliest
opportunity to prioritised economically active households on the Housing
Register, in the interests of providing a balanced, mixed and sustainable
community on this development in accordance with Core Strategy Policies CP2,
CP5 and the adopted Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document
(July 2013).
Retail
11. The principal retail unit shall remain Class A1 (shop) and shall be permanently
retained as such thereafter.
Reason: To ensure the new residential communities are well served locally, to
promote sustainability and to reduce reliance on private car usage in accordance
with Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policies CP1, CP6, CP13 and CP20
and MDDLP policy CC07 and with the North Wokingham Strategic Development
Location Supplementary Planning Document.
Informatives:
1. This permission should be read in conjunction with the outline planning permission
and associated original Section 106 legal agreement and subsequent S106
agreement dated 15/08/2018.
2. You are informed that this permission here relates only to the Reserved Matters
submitted pursuant to condition 2 of the Outline Permission. It does not convey any
written approval from the Local Planning Authority as may be required for any other
of the conditions of the outline permission; details for which shall need to be
submitted separately to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
3. The applicant is advised that the Council seeks that employers or developers within
the borough commit to using local labour / contractors where possible. This should
include:
•
Advertisement of jobs within local recruitment agencies / job centres;
•
Recruitment and training of residents from the local area;
•
Seek tender of local suppliers or contractors for work.
4. The applicant is informed that parking will need to be restricted along the main
routes (Northern Distributor Road and bus route) and on turning heads.
5. Work on Highway - The Corporate Head of Environment at the Council Offices,
Shute End, Wokingham should be contacted for the approval of the access
construction details before any work is carried out within the highway. This planning
permission does NOT authorise the construction of such an access.

77

6. Mud on Road - Adequate precautions shall be taken during the construction period
to prevent the deposit of mud and similar debris on adjacent highways. For further
information contact Corporate Head of Environment on tel: 0118 974 6302.
7. Highway Adoption - If it is the developer’s intention to request the Council, as local
highway authority, to adopt the proposed access roads etc. as highway maintainable
at public expense, then full engineering details must be agreed with the Corporate
Head of Environment at the Council Offices, Shute End, Wokingham. The developer
is strongly advised not to commence development until such details have been
approved in writing and a legal agreement is made with the Council under S38 of the
Highways Act 1980.
8. Highway Management - Any works/events carried out either by, or at the behest of,
the developer, whether they are located on, or affecting a prospectively
maintainable highway, as defined under Section 87 of the New Roads and Street
Works Act 1991, or on or affecting the public highway, shall be coordinated under
the requirements of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 and the Traffic
management Act 2004 and licensed accordingly in order to secure the expeditious
movement of traffic by minimising disruption to users of the highway network in
Wokingham.
9. Utilities - Any works or events commissioned by the developer and particularly those
involving the connection of any utility to the site, shall be co–ordinated by them in
liaison with Wokingham Borough Council’s Street Works Team, (telephone 01189
746302). This must take place at least three month in advance of the works and
particularly to ensure that statutory undertaker connections/supplies to the site are
coordinated to take place wherever possible at the same time.
10. Noise - The attention of the applicant is drawn to the requirements of Section 60 of
the Control of Pollution Act 1974 in respect of the minimisation of noise on
construction and demolition sites. Application, under Section 61 of the Act, for prior
consent to the works, can be made to the Environmental Health and Licensing
Manager.
11. Parking restrictions including double yellow lining along the Northern Distributor
Road and Road 24 should be installed prior to operation of the retail units or
occupation of the residential units.

PLANNING HISTORY
Application Number Proposal

Decision

O/2014/2242

Approved March 2015

Outline application for a phased
development of up to 760 dwellings
including 60 units of assisted living
homes / older person
accommodation a local centre
(including retail) a primary school
community facilities and associated
areas of open space and drainage/

78

F/2014/1216

150093
152649
160765
162140
170618
162431
172766
172331

172751
181888

182385
190198
191026
191232

attenuation parking etc. Accesses
from Twyford Road, Matthewsgreen
Road and Toutley Road (Matters
reserved – layout, landscaping,
scale, appearance)
Old Forest Road SANG

Reserved Matters for Phase 1 (100
units)
Reserved Matters for NDR
Reserved Matters for Phase 2a (82
units)
Reserved Matters for Phase 2b (73
dwellings)
Reserved Matters for Phase 3 (74
dwellings)
Development Brief for school and
community facility
Submission of details for Road 24
Reserved Matters for Primary
School, Nursery and Community
Centre
Reserved Matters for Phase 4 (243
dwellings)
Reserved Matters incorporating a
revised layout and replan for part of
Phase 4 comprising an additional 5
units (to the 243 approved under
172751) and 8 dwellings in Phase 5
Development brief for the Local
Centre
West of Old Forest Road section of
NDR
Reserved matters for 4 units in
Phase 1b
Reserved matters for 9 units in
Phase 4

Approved
2014

September

Approved Oct 2015
Approved March 2016
Approved July 2016
Approved November
2016
Approved July 2017
Approved April 2017
Approved October 2018
Approved 14/02/2018

Approved 15/08/2018
Approved 11/12/18

Approved 14/02/19
Approved 09/05/19
Approved 11/07/19
Approved 23/07/19

SUMMARY INFORMATION
Residential units (all affordable)
Retail floor space
Previous land use
Proposed on-site parking spaces

16
518m2
Agriculture
11 Residential 11 Retail (including 2
disabled spaces)
46 spaces

Proposed shared use parking with
community centre car park

79

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
South East Water
Thames Water
Crime Prevention Design Officer
National Grid
SSE Power Distribution
Berkshire Fire and Rescue
Southern Gas Networks
WBC Biodiversity

No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received
No comments received

WBC Drainage
WBC Highways
WBC Tree & Landscape
WBC Education
WBC Public Rights of Way

No objection
No objection
No objection
No comments received
No comments received

REPRESENTATIONS
The below comments are those received following the initial application
consultation. Officer responses are provided at the end of all the comments
summarised below and addressed in detail later in the report:
Town/Parish Council: Object to the proposal on the following grounds:
 Four storey building higher than surrounding buildings;
 Potentially unsafe area at night behind the main building
 Inadequate landscaping details
 Only 15 spaces for 19 flats – because of this, parking will block roads
 Those not finding parking will cause problems by stopping on the NDR
Local Members: One objection received from Councillor Shepherd DuBey on the
following grounds:
 Building is too tall – no other buildings of that height in the area
 Insufficient parking for the flats and visitors to the shops
 Putting the car parking at the back of the building opens the car park area to
antisocial behaviour
Emmbrook Residents Association: Object to the scheme for the following reasons:
 Height of the building – the Outline Design and Access Statement states that no
building would exceed three storeys
 Car parking – inadequate provision for 19 units, which will lead to inappropriate
parking with residents using visitor spaces
 The amenities for residents are below those that would be provided for private
flats, the layout has been chosen to suit the retail units resulting in disjointed and
poor layouts and in some flats failing to meet space standards.
Neighbours: Consultation letters were sent to over 600 neighbouring properties. Six
letters of objection have been received in response, the contents of which are
summarised as follows:
 Not necessary for the development to have a 4th storey. This was not part of the
outline planning and not in keeping with other new buildings in the area; this
would result in an unsightly centre point within the development

80





Parking provision of 16 spaces for 19 flats is not sufficient and will result in cars
being parked awkwardly potentially making it dangerous for pedestrians and
drivers to access the site safely
Support the ERA consultation response with regards to concerns over height, car
parking and general standard
Objection on ground of traffic and too much construction work. Roads are already
too busy.

Officer comments on the issues raised within the consultation responses are as
follows:
 Height of building: this has been reduced from 4 to 3 storeys and is therefore
now in accordance with what was indicated on the outline heights parameter plan
and responds to the views set out above;
 Parking provision: the parking provision proposed for the residential units
complies with WBC parking standards. Accompanying information has
demonstrated that shared use parking for the retail units and the adjacent
school/community use would be acceptable (Transport, Highways and Parking
section of the report refers)
 The parking to the rear of the building will benefit from natural surveillance by
occupiers of the residential flats above. This arrangement is not uncommon for
apartment buildings and is in line with good urban design practices. No objection
has been raised by the Crime Prevention Design Officer.
 Inadequate landscaping details: The submitted landscaping details are
considered acceptable in the context of the proposed use of the site. WBC Trees
and Landscaping Officer has raised no objection in this respect.
 Amenities of occupiers: The sizes of the residential units comply with National
Standards, are considered to have an acceptable layout, and all would be
provided with a balcony as a form of external amenity space and are well served
by public amenity space locally.
 Concern on grounds of traffic and too much construction work: The
principle of this proposal is already established through the granting of the outline
permission where such considerations would have been assessed. The matters
for consideration under this application are for appearance, landscape, layout
and scale. The CEMP will address matters concerning construction processes.
Following amendments to the scheme being carried out, including the reduction in the
height of the building from four storeys to three, further consultations were sent out to
respondents who had initially objected to the scheme. The Emmbrook Residents
Association have sent in a further response, a summary of their comments are as
follows: (Officer comments in brackets)






Welcome the reduction in height of the building to three storeys;
Provision of 11 parking spaces for 16 flats is inadequate, more so than the
original proposal of 16 spaces for 19 flats; (Officer comment: The proposal
remains compliant with WBC parking standards, and there are no Highways
objections in this respect.)
Six of the two bed flats shown as being suitable to accommodate four people, will
increase the demand for car parking over and above that allowed for in WBC’s
parking calculator; (Officer comment as above)
Consider that the proposal therefore fails to conform to Policies CP6 (d), MDD
Policy CC07 and MDD TB07

81





The submitted Parking Demand Assessment does not consider the demand for
residential parking; (Officer comment: The residential parking provision is
proposed to be solely accommodated within the local centre car park, the
provision for which meets WBC parking standards, and therefore no further
assessment is considered necessary.)
Although the assessment concludes that the provision of 57 spaces would
adequately meet the parking demand based on the effects of cross visitation, it
does not take into account the spikes in demand that will be generated by the
community centre i.e. such as hosting events which could attract participants
and/or audiences of over 250 people from a far wider area than the current
development. The additional impact such activities could have on parking has not
been properly addressed. (Officer comment: The management of such events
should be suitably addressed through the requirement to submit a community
use scheme pursuant to condition 11 placed on the primary school and
community centre reserved matters application – para’s 52 and 53 of the below
report refers)

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP2

Inclusive Communities

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP4

Infrastructure Requirements

CP5

Housing mix, density and affordability

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP7

Biodiversity

CP8

Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

CP10

Improvements to the Strategic
Transport Network

CP13

Town Centres and Shopping

CP20

North Wokingham Strategic
Development Location

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

CC02

Development Limits

CC03

Green Infrastructure, Trees and
Landscaping

CC04

Sustainable Design and Construction

CC05

Renewable energy and decentralised
energy networks

CC06

Noise

CC07

Parking

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

82

CC08

Safeguarding alignments of the
Strategic Transport Network & Road
Infrastructure

CC09

Development and Flood Risk (from all
sources)

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB05

Housing Mix

TB06

Development of private residential
gardens

TB07

Internal Space standards

TB20

Service Arrangements and Deliveries
for Employment and Retail Use

TB21

Landscape Character

TB23

Biodiversity and Development

TB24

Designated Heritage Assets
Appendix 2 – Parking Standards

Supplementary Planning
Documents
(SPD)

BDG

Borough Design Guide – Section 4
DCLG – National Internal Space
Standards
North Wokingham Strategic
Development Location SPD adopted
October 2011.
Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions
SPD for the Strategic Development
Locations adopted October 2011.
Affordable Housing SPD adopted June
2011.
Sustainable Design and Construction
SPD adopted 2010.

PLANNING ISSUES
Application Site
1. The application site forms part of the Matthewsgreen Farm development site,
which is itself part of a larger area designated under the Wokingham Borough
Core Strategy as the North Wokingham Strategic Development Location (SDL).
The Matthewsgreen Farm site comprises approximately 34 hectares in total and
is situated approximately 2km to the northwest of Wokingham town centre and
south of the A329(M). The site is bounded to the south by Matthewsgreen Road,
by Toutley Road to the west, by Twyford Road to the east, and by the Ashridge
Stream watercourse to the north.
2. The site previously comprised mainly agricultural land, consisting of open fields,
ditches, hedgerows and a mixture of trees in terms of age and type. There is also

83

a small existing commercial operation located towards the southern boundary
along Matthewsgreen Road.
3. Outline planning permission for the phased delivery of the Matthewsgreen Farm
development (for approximately 760 dwellings and associated infrastructure) was
granted in 2015 under application O/2014/2242. Reserved matters planning
approval has subsequently been granted for phases 1, 2a, 2b, part of phase 3,
the majority of Phase 4, 8 units in Phase 5 and for the NDR. Reserved matters
approval has also been granted for the primary school and community centre. A
further reserved matters submission has recently been submitted which includes
the remainder of Phase 5, a replan of part of the already approved Phase 4 area,
along with proposals for dwellings located on land which was initially
safeguarded at the outline application stage for 60 units of extra care. At the time
of writing, the application is yet to be validated, and will go out to consultation
once it is fully registered.
4. Development is progressing apace and Phases 1 and 2a are complete with
occupations on both phases. Phases 2b, 3 and 4 are currently under
construction. The development is also served by a SANG provided to the
northern side of Old Forest Road which was granted full planning permission in
2014 and is open to the public.
Principle of development
5. The principle and indicative location of the local centre has been established by
outline planning permission ref: O/2014/2242. The outline permission was
subject to an Infrastructure Delivery Plan and S106 legal agreement, which
secured the coordinated delivery of the infrastructure necessary to support the
SDL wide development. This included requirements for on-site provision
(affordable housing, the NDR, the primary school, the community centre, the
local centre and the open spaces) together with contributions towards off-site
infrastructure and services such as roads, education, sports facilities and health
services. The Old Forest Road SANG, approved under application F/2014/1216,
is now open and has been constructed to serve the recreation requirements of
the development and thus mitigate its impact upon the Thames Basin Special
Protection Area.
6. Whilst detailed matters of layout, appearance, scale and landscaping were
reserved from consideration at the outline stage, the outline planning permission
establishes the broad parameters within which those matters need to be worked
up in detail for the purposes of the Reserved Matters application submissions. It
is important to note however that the parameter plans do not absolutely ‘fix’
matters of detailed design and that deviations from those plans may be accepted
under the Reserved Matters applications where the deviations do not
substantially alter the original planning permission approved and where the
impacts do not result in significant harm to the local area.
Application Proposals
7. This application seeks reserved matters approval in relation to the local centre,
the principle and indicative location for which was secured under the Outline
permission. The building will be mixed use, comprising retail units at ground floor

84

with residential flats on the first and second floors. Parking to serve the
residential units will be provided in a car park to the rear of the building. Part of
the parking provision for the retail units will also be provided at the rear of the
building, however, the overall parking strategy for the retail element is for shared
use of the car park associated with the adjacent school and community building.
This aspect of the application is discussed under the Highways section of the
report below.
8. The outline permission gives flexibility as to the type of uses permitted within the
ground floor units i.e. A class uses (shops, financial and professional services,
restaurants and cafes, drinking establishments and hot food takeaways) or D1
(non-residential institutions). Whilst at this point, the retail unit end users are not
confirmed, the applicant has, however, advised that a national retail provider has
an interest in occupying the larger unit for use as a retail food store (Class A1).
The proposed layout comprises one larger retail unit being around 386m2, with
two smaller units of approximately 70m2 and 62m2 respectively. The first and
second floors of the building would contain residential flats comprising 12x2bed
and 4 x1beds.
9. In accordance with Condition 2 of the outline permission, this RMA seeks
approval in relation to appearance, landscape, layout and scale.
10. The proposal has been amended since the initial submission, as it was originally
submitted as a part 3/part 4 storey building comprising 19 residential units.
However, a number of objections were received in relation to the height of the
building, which would have exceeded what was shown on the outline heights
parameters plan which indicated that no buildings across the site would exceed
three storeys. Officers were also concerned with the proposed height in respect
of how it would relate to the context of its immediate surroundings. The applicant
has therefore removed the 4th storey from the scheme, which also results in the
number of residential units reducing from 19 to 16. Vehicular access to the site
will be from ‘Road 24’ located immediately to the east of the site, the details for
which have already been approved and the road is partially constructed.
Reserved Matters - Detailed Design
11. Core Strategy Policies CP1 (Sustainable Development) and CP3 (General
Principles for Development) requires high quality design that respects its context.
This requirement is amplified by MDD LP Policies CC03 (Green Infrastructure,
Trees and Landscaping) and TB21 (Landscape Character) and the North
Wokingham SDL SPD.
Layout
12. The proposal involves a standalone block comprising three retail units at ground
level, and 12x2bed and 4x1bed apartments over the first and second floors,
associated landscaping and parking. The building would be positioned on the
north side of the NDR, at its junction with Road 24 and would partly front onto the
NDR, but with the longest elevation of its façade fronting onto Road 24, with a
small return section fronting the secondary access road into Phase 3 of the
development, which is accessed off Road 24. Parking would be provided to the
rear of the building (accessed from the side road located on Road 24). The

85

location of the building is in line with what was indicated on the outline
masterplan.
Retail provision layout:
13. Core Strategy (Policy CP13 and supporting text) and MDDLP (PolicyTB15) seek
to maintain a hierarchy of shopping provision to meet the needs of local residents
and anticipate the provision of new or enhanced local centres within the four
SDLs, in order to achieve sustainable patterns of development. In addition, both
the Infrastructure SPD and Core Strategy Policy CP20 refer to the need for
appropriate retail facilities to serve the SDL.
14. The outline permission S106 does not stipulate a specific floorspace requirement
for the local centre, however, Condition 11 of permission relating to the
submission of a development brief in connection with the local centre, required
details for the provision of at least 1000m2 for uses within Class A or D1 (with no
individual unit being larger than 450m2). The development brief submission was
accompanied by a marketing report and assessment of commercial space
allocation, which has also been submitted as part of this reserved matters
application. The report provides a review of recent retail market conditions in the
local area, and the consultancy firm appointed to undertake the assessment
contacted a number of major food retailers to seek feedback as to their likely
interest in the retail provision. All of the food retailers responded, however, only
two advised that they were currently in the market for new purpose built
premises. The others were either not acquiring new premises or wanted large
edge of town locations or considered they already had sufficient presence in the
local area.
15. Reference was also made in the marketing report to the nearest local centres,
these being located on Matthewsgreen Road/Clifton Rd and Ashridge Road,
stating that at the time of the report being written, there were vacant units in both
of these local centres, which was considered to be an indication of limited
demand. It would appear however, that at present, the units within both local
centres are occupied, although it is noted that a large proportion of uses in both
locations are for takeaways, and therefore mainly open in the evenings only.
16. Due to the proximity of the other local centres and current retail market
conditions, the recommendation within the marketing report was that a retail
provision of just over 500m2 would be appropriate in this location (comprising one
larger and two small units). The proposed layout of the scheme has therefore
been designed to reflect these recommendations. Officers consider the
conclusions of the report to be reasonable and are comparable to other similar
sized local neighbourhood centres. It is noted that retail provision has changed
significantly in recent years and the provision of local shops including
convenience shops has become less attractive and viable nationally. However
the provision in this instance should ensure the success and viability of the local
centre in the longer term as the offering is of an appropriate scale and flexible for
its location. It’s siting next to the main distributor road and adjacent to the school
and community centre should also assist with the viability of these units as it will
serve both local residents and passing trade. This is also taking into account the
supporting text of Policy CP20 which states that adequate facilities including
retail (within walking and cycle distance of residents) will be necessary in order to
ensure the sustainability of development at North Wokingham. It goes on to state

86

that this could be achieved by upgrading existing shopping parades or through
the provision of limited facilities within the site, but that proposals within the SDL
will need to demonstrate that they do not prejudice the achievement of a
sustainable solution to development, particularly regarding development in
Wokingham Town Centre.
17. It is therefore considered that the level of on-site retail provision as proposed is
acceptable and proportionate to the location, taking into consideration other
existing local retail facilities nearby. The proposal should ensure that the
everyday needs of the residents can be met, but would not be of such a size that
would be detrimental to the viability of the other local retail shops or Wokingham
Town Centre in accordance with the aims of Policy CP20.
18. At ground level, the proposal would provide 518m2 of retail floorspace, split
between three retail units. The submitted plans indicate the largest of the three
units would be approximately 386m2, the main frontage for which would be along
the east elevation of the building fronting Road 24, opposite the western
boundary of the school/community building site. This is the unit for which the
applicant has advised they have an interested food store retailer to take
occupation. The two smaller units of 62m2 and 70m2 respectively would provide
frontage onto the NDR.
19. The footprint of the proposed building is also similar to that shown on the outline
illustrative dwelling distribution plan, which is considered a further indication that
the retail floorspace as proposed, is appropriate to its location, and compatible
and proportionate to the scale of surrounding development across the
development site and wider area.
20. The ground floor retail area is designed so that the internal configuration is
flexible. Although three units are currently proposed, should market conditions
change, the larger unit could be sub-divided into smaller units, and likewise, the
smaller units could be amalgamated into one unit. This flexibility is important so
that the uses within the local centre can respond to changing market demands
quickly and help ensure the continued vitality and viability of the local centre. It is
therefore considered that the proposals would provide an acceptable level of
retail provision to serve the needs of local residents, in accordance with Core
Strategy Policies CP13, CP20 and MDDLP TB15.
21. The car park serving the residential units is located to the rear of the building and
some of the objections received referred to this, in terms of concerns regarding
anti-social behaviour due to the car park being at the rear of the building.
However, the layout has been designed in order for the building to provide an
active frontage onto the street, and the car park being located at the rear is not
considered unusual for such provision. The layout proposed is considered to be
in line with good urban design practices and ensures that the footpath and
amenity areas to the front are pedestrian friendly. This is especially important
given the shops’ location next to a primary school. Other residential blocks on the
wider development have parking areas located to the rear, and this is considered
acceptable where it is demonstrated that they are not totally enclosed and are
well overlooked by the dwellings that they serve, and therefore have the benefit
of natural surveillance. This would also be the case in this instance, whereby the
car park would be well lit and overlooked by a number of hallway and bedroom

87

windows in the residential flats. The site will also be overlooked by dwellings in
the adjacent Phase 3 area and be used by customers pulling up to undertake
shopping who are driving past. It should be noted that the Crime Prevention
Design Advisor has made no comments on the application, and officers consider
that the layout is acceptable in this respect.
Scale
22. The height and general footprint of the proposed building is in line with the outline
heights parameters plan which indicated heights of up to 3 storeys being located
along this part of the north side of the NDR. As mentioned previously, the initial
submission proposed a part 3/part 4 storey building, but was subsequently
amended to three storeys only following concerns being raised regarding the
proposed height. However, at three storeys as now proposed, the scale of the
building is considered acceptable, as both its height and layout are considered
compatible with the scale of the surrounding residential dwellings and apartment
blocks as well as the adjacent school/community use building.
Design and Appearance
23. The proposed design of the local centre building has a modern appearance with
a flat roof. The proposed façade comprises a predominantly brick elevation at
first and second floor levels, with small areas of render where sections of the
building are set back to allow for balconies. The brick elevations would also
comprise areas of protruding brick detail, which is considered to add visual
interest to the façade. The first and second floor elevations would also house a
number of balconies serving the residential flats. However, the number of
protruding balconies on the on the building is limited to eight in total, with the
remainder of the external amenity areas being provided within areas which would
be set flush with the main elevation of the building, but would provide an outdoor
amenity area nonetheless. This is considered appropriate on a building which will
be located in a key focal area of the wider site, helping to reduce visual clutter
which can often be associated with a large number of balconies protruding from a
building, but would still provide occupants with useable external amenity space.
24. The ground floor elevations fronting the NDR and Road 24 would comprise a
mixture of aluminium glazed curtain walling to the retail units, together with brick
and render. This is considered appropriate to the nature of the proposed ground
floor uses. There is space above the glazed façade for fascia signs associated
with the retail units. Such advertisements would be controlled under Class 5
‘Advertisements on Business Premises’ of The Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements) Regulations which permits a range of advertisements
relating to retail premises, yet places restrictions in respect of illumination and
sizes of projecting signs. It is considered that any proposed signage associated
with the retail units would be suitably controlled through the above regulations,
and no further conditions relating to this are considered necessary. Any signage
should be high quality in its design and appearance and should not be internally
lit but should comprise downlighters where this is considered appropriate.
25. It is considered the overall approach to the design and layout of the building and
external finishes would be compatible and complementary with the wider
development area as well as the adjacent phases, including the school and

88

community building, which will also be of a modern appearance. The proposed
materials are considered to be reflective of those used on both the more
traditionally designed buildings as well as the modern and therefore appropriate
to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. Samples of the
proposed materials to be used are required to be submitted for approval under
condition 5 of the outline permission. The proposal is therefore considered to
accord with Policies CP1 and CP3 in this respect.
Affordable Housing, Dwelling Mix and Standard of Accommodation
26. MDD policy TB05 (Housing Mix) requires that residential development should
provide an appropriate density and mix of accommodation reflecting the
character of the area. The affordable housing delivery requirements of the
development were established at the time of the outline planning permission
which requires an overall 35% affordable provision, with this being achieved by
either a 22% provision on site and a commuted sum towards off-site provision (in
the event that the Council did not require 60 units of extra care housing), or a
30% provision on site and a lesser commuted sum towards off-site provision in
the event that the extra care units were required.
27. After the outline permission was granted, and in accordance with the
requirements of the S106, WBC confirmed to the applicant that the 60 units of
extra care would be required. However, given the time that has elapsed, that
position has subsequently changed and the Council no longer have an identified
need for such provision on this site. As such, the current S106 onsite affordable
housing provision is required to be 22% across the whole Matthewsgreen
development (with a contribution in lieu of the further 13%). The current level of
on-site affordable housing provision approved through the reserved matters has
increased and to date stands at 24% (144 affordable units out of 597 site wide
units approved so far).
28. The residential accommodation located on the first and second floors of the local
centre building would be wholly affordable housing (affordable rent), in line with
the outline indicative dwelling distribution plan, and if approved, would result in
the on-site provision of affordable housing rising to 160 units out of the Section
106 requirement of 168 units. The remainder of the affordable housing units are
expected to be provided within the residual Phase 3 area, and in the Phase 4
area which was originally proposed as land for the extra care units.
29. Whilst the number of affordable units as proposed is in accordance with the
S106, the units are proposed with a tenure of affordable rent which is different to
the current S106 affordable housing tenure mix. The principle of this has
however, been agreed in consultation with WBC Housing team, subject to a
condition requiring a local lettings plan to be submitted and agreed (condition
10). The tenure of affordable rent forms part of the council’s policy on affordable
housing tenure and has been included on other SDL sites such as Montague
Park and would be offered to working professionals/families on the housing
register. The introduction of this proposed tenure would help provide a good
range of housing in this area, allowing greater access to affordable homes. This
would need to be secured through a Deed of Variation, and this forms part of the
recommendation for this application.

89

30. Introducing the tenure of affordable rent within this proposal has been discussed
in conjunction with the discussions relating to increasing the overall on-site
affordable housing provision. The existing S106 agreement secured a 70/30 split
between social rented units and shared ownership and the level of social rented
units approved to date through the reserved matters approvals, stand at 57% (95
units) out of the overall required affordable housing provision of 168 units. WBC
Housing Team have advised that as part of any future agreements relating to an
increase of on-site affordable housing provision, they would not wish to see the
level of social rented units on the site fall below 50%. It should be noted that the
proposal to introduce affordable rent as the tenure for the local centre would not
result in such provision falling below 50%. Whilst the overall social rented
provision would reduce from the originally agreed S106, it is considered that this
would not outweigh the benefit of increasing the level of on-site affordable
housing as well as the range of affordable housing tenure available.
31. As such, the tenure of affordable rent which is being proposed is considered
acceptable in this instance. Such provision would be secured through an
associated Deed of Variation to the currently agreed S106 and the
recommendation of this application therefore reflects this.
Borough Design and National Space Standards
32. From 1 October 2015 the internal space standards set out in MDDLP Policy
TB07: Internal Space Standards, the Borough Design Guide and the Affordable
Housing SPD were superseded by the Technical housing standards – nationally
described space standard, which establishes minimum gross internal floor areas
and storage requirements based on the number of bedrooms, occupants and
storeys.
33. The proposed residential units have been designed to accord with the above
referenced National Space Standards: 39m2 gross internal area for a onebedroom, one person flat; 50m2, for a one-bedroom, two-person flat; 61m2 for a
two-bedroom, three-person flat and 70m2 for a 2bed, four person flat. One of the
objections raised by the Emmbrook Resident’s Association at the consultation
stage referred to some of the units not meeting WBC internal space standards.
However, all units would comply with National Standards referred to above. In
addition, the dwellings are required to be constructed to achieve appropriate
internal ambient noise levels which will be assessed under a separate conditions
application pursuant to condition 51 of the outline consent.
34. As the residential element of this proposal comprises flats, individual amenity
space provision is proposed by way of balconies to the units. These are either
provided as a protruding balcony, or as an external area set flush with the
building line. The building itself will be located close to the large open streamside
park located at the end of Road 24, as well as the nearby local and
neighbourhood play areas (LEAP and NEAP), and it is therefore considered that
the occupants of the units would also have good access to external areas of
open space provision in the wider development site. It is therefore considered
that the occupants would have acceptable levels of residential amenities in this
respect.

90

35. It is therefore considered the proposal will provide good levels of amenity for
future occupants, compatible with the overall mix, balance and quality of dwelling
types across the site. This will ensure that the development is sustainable in
meeting the housing needs of the community. The development is therefore
considered to accord with the relevant policies of the development plan in this
regard.
Neighbouring Residential Amenity
36. Core Strategy policy CP3 requires that new development should be of a high
quality of design that does not cause detriment to the amenities of adjoining land
users. Separation standards for new residential development are set out in
section 4.7 of the Borough Design Guide.
37. The positioning of the building on the site is such that it is sufficiently distant from
currently approved dwellings/buildings within the wider Matthewsgreen area and
would not introduce unacceptable relationships of overlooking and loss of
outlook, daylight, sunlight or privacy. The closest residential dwellings to the local
centre will be those located within the adjacent Phase 3 area, but which are yet
to receive reserved matters approval. The Phase 3 area immediately to the north
and west of the local centre was taken out of the Phase 3 submission in order to
ensure that adequate space had been safeguarded for the provision of the local
centre. Separation distances to these dwellings will therefore be assessed when
the reserved matters for the remaining dwellings in Phase 3 are submitted.
38. Noise, disturbance and inconvenience during the construction period will be
managed and minimised as far as is reasonable through good practice and
through the existing conditions of the outline consent which require the
submission (for the Council’s approval) of a Construction Environmental
Management Plan and which restrict the hours of construction activity. These
matters therefore do not fall for consideration under this Reserved Matters
planning application.
Trees, Landscaping and Open Space
39. Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP3 require a high quality design that respects
its context. This requirement is amplified by MDDLP Policies CC03 and TB21.
The soft landscaping strategy proposed for the setting of the local centre building
includes the provision of low level shrubs and hedges in appropriate spaces to
the front of the retail units facing the NDR, along with a tree lined frontage to the
building’s main elevation along Rd 24. This would provide a continuation of the
boulevard style tree planting which is already in place along the NDR. Benches
and smaller planters are proposed to be positioned in between the trees, which
would help to provide an attractive public realm in this area. A small planted area
with two further benches would also be provided on the western edge of the site,
which would provide an attractive area for staff or visitors to the shops to sit.
40. There are no existing trees or hedges located on this part of the site and it is
considered that the soft landscape proposals associated with the building are
acceptable and appropriate in the context of the nature of the land use on this
part of the site. Further details of the hard landscaping proposals will be
submitted for approval under Outline Conditions 13 and 14.

91

Ecology and Biodiversity
41. Core Strategy Policy CP7, carried forward by MDD LP Policy TB23, requires
appropriate protection of species and habitats of conservation value. Design
Principle 1b (i-ii) is concerned with protection of ecological habitat and
biodiversity features, together with mitigation of any impacts that do arise.
42. The principles of ecological protection for the development were established
under the indicative plans and strategies of the outline consent. Subject to the
implementation of the various strategies, this reserved matters submission would
have no significant impact upon ecology. Detailed matters of such in relation to
this Phase will be agreed and formally secured pursuant to the relevant
conditions of the outline consent.
Transport, Highways and Parking
Local centre parking
43. Parking associated with the retail element of the scheme is partly proposed on
site, within the car park located at the rear of the building. However, the proposed
provision in this area for the retail uses is limited to 11 spaces (including 2
disabled badge holder spaces). The remainder of the parking requirement for the
retail uses is proposed within the shared use car park which will be located within
the school/community centre site adjacent to the local centre.
44. The principle of this shared use parking has been anticipated since the outline
application stage, in that there would need to be shared use parking for users of
the community centre, school drop off and retail uses, as there is likely to be
cross utilisation of all these uses considering their juxtaposition to each other.
This situation is not unusual and a similar arrangement has been approved within
the South Wokingham SDL at Montague Park and at other comparable shopping
parades across the country. It should be noted that the local centre is primarily
intended to serve the new residents and therefore residents are within easy
walking distance to the units and the local area remains well connected. The
scale of the units means that those customers visiting the shops by car are likely
to be those dropping off / picking up at the school or community facility or
passing trade along the NDR and therefore relate to quick shopping trips. Given
the scale of the retail units, that is, it will not be a destination shopping location,
the level and type of parking required can be more flexible and should be shared
with other uses.
45. The car park approved as part of the adjacent school and community use is
proposed to be split into two areas, one area being allocated solely for staff
parking (to be controlled through a barrier system) and the other area being for
users of the community centre and as a school drop off facility, comprising 46
spaces and a more informal drop off zone. The assessment of that application
was that the car park designated for the latter use was considered to provide a
satisfactory level of parking provision in respect of the two uses on that site. As it
has always been acknowledged that there would be cross utilisation of the
various uses in the vicinity of the local centre, i.e. between users of the spaces
within the school/community car park and those visiting the local retail facilities
within the local centre, the current application is accompanied by a Parking

92

Demand Assessment to demonstrate that such an arrangement would be able to
be satisfactorily accommodated across the two sites.
46. It is acknowledged within the assessment that when considered on their
individual merits against the requirements of WBC’s Parking Standards for the
proposed uses, the combined parking requirement for the retail and community
centre use would be 77 spaces. However, as proposed, the community centre
parking and local centre retail parking would provide 57 spaces. The parking
demand assessment therefore uses TRICS data for comparable retail units,
community facilities and primary schools, these being the three main destinations
that will be visited by people using the car park - to calculate peak arrival times,
dwell times and therefore, parking demand for each of the uses.
47. Peak demand for the car park will be at school drop-off and collection times: i.e.
between 08:00 – 09:00 and 15:00 – 16:00.
48. The assessment has been carried out using an average dwell time of 30 minutes,
which is considered reasonable and robust for the A Class uses (taking into
account that approximately 75% of the retail floorspace is likely to be occupied by
a convenience store which will generate a high number of vehicular trips but with
a short dwell time of only 5-10 minutes). On their own, the A Class units are likely
to generate a maximum parking demand of around 33 spaces, with a demand of
around 3 spaces between 08:00 – 09:00 and 11 spaces between 15:00 – 16:00
(i.e. school drop off / pick up times). The peak demand for the retail use would be
between 16:00-17:00.
49. Activities at community centres do not generally start before 09:00. Peak use is
likely to be by after school groups between 15:00 and 17:00 and between 17:30
until and 22:00 (condition 13 of reserved matters approval 172331 requires hours
of operation to be approved). Applying an average dwell time of one hour, this
indicates a maximum parking demand is likely to be around 13 vehicles, with
minimal parking demand of 5 and 7 spaces for the periods 08:00 –09:00 and
15:00 – 16:00 respectively (this does not make any allowance for the fact that a
proportion of the vehicles arriving may just be dropping off e.g. taking children to
clubs).
50. However, in addition, parking capacity will be required to cater for the use as a
school drop-off and collection point. The school may eventually expand to two
forms of entry with up to 450 pupils, 26 nursery pupils as well as staff. When
fully occupied, this would potentially generate a maximum of parking demand of
around 42 spaces based on a 30 minute dwell time. This is also considered to
be a robust calculation as it does not take into account the 35 on-site school staff
parking spaces. Other factors which are likely to reduce demand are car sharing
with siblings or friends, staggered school hours for different age groups, and
breakfast and afterschool clubs. Furthermore, there will be excellent pedestrian
accessibility for those living within the wider Matthewsgreen development, all
parts of which are within a short walk of the local centre on safe user friendly
paths. This approach is designed to encourage people to walk or cycle whenever
possible rather than use their cars for short trips. Also both the school and
community use operator will be required to submit an updated travel plan within 6
months of commencement of the uses (as required by Conditions 12 and 13 of
reserved matters approval 172331). It is expected that those families living

93

within the new development, and other nearby new development sites within the
SDL will walk or cycle to drop-off and collect children rather than drive.
51. Therefore, peak demand would be between 15:00-16:00 when the hourly parking
demand generated would be 21 car parking spaces for the retail element,10 for
the community facility and 21 for the school; 52 in total. Allowing for there being
some crossover between these three uses, and most likely a quicker turnover
time, the proposed provision of 57 spaces is considered acceptable.
52. It is noted that the Emmbrook Residents Association have commented that whilst
it may be the case that parking demand would be lowered by the effects of crossvisitation, the report does not take into account the spikes in demand which could
be generated by the community centre when it holds events which could
accommodate in the region of 250 people from a wider area.
53. Whilst the submitted report does not address this, it does, however, assess the
likely parking demand generated by day to day activities which will take place
across the two sites. It is acknowledged that there may be occasions whereby a
particular event being held would generate demand for additional parking
capacity, however, it is considered that the condition 11 placed on the reserved
matters for the school and community site relating to the submission of a
community use scheme would ensure that any such anticipated events are
appropriately managed, which would include parking provision. It is likely that out
of school hours, at weekends, and during school holidays, the school staff car
park could be used in conjunction with any large events proposed to be held,
providing an extra 23 spaces whilst the school remains as a 1FE and 35 spaces
in the event that it expands to a 2FE.
54. It is noted that there appears to be an expectation that people will always drive to
the local shops, schools and community centre, however this is not the approach
being promoted in these larger developments. Alternative sustainable methods of
travel, walking and cycling, are being encouraged and built into the design to try
and reduce the reliance on the private car, especially for short trips and hence
traffic congestion and improve health. As such given the above and the scale and
type of units that are likely to be located in this location, it is considered that the
level of parking being provided is appropriate and does not need to be increased.
Notwithstanding the above, a condition is recommended requiring the provision
of a parking restriction scheme along Road 24 to be submitted to and approved
by WBC, in order to ensure that visitors to the local centre and school and
community site are not able to informally park along the access road into the
sites or along the NDR. Condition 6 refers.
Residential Parking
55. In line with Core Strategy Policy CP6 and MDD DPD Policy CC07, the residential
element of the proposal will incorporate parking provision within the car park
located to the rear of the block and would have a total of 11 unallocated spaces
which complies with WBC parking standards. A condition is recommended
requiring the submission of a parking management strategy, which will detail how
the residential parking spaces are secured and separated from the retail spaces
(which is likely to be through the use of an electronic barrier system). Comments
were received at the consultation stage in respect of the parking provision for the

94

residential units, in that it was considered that the level of provision is not
sufficient. However, due to the nature of the tenure of the units being provided,
the level of provision accords with WBC parking standards and is considered
acceptable. The communal parking area would be overlooked by the residential
units and would therefore offer natural surveillance and security.
56. Tracking information has been provided to demonstrate an acceptable layout of
the car park. Information has also been provided in respect of the proposed
service bay located on the road access from Rd 24. A refuse vehicle will be able
to collect waste from the development in accordance with WBC guidance.
57. In line with our emerging policy on electric vehicle charging points, a condition
has been included to provide details of such provision (condition 7).
Cycle Parking
58. The Council’s standards, as currently set out in MDDLP Appendix 2 requires the
provision of at least one cycle space for dwellings with three or fewer habitable
rooms, two spaces for dwellings with four or five habitable rooms and three cycle
spaces for larger dwellings. Designated cycle stores are proposed in order to
accommodate the cycle parking provision for both the dwellings and also for the
cycle parking associated with the retail unit staff. The submitted plans
demonstrate acceptable provision for the level of cycle parking in this respect.
The proposed cycle parking provision for both the residential flats and staff of the
retail units is therefore considered acceptable, and in accordance with WBC’s
cycle parking standards.
59. Cycle parking provision is also required for use by visitors to the retail uses. The
submitted plans indicate the proposed location of such provision, however,
further details will need to be submitted to ensure the appropriate level and
nature of provision, in accordance with WBC cycle parking standards. Condition
8 therefore requires such details to be submitted for approval.
Flooding and Drainage
60. Core Strategy Policy CP1 and MDDLP Policies CC09 and CC10 establish that
new development should avoid increasing and where possible reduce flood risk
(from all sources) by managing surface water in a sustainable manner. This part
of the site is within flood zone 1 which is the lowest level of flood risk.
61. WBCs Flood Risk and Drainage Advisor has reviewed the drainage details
submitted in support of this application and is satisfied that the proposals fit
within the site-wide drainage provision, the details for which would need to be
agreed under a separate conditions applications submission pursuant to
conditions 38 and 39 of the outline application.
Land Contamination
62. The site was previously in agricultural use and the initial desk top and field
evaluation survey concluded that the site is low risk in terms of land
contamination. Should any unexpected contamination be discovered during
construction, this will be considered and mitigated pursuant to the requirements

95

of conditions 14 and 15 of the outline permission, and do not need further
consideration under this Reserved Matters Planning Application.
Noise and Odour
63. Core Strategy Policy CP1, Sustainable Development and MDDLP Policy CC06,
Noise direct development away from areas where noise would impact upon
amenity and require mitigation where noise cannot be completely avoided.
64. Condition 51 of the outline application requires the submission of mitigation
schemes for internal and external noise before commencement of development
at each phase so suitable mitigation measures can be agreed at that stage. For
example mitigation is likely to include triple glazing along the NDR frontage.
65. Policy CP1 also requires emission of pollutants to be minimised and the high
quality of the environment to be maintained. As previously mentioned the outline
permission gave flexibility as to the nature of uses within the local centre which
could include uses within use classes A1-A5 and D1, which have the potential to
cause a nuisance due to noise and odours. These matters were considered at
the outline stage and conditions 52 and 53 of the outline permission are
concerned with mitigating impact of such commercial uses on the amenity of the
surroundings. These conditions place controls on noise generated by plant and
equipment and also require the submission of details relating to any proposed air
handling plant / flues, chillers or other similar services; the proposed number and
location of such plant; acoustic specifications; intended operating times.
66. These conditions will protect the amenity of nearby residents, including those
living within the mixed use building.
Sustainable Design and Construction
67. Core Strategy Policy CP1 requires development to contribute towards the goal of
achieving zero carbon development by including on-site renewable energy
features and minimising energy and water consumption. MDD DPD policies
CC04, CC05 and the Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary
Planning Document (May 2010) also emphasise this.
68. Condition 44 on the outline permission required the development to achieve a
minimum code level 4 for Sustainable Homes or the equivalent code at the time
of construction. However, the Government has implemented a new approach for
the setting of technical standards for new housing. This has rationalised the preexisting and many differing standards into a simpler, streamlined system. The
Government set out its policy on the application of these standards in decisiontaking and plan-making in a written Ministerial Statement. The statement
withdrew the Code for Sustainable Homes and as such, WBC can no longer
apply the requirement to build to Code Levels as a condition to planning
permission. However, Part L of Building Regs effectively requires the equivalent
energy efficiency as Code Level 4.
69. Condition 45 on the outline requires the submission of details relating to how the
development will seek to achieve a minimum reduction of 10% of total energy
consumption through either on-site renewable energy generation or fabric first
approach. Details submitted in this regard for other phases on the site have

96

proposed a fabric first strategy being adopted in respect of achieving a reduction
in energy consumption. Such an approach is therefore also anticipated for this
proposal, and further details in this regard will be expected to be submitted for
approval pursuant to condition 45. These matters therefore do not need further
consideration under this Reserved Matters planning application.
Impact on Listed Buildings and Heritage
70. Policy TB24 of the MDD sets out that the Borough Council will conserve and
seek the enhancement of designated heritage assets in the Borough and their
settings. There are no designated or undesignated heritage assets within the
site. Furthermore, it was established at the outline application stage that the
development, subject to the land use distribution and height parameters
approved at that time and brought forward here, would not have a detrimental
impact upon the special interest or setting of any neighbouring Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas. There is nothing within the current proposal that would
alter that conclusion.
Archaeology
71. In terms of archaeology, results of archaeological trial trenching do not highlight
any areas of archaeological potential in relation to the application site. WBC
Officers therefore accept Berkshire Archaeology’s advice that no further
archaeological work is required within the site. This has been confirmed through
submission of details pursuant to condition 50 of the outline application.
Public Sector Equality Duty
72. In determining this application the Committee is required to have regard to its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The duty is to have due regard to the
need (in discharging its functions) to:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not. This may include removing or minimising
disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are connected to that characteristic; taking steps to meet the special needs
of those with a protected characteristic; encouraging participation in public life (or
other areas where they are underrepresented) of people with a protected
characteristic(s).
c. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
73. The key equalities protected characteristics include age, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The Council should give greater
consideration to decisions that have a disproportionately adverse impact on a
protected characteristic and this impact may be unintentional. In appropriate
cases, this may involve an understanding of the practical impact on individuals so
affected by the decision. Regard should be had to the effect of mitigation taken
to reduce any adverse impact.

97

CONCLUSION
This reserved matters proposal for the local centre does not substantially deviate from
the principles and parameters established by the outline planning permission, and is
compatible with the design and appearance of development already permitted on the
wider Matthewsgreen development and accords with adopted policies and standards.
This is a sustainable development that offers substantial public benefit in meeting the
needs of the local community and delivering on Wokingham’s development aspirations
for the North Wokingham SDL. The application will deliver high quality development in
accordance with the Council’s spatial strategy and there are no other material planning
considerations of significant weight, such as impact upon amenity, appearance etc. that
would dictate that the application should nevertheless be refused. The application is
therefore being recommended for approval, subject to the conditions listed and
associated Deed of Variation.

Enclosures:
1) Site location plan; Floor plans; Elevations plan; Landscape plan
2) Wokingham Town Council comments

98

T4

T5

T8

T4
T9

UT

LE

Y R
O

AD

T3
TO

T3
14A

P402

8

P402

T10

7
OF

O
R
A
M
E

P408

L

A

M

O
R
A
ALF

P408

L CAGE
RETAI

T2

S

RESID
CYCLE ENTIA
STOREL
[16 spaces
18.5m ]
²

OE

360

L

360 L
L

360 L

360

ATM

360 L

360 L
360 L

360 L
360

L

RESID

360 L
360 L

REFUENTIAL
COMP SE
OUND
23.1m²

IL UNIT
PLANT
1
30.4m
²

360

RETA

L

P408

B
16

360 L

RETAI
BOH/SL UNIT
TORE 1
150.2m
²

RETAI
L
(REFU BOH
SE)
360

L

RETAI

L UNIT
61.8m
2
²

RETA

RETAI

IL UNIT
70m²
3

L UNIT
235.0m
1
²

P408
P408

360 L

2BH-A

L
360

Carpor
t

3+
P30

6+
30

6+

5
5

5

6+
30

5

2+

6+

30
6+

8

Carport

6+

8

306+

30

P303+

Carpor
t

AIL
235. UNIT 1
0m²

7

2+
40

3P
30

8

6+
30

6+

30

0
+3

P303+

40

RET

4+

6+

2+

Carport

SHL2

SHL2

SHL4

RET

9

30
6+

SHL3

16B

4

4

7

B

SHL3

16

8

7

Ca
rp

ort

8

3LHS

4

P

3LHS

SHL3

4

03

+3

SHL2

7

6+

3LHS

40

SHL4

9

AIL
U
61.8 NIT 2
m²

Carpor
t

30

6+

30

P302+

Carport

6+

30

P302+

Carpor
t

3+

0
P3

30

4

8

6+
30

4+
40

40

4

7

7

6+
30

3

AIL
U
70m NIT 3
²

7

30
6+

ATM

L

AIL
U
PLAN NIT 1
30.4 T
m²

RET

L

360

360

L

360

L

360

L

360

L

360

L

RET
AI
BOH L UNIT
/STO
1
R
150.
2m² E

L3

SH

4+
40

30

6+

30

P303+

360

L

L3
SH

4No. Sheffield Stands
[8 Cycles]

14

RES
IDEN
REF TIAL
COM USE
PO
23.1 UND
m²

360

6+
30

L3
SH

F+
1H

40
F+

1H

40

+
06

RET

11

L3
SH

6+
30

'Hit & Miss' Perimeter
Fencing To Retail Plant And
Residential Refuse
Compound

2+

50

P303+

L

GE

9

360

SALES

GARA

2+

9

L

50

5

360

7

Externally located
Public ATM Terminal

7

L

L3

360

8

SH

L

F+

1H

40

+

HF

1
40

11

L

*
L
zis fae
b ot se
ifnoc e

L CAG

T11

RET
AI
(REF L BOH
USE
)

360

ction

L3

L

360

D00

SH

99

360

Colle

ES

fuse

RET
AI

F

RES
CYC IDENTI
AL
LE
[16 sp STOR
E
ac
18.5 es]
m²

D00

& Re

14

O

Barrier Arm Access Control
(residents only)

ding

9

M

Permanent Fixed
Traffic Control Bollards

T10

n-loa

2BH-A

.demr

A

E

O

2BH-A

to be confirmed.

R

ing/U

A

A

2BH-A

Leaf sizes

M

L
R

2BH-A

*

Load

OE

O

ALF

2BH-A

8
8

Ca

5
8

8

7

8

SHL2

9

SHL3

rp
ort

SHL2

SHL2

8

8

5

SHL2

9

5

41

9
9

SHL2

9

14

9
9

14

9

5
9
41

5
4

14

15

5
5

7

B61

14

SH

L2
SH

L2

L2

SH

RE

RO

9

EN

L3

SG

9

EW

L2

SH

TH

SH

5

AT

14

M

AD

9

SH

L2

5

SH
SH

4

SH

L2

L2

5

7

SH

4

16
B

L2

5

L2

5

SH

SH
L3

3L
8

HS
4L

7
N

R

O

8

AD

11
11

E

8

7

L2

8

11

SH
L2

SH

11

E

L3

R

SH

G

L3

S

SH

W

SH
L2

E

SH
L3

SH

L3

HS

TH

7

AT

15

11

SH
L3

L2

M

8
8

TH

W

S

G

R

8

11

E

14

AT

14

M

11

T18

12
E

E

N

R

O

AD

LOCATION PLAN @1:2000
SCALE BAR 1:2000

0

40

100

200

N

T11

D
C
B
A

16-07-2019
08-05-2019
24-04-2019
26-03-2019

Rev

Date

ELEVATIONS UPDATED TO BH COMMENTS
PUBLIC ENTRANCE TO RU1 RE-LOCATED
REVISED TO MCC SPECIFICATION
ISSUED FOR PLANNING
Amendment

RFT
RFT
RFT
RFT
Initials

Project:

MATTHEWS GREEN, WOKINGHAM
PHASE 4f

F+

Client:

BOVIS HOMES (SOUTHERN COUNTIES)
+
HF

1

40

Drawing:

L3

SH

LOCAL CENTRE (RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL)
PROPOSED SITE/BLOCK PLAN & LOCATION PLAN
SH

2+
50

L3

Drawing no:

Rev:

18-1256-400

D

SH
L3

6+

SITE PLAN / BLOCK PLAN @1:500

30

2+
50

Scale@A1:

Date:

FEB 2019

Drawn:

Checked:

YC

FINC Architects Ltd
61 New London Road
Chelmsford,
Essex
CM2 0ND
T +44 (0)1245 933988
www.fincarchitects.com

20

50

N

Disclaimer:

10

RFT

1:500 / 1:2000

SCALE BAR 1:500

0

PLANNING

4

H
01

All dimensions and measurements to be checked on site.
© FINC Architects Limited holds the copyright to all the information contained within this
document and their written consent must be obtained before copying or using the data other than
for the purpose it was originally supplied.

This page is intentionally left blank

A

E

M OR A F L

O

OR

AF

O

EM

LA

KITCHEN /
DINING
BEDROOM 2

F/F
2 Seat Settee

RETAIL UNIT 3
70m²

2 Seat Settee

LOUNGE

BATHROOM
BEDROOM 1

360 L

360 L

360 L

360 L

360 L

STORE

360 L

360 L

360 L

2 Seat Settee

360 L

RETAIL BOH
(REFUSE)

360 L

360 L

P-801
71.8m²
360 L

RETAIL UNIT 2
61.8m²

KITCHEN / DINING

RESIDENTIAL
CYCLE STORE
[16 spaces]
25m²

STORE
BEDROOM 2

F/F

KITCHEN /
DINING

LOUNGE

LOUNGE
2 Seat Settee

HALLWAY

F/F

3 Seat Settee

360 L

360 L

VOID TO BIN STORE
(OPEN ROOF)

HALLWAY
BALCONY

2 Seat Settee

360 L

RESIDENTIAL
REFUSE
COMPOUND
23.1m²

P-802
50.7m²

HALLWAY

P-808
61.8m²

BEDROOM 1
BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

BATHROOM
STORE

VOID TO
RETAIL PLANT
(OPEN ROOF)

RETAIL UNIT 1
PLANT
30.4m²

P-804
76.0m²
BEDROOM 2

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

STORE

BATHROOM

P-807
75.2m²

HALLWAY

P-803
75.2m²

HALLWAY

P-805
74.1m²

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 2

P-806
48.3m²

STORE

STORE
HALLWAY

HALLWAY

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

HALLWAY
BATHROOM

F/F

101

F/F
F/F

STORE

RETAIL UNIT 1
BOH/STORE
150.2m²

RETAIL UNIT 1
235.0m²

F/F

F/F

STORE

KITCHEN /
DINING

BEDROOM 1

KITCHEN /
DINING

KITCHEN /
DINING

BEDROOM 1
KITCHEN /
DINING

BEDROOM 1

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 1
3 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

BALCONY

BALCONY

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

ATM

2 Seat Settee

DINING/LOUNGE

BALCONY

First Floor Plan
Ground Floor Plan

KITCHEN /
DINING
BEDROOM 2

F/F
2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

LOUNGE

BATHROOM
BEDROOM 1

STORE

HALLWAY
BALCONY

2 Seat Settee

P-809
71.5m²

KITCHEN / DINING

STORE
BEDROOM 2

F/F

KITCHEN /
DINING

LOUNGE

LOUNGE
2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

HALLWAY

F/F

3 Seat Settee

P-810
50.7m²

HALLWAY

P-816
61.8m²

BEDROOM 1
BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

BATHROOM
STORE

N

SCALE BAR 1:100

5

0

P-812
76.4m²
BEDROOM 2

BATHROOM

HALLWAY

STORE

BATHROOM

P-815
75.2m²

HALLWAY

P-811
75.2m²

24-07-2019

E
D
C
B
A

23-07-2019
16-07-2019
08-05-2019
24-04-2019
26-03-2019

Rev

Date

P-813
74.1m²

BEDROOM 2
BATHROOM

F

BEDROOM 2

P-814
48.3m²

STORE

STORE

BEDROOM 2

HALLWAY

HALLWAY

HALLWAY

BATHROOM

10

BALCONY ADDED TO 1ST & 2ND FLOOR
CS
1100L BIN REMOVED FROM RETAIL REFUSE AREA
RESIDENTIAL CYCLE STORE ENLARGED
PLANT ACCESS REVISED
RFT
ELEVATIONS UPDATED TO BH COMMENTS
RFT
PUBLIC ENTRANCE TO RU1 RE-LOCATED
RFT
REVISED TO MCC SPECIFICATION
RFT
ISSUED FOR PLANNING
RFT
Amendment

Initials

BATHROOM

Project:

F/F
F/F
F/F

F/F

STORE
KITCHEN /
DINING

MATTHEWS GREEN, WOKINGHAM

STORE

BEDROOM 1

KITCHEN /
DINING

PHASE 4f

KITCHEN /
DINING

BEDROOM 1
KITCHEN /
DINING

Client:

KITCHEN

BOVIS HOMES (SOUTHERN COUNTIES)

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 1

PLANNING

F /F

BEDROOM 1

Drawing:

3 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

LOCAL CENTRE (RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL)
PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

2 Seat Settee

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

LOUNGE

BALCONY

BALCONY

Drawing no:

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

2 Seat Settee

DINING/LOUNGE

Rev:

18-1256-HT-LC-500

BALCONY

Scale@A0:

Date:

FEB 2019

Drawn:

F
RFT

Checked:

YC

1:100 / AS NOTED

Roof Plan
Disclaimer:

Second Floor Plan

FINC Architects Ltd
61 New London Road
Chelmsford,
Essex
CM2 0ND
T +44 (0)1245 933988
www.fincarchitects.com

All dimensions and measurements to be checked on site.
© FINC Architects Limited holds the copyright to all the information contained within this
document and their written consent must be obtained before copying or using the data other than
for the purpose it was originally supplied.
Do not scale from this drawing.

This page is intentionally left blank

PROTRUDING BRICK
DETAIL - WEATHERED
RED FACING BRICK

MID GREY PVC WINDOWS
[COLOUR TO MATCH GROUND FLOOR]

MID GREY PVC WINDOWS
[COLOUR TO MATCH GROUND
FLOOR]

GALVANIZED STEEL
CANTILEVERED
BALCONIES
(COLOURED TO
MATCH WINDOWS)
PROTRUDING BRICK
DETAIL - WEATHERED
RED FACING BRICK

GALVANIZED STEEL
CANTILEVERED BALCONIES
(COLOURED TO MATCH
WINDOWS)

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

FULL HEIGHT
SIGNAGE

WHITE RENDER

ATM

FULL HEIGHT
SIGNAGE

IVORY CAST STONE

IVORY CAST STONE

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

MID GREY PPC ALUMINUM
CURTAIN WALL SYSTEM
[GROUND FLOOR ENTRY
DOORS & WINDOWS]

FULL HEIGHT
SIGNAGE

EXTERNALLY LOCATED PUBLIC ATM TERMINAL
WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

RETAIL UNIT 3 ENTRANCE

RETAIL UNIT 1 ENTRANCE

PRINCIPAL WALL MOUNTED SIGNAGE

RETAIL UNIT 2 ENTRANCE

Side Elevation 1 (South)

Front Elevation (East)

MID GREY CAPPING
PROFILE TO MATCH
WINDOW COLOUR

103

MID GREY PVC WINDOWS
[COLOUR TO MATCH GROUND
FLOOR]

PROTRUDING BRICK
DETAIL - WEATHERED
RED FACING BRICK

MID GREY PVC WINDOWS
[COLOUR TO MATCH GROUND
FLOOR]

GALVANIZED STEEL
CANTILEVERED
BALCONIES
(COLOURED TO
MATCH WINDOWS)

PROTRUDING BRICK
DETAIL - WEATHERED
RED FACING BRICK

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK

IVORY CAST STONE

IVORY CAST STONE

WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK
WEATHERED RED FACING BRICK
PPC ALUMINUM CURTAIN WALL
SYSTEM [GROUND FLOOR
ENTRY DOORS & WINDOWS]

FULL HEIGHT
SIGNAGE

RETAIL PLANT ROOM
(OPEN ROOF WITH HIT AND
MISS PERIMETER FENCING)

Rear Elevation (West)

Side Elevation 2 (North)

SCALE BAR 1:100

0

5
F

23-07-2019

E
D
C
B
A

23-07-2019
16-07-2019
08-05-2019
24-04-2019
26-03-2019

Rev

Date

10

BALCONY ADDED ON REAR ELEVATION
INTERNAL COURTYARD ELEVATION ADDED
WEST ELEVATION REVISED
ELEVATIONS UPDATED TO BH COMMENTS
PUBLIC ENTRANCE TO RU1 RE-LOCATED
REVISED TO MCC SPECIFICATION
ISSUED FOR PLANNING
Amendment

CS
RFT
RFT
RFT
RFT
Initials

Project:

MATTHEWS GREEN, WOKINGHAM
PHASE 4f
Client:

PLANNING

BOVIS HOMES (SOUTHERN COUNTIES)
Drawing:

LOCAL CENTRE (RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL)
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS & MATERIALS
Drawing no:

Rev:

18-1256-HT-LC-501
Scale@A1:

Date:

FEB 2019

Drawn:

RFT

Checked:

YC

FINC Architects Ltd
61 New London Road
Chelmsford,
Essex
CM2 0ND
T +44 (0)1245 933988
www.fincarchitects.com

Disclaimer:

Internal Courtyard Elevation (North)

1:100

F

All dimensions and measurements to be checked on site.
© FINC Architects Limited holds the copyright to all the information contained within this
document and their written consent must be obtained before copying or using the data other than
for the purpose it was originally supplied.
Do not scale from this drawing.

This page is intentionally left blank

© Floyd Matcham (Dorset) Ltd 2019

SOFT LANDSCAPE WORKS SPECIFICATION
40 No. Cotoneaster conspicuus 'Decorus'

THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED BY ELECTRONIC
MEANS.

PREPARATION
SUBSOIL SURFACE PREPARATION Loosening: - Light and non-cohesive subsoils: When ground conditions are reasonably
dry, loosen thoroughly to a depth of 300 mm. - Stiff clay and cohesive subsoils: When ground conditions are reasonably
dry, loosen thoroughly to a depth of 450 mm.

1 No. Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'
31 No. Pachysandra terminalis 'Green Carpet'

SHOULD THE SCALE MEASUREMENTS BE TAKEN BY MEANS
OTHER THAN ELECTRONIC (e.g. FROM A PRINTED COPY),
THE FOLLOWING MUST BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION
BEFORE SCALING IS UNDERTAKEN:
1. ENSURE THAT THE COPY HAS BEEN PRINTED/PLOTTED
ON THE STATED SHEET SIZE WITH THE PLOTTING SCALE
SET TO A CORRECT RATIO

IMPORTED TOPSOIL (TO BS 3882) Provide to fill planting beds Grade: To BS 3882, Multi Purpose Grade. Source: Submit
proposals. Submit: Declaration of analysis including information detailing each of the relevant parameters given in BS
3882, clause 6 and table 2.

14 No. Lonicera nitida 'May Green'
OE
MR
O
A

L

NOTE:

FA

18 No.Ilex crenata 'Fastigiata'

2. ENSURE THAT AN ADEQUATE ALLOWANCE (DEPENDANT
ON THE STATED SCALE) IS MADE FOR THE INEVITABLE
DISTORTIONS INTRODUCED BY PLOTTING/PRINTING AND
COPYING PROCESSES

A

A

LF

R

O

M

E

O

1 No. Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'

24 No. Euonymus jap. 'Green Rocket'

SPREADING TOPSOIL Layers: - Depth (maximum): 150 mm. - Gently firm each layer before spreading the next. Depths
after firming and settlement (minimum): 450 mm for shrub planting and 150mm for lawn Crumb structure: Do not
compact topsoil. Preserve a friable texture of separate visible crumbs wherever possible.

30 No. Choisya 'White Dazzler'
1 No. Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'
25 No. Euonymus jap. 'Green Rocket'

2 No. Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'

FINISHED LEVELS OF TOPSOIL AFTER SETTLEMENT Above adjoining paving or kerbs: 20 mm. Shrub areas: Higher than
adjoining grass areas by 25 mm. Within root spread of existing trees: Unchanged. Adjoining soil areas: Marry in.
Thickness of mulch: Included.

1 No. Corylus colurna

TIMES OF YEAR FOR PLANTING Deciduous trees and shrubs: Late October to late March. Conifers and evergreens:
September/ October or April/ May. Herbaceous plants : September/ October or March/ April. Container grown
plants: At any time if ground and weather conditions are favourable. Ensure that adequate watering and weed
control is provided.

Planting Schedule

CLIMATIC CONDITIONS General: Carry out the work while soil and weather conditions are suitable. Do not plant during
periods of frost or strong winds.

1 No. Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'
29 No. Cotoneaster franchetii

PLANTING SHRUBS & TREES
1 No. Corylus colurna

1 No. Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'
64 No. Cotoneaster franchetii
28 No. Berberis thunbergii 'Red Chief'

1 No. Corylus colurna

STANDARD : The National Plant Specification
Plant Stock: Materially undamaged, sturdy, healthy and vigorous of good shape and without elongated shoots.
Hardiness: Grown in a suitable environment and hardened off.
Health: Free from pests, diseases, discoloration, weeds and physiological disorders.
Root system and condition: Balanced with branch system.
Plant species: true to name and native species to be of local provenance as defined in the National Plant
Specification.
PLANT HANDLING, STORAGE TRANSPORT AND PLANTING
To CPSE 'Handling and establishing landscape plants' standard. Protect plants from frost and handle plants with care.
Protect from mechanical damage and do not subject to
shock, e.g. by dropping from a vehicle. Planting: Upright or well balanced with best side to front.

1 No. Corylus colurna

Garden
See Planting Detail below

105

8 No. Caryopteris clandon. 'Heavenly Blue'
7 No. Rosmarinus officinalis 'Severn Sea'
16 No. Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote'
5 No. Phlomis fruticosa
5 No. Cistus corbariensis
11 No. Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote'
5 No. Caryopteris clandon. 'Heavenly Blue'

1 No. Corylus colurna

1 No. Corylus colurna

11 No. Stachys byzantina 'Silver Carpet'
22 No. Rosmarinus officinalis 'Severn Sea'
21 No. Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote'

Existing tree
planting
along NDR

ORNAMENTAL SHRUBS
To planting plan layout and density/centres as shown. Excavate 2 days (maximum) before planting. Pits to be 150 mm
wider than roots when fully spread and 300 mm deep. Pit bottom improvement Break up to a depth of 150 mm,
incorporating 25 g of approved slow release fertilizer per planting pit. Backfilling material: topsoil
CONTAINER GROWN PLANTS/ TREES Growing medium: With adequate nutrients for plants to thrive until permanently
planted. Plants: Centred in containers, firmed and well watered. Root growth: Substantially filling containers, but not
root bound, and in a condition conducive to successful transplanting. Hardiness: Grown in the open for at least two
months before being supplied. Containers: With holes adequate for drainage when placed on any substrate
commonly
AFTER PLANTING
Watering immediately after planting, thoroughly and without damaging or displacing plants or soil. Lightly firm soil
around plants and fork and/ or rake soil, without damaging roots, to a fine tilth with gentle cambers and no hollows.

Trees
Number
566Total :17 No.

Species
Carpinus betulus 'A Beeckman'
Corylus colurna
Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'

Girth
16-18cm
18-20cm
16-18cm

Height
4.0-4.5m
4.0-5.0m
4.0-4.5m

Specification
clear stem :RB
RB
RB

Shrubs
Number
Species
10 Berberis thunbergii 'Atropurpurea Nana'
28 Berberis thunbergii 'Red Chief'
13 Caryopteris clandon. 'Heavenly Blue'
39 Choisya 'White Dazzler'
5Cistus corbariensis
40 Cotoneaster conspicuus 'Decorus'
93 Cotoneaster franchetii
49 Euonymus jap. 'Green Rocket'
37 Griselinia littoralis
8Hebe cupressoides
18 Ilex crenata 'Fastigiata'
48 Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote'
9Lonicera nitida 'Baggesen's Gold'
14 Lonicera nitida 'May Green'
1Mahonia media 'Winter Sun'
54 Pachysandra terminalis 'Green Carpet'
10 Perovskia atriplicifolia 'Blue Spire'
13 Philadelphus microphyllus
5Phlomis fruticosa
44 Rosmarinus officinalis 'Severn Sea'
8Sarcococca confusa
25 Skimmia confusa 'Kew Green'
Total :571 No.

Pot Size
3L
5L
3L
10L
3L
5L
5L
5L
10L
5L
5L
3L
5L
5L
10L
3L
4L
5L
3L
3L
5L
5L

Height
15-20cm
40-50cm
25-30cm
70-80cm
25-30cm
35-40cm
50-60cm
35-40cm
80-90cm
30-35cm
60-70cm
25-30cm
30-40cm
30-40cm
90-100cm
15-20cm
20-25cm
30-40cm
30-35cm
15-20cm
30-40cm
30-40cm

Herbaceous
Number
23 46 14 11 13 15 11 Total :133 No.

SPECIMEN TREES: 1000 x 1000 x 700mm deep pits.
Sides and base of pits cross-ripped at 450mm/cs to open subgrade for rooting.
Pits backfilled with loam topsoil ameliorated with 100 litres planting compost, 50 litres
water retention granules and 900 gm slow-release fertiliser.
All planting from boards to prevent puddling.
TREE STAKING:
Low double timber stakes with natural Hessian tree ties - see detail below. NB trees along Crow Arch Lane to secured
by underground anchors.

Species
Calamagrostis 'Karl Foerster'
Carex 'Everest'
Deschampsia cespitosa 'Goldtau'
Festuca glauca 'Elijah Blue'
Lamium maculatum 'Beacon Silver'
Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln'
Stachys byzantina 'Silver Carpet'

Pot Size
3L
2L
2L
2L
2L
3L
2L

MULCHING SHRUB PLANTING BEDS Material: Medium grade bark mulch. - Purity: Free of pests, disease, fungus and
weeds. Preparation: Clear all weeds. Water soil thoroughly. Coverage: 50 mm depth. Finished level of mulch: 30 mm
below adjacent grassed or paved areas.

10 No. Berberis thunbergii 'Atropurpurea Nana'
1 No.Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'

1 No.Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'
9 No.Lonicera nitida 'Baggesen's Gold'
1 No. Mahonia media 'Winter Sun'
1 No.Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'
23 No. Pachysandra terminalis 'Green Carpet'
25 No. Skimmia confusa 'Kew Green'
1 No.Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'

Proposed trees in soft landscape

Proposed trees in hard landscape
see GBU detail GBU - 2105

10 No. Perovskia atriplicifolia 'Blue Spire'
46 No. Carex 'Everest'
11 No. Festuca glauca 'Elijah Blue'
15 No. Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln'
23 No. Calamagrostis 'Karl Foerster'
14 No. Deschampsia cespitosa 'Goldtau'
15 No. Rosmarinus officinalis 'Severn Sea'
13 No. Lamium maculatum 'Beacon Silver'
9 No. Choisya 'White Dazzler'

Proposed ornamental
shrub planting

Marshalls Rendezvous medium planters.
Planting to comprise Rosmarinus prostratus,
Ceanothus thyrsiflorus repens, Choisya 'White
Dazzler', Lavandula 'Vera', Potentilla davurica
Abbotswood. In combinations

Tarmac road & footpaths
Vehicular block paving
herringbone - Marshalls Mistral Priora
silver grey
Pedestrian block paving
stretcher bond Marshalls Tegula traditional
Breedon Golden Amber self
binding gravel surfacing laid over
limestone scalping base and
edged with aluminium /steel edging
Marshalls Ollerton M3
straight bench in stainless steel
Marshalls Rendezvous
medium planters

Garden Planting Detail
1:100@A1

3 brks

3 brks
5 brks
5 brks
Specimen
3 brks

3 brks
3 brks
3 brks

Density
5/m²
3/m²
3/m²
3/m²
3/m²
3/m²
3/m²
3/m²
0.375Ctr
4/m²
3/m²
5/m²
3/m²
3/m²
Counted
6/m²
4/m²
3/m²
3/m²
6/m²
3/m²
3/m²

Density
4/m²
8/m²
6/m²
6/m²
8/m²
4/m²
5/m²

REV No

Proposed specimen shrubs

Marshalls Rhino bollards
in stainless steel

FLOYD MATCHAM
CHARTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
URBAN DESIGN & MASTERPLANNING
PARSONAGE FARMHOUSE, TODBER, STURMINSTER NEWTON
DORSET, DT101JB, T 01747 838041, F 01747 838098
E info@fmldorset.co.uk

DRAWING NAME

Planting Plan

Root Rain Civic irrigation pipe
(or similar product)
installed around the
guyed rootball.
Ensure inlet is flush or
slightly above finished
surround level.

CLIENT

Low twin stakes with
natural Hessian webbing tree tie
nailed to the stakes

Bovis Homes (Southern Counties)
PROJECT

Root barrier - Greenleaf Re-root 600 (600mm depth)
or similar product installed around the
inside edge of tree pits adjoining service
margins and footpaths/roads
Backfill - Prepared mixture of
excavated topsoil, compost
and water retention granules

700mm

37 No. Griselinia littoralis
13 No. Philadelphus microphyllus

Specification
3 brks
3 brks
3 brks
5 brks
3 brks
3 brks

Rev A 01.04.19
Roof plan added
Rev B 18.07.19
Plan amendments to latest
architects site layout. Tree cell
underground dimensions
amended. Planters added to
street scene and type shown.
Ollerton bench shown.

Landscape Key

8 No. Sarcococca confusa
8 No.Hebe cupressoides

Density
Counted
Counted
Counted

Loosen and shape base as
shown to aid root penetration
and pit drainage.

MG Local Centre

1000mm

TREE PIT DETAIL - PLANTING BED IN
SOFT LANDSCAPE 16 - 18cm GIRTH
1:50 @A1

Marshalls Ollerton M3 stainless steel bench

JOB NO

DWG No

TD922

TD922_01B

SCALE

DATE

1:200@A1 03.19

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING REF
: 191024
PROPERTY ADDRESS : Town Hall
: Market Place, Wokingham, Berkshire
: RG40 1AS
SUBMITTED BY
: Wokingham Town Council
DATE SUBMITTED
: 05/06/2019
COMMENTS:
The WTC P&T Committee objects on the following points:
CP3 a) Mass This is a 4 floor building and higher than surrounding buildings
CP3 b) Functional, accessible, safe, secure This was seen as potentially
unsafe area at night as behind main build ing criminal activities may occur.
CP3 d) Fauna and flora Inadequate landscaping details
CP6 d) Appropriate vehicular parking Only 15 parking spaces for 19
flats.
CP6 e) Because of inadequate parking spaces, parking will block roads.
CP6 f) Enhance Ro ad safety Those stopping and not finding car parking will
cause problems stopping on NDR

107

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 31.
Application
Number
191651

Expiry Date

Parish

Ward

14th August 2019

Shinfield

Shinfield South;

Applicant
Site Address
Proposal

Type
PS Category
Officer
Reason for
determination by
committee

Wokingham Borough Council
Silver Meadow School
Full planning application for the proposed temporary use of the
upper floor of school (D1) building to provide office
accommodation (B1) for a 5 year period until the school is fully
occupied.
Full
1
Kayleigh Mansfield
Wokingham Borough Council is the applicant

FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on Wednesday, 14 August 2019
Assistant Director – Place

SUMMARY
The school was constructed in 2018 to provide capacity for the new housing
developments however the development has to date not generated enough pupils to
permit the school to open, sufficient capacity remains in the existing local schools.
Therefore the Council has taken the decision to bring the building into use instead of
mothballing. The proposal will provide temporary offices facilities for Wokingham staff
PLANNING STATUS
 South of M4 Strategic Development Location
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following:
A. Conditions and informatives:
Conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2. The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the land/building restored to its
former condition on or before 5 years from the date of the commencement, in
accordance with a scheme of work that shall have first been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority
Reason: To allow the local planning authority an opportunity to assess the effect of
the use hereby permitted on the [INSERT] of the surrounding properties.

109

Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3
Informative:
1. The development accords with policies contained within the adopted / development
plan and there are no materials considerations that warrant a different decision
being made

PLANNING HISTORY
Application Number Proposal
O/2010/1432
Outline application for a residential
development of up to 1,200
dwellings, a further 150 units of
specialist housing (including
sheltered housing) for elderly
persons, a local centre to include a
foodstore (2,500 sq.m), and other
retail and office uses, a community
building, proposed extension of
existing primary schools, erection of
a new primary school, public open
space, sports pavilion, suitable
alternative natural greenspace
(SANG) and access and
landscaping.
170035
Reserved Matters for the erection of
a two form entry school

Decision
Approved

Approved

SUMMARY INFORMATION
For Commercial
Site Area
Previous land use(s) and floorspace(s)
Proposed floorspace of each use
Change in floorspace (+/-)
Number of jobs created/lost
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces

6.42 Acres
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
69 (including 2 disabled)
0

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
WBC Education (School Place Planning)
WBC Highways

No objection
No objection

REPRESENTATIONS
Town/Parish Council: No comments received
Local Members: No comments received
Neighbours: No comments received

110

APPLICANTS POINTS
The decision to use the upper floor of the school as temporary office accommodation
was agreed by officers in consultation and agreement of the lead member of Children’s
Services. Since the upper floor accommodation for pupils is not required in the early
years while pupil numbers are building up, it is considered that the proposed office use
for a temporary period will not compromise the delivery of the primary school capacity.
In addition, the use of the site for offices will ensure that the site is not mothballed. The
temporary office will be used by education support service teams. These teams work
closely with schools, making frequent visits to school sites, so make a good fit with the
safeguarding requirements of the primary school operating on the ground floor.
PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

CC07

Parking

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

PLANNING ISSUES
Background of Development:
1. The Alder Grove Primary School has been constructed to serve the Shinfield and
wider community. The Keys Academy Trust have been appointed to run the school.
2. The school is expected to open in September 2020 with the intake of a Reception
class only. This Reception class progress through the school, with a new Reception
intake each year. The school will therefore take a number of years until fully utilised,
meaning that during the initial years following opening, large parts of the school building
will be unused.
3. The application for temporary use of the upper floor has been submitted to allow
council officers to use parts in the initial period as offices. The proposal has been
discussed and agreed with The Keys Academy Trust. The use will not impact on the
operation of the school at any time, ceasing before the proposed areas are required for
education purposes. There is therefore no loss of community facility at the point it is
required.
4. It should be noted that the proposal also delivers the benefit of utilising an under used
building, helping to avoid wasted costs of maintaining an empty building. The flexibility
afforded by the temporary office space also allows the council to relocate Officers
accommodated elsewhere in the borough to enable improvements to another
educational facility.

111

Description of Development:
5. The proposal seeks to utilise part of the existing school building for Wokingham
Borough Council staff – requesting a temporary permission for office accommodation
(B1).
6. It is proposed that 55 council staff will occupy the first floor of the school in its first
year (2019/2020), with up to 10 per cent more or less staff across the duration of
occupancy. This will continue until 2023/2024, when the space will revert back to school
accommodation on a permanent basis.
7. In accordance with the WBC Scheme of Delegation, the application is before
Planning Committee as the applicant is Wokingham Borough Council.
Principle of Development:
8. The National Planning Policy Framework has an underlying presumption in favour of
sustainable development which is carried through to the local Development Plan. The
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan (MDD) Policy CC01 states that planning
applications that accord with the policies in the Development Plan for Wokingham
Borough will be approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.
9. The school since construction has been unable to attract sufficient pupil numbers to
justify the opening of the school. The building therefore remains unused and
Wokingham Borough Council have being looking at various options for the school to be
brought into use until such time that the school use is required as opposed to
mothballing it. Following this review it was determined that Council were placed to
operate from the site as additional desk space for staff is required and can be easily
accommodated within the school building itself without impacting upon the structure or
main use of the building. The layout means that the ground floor can still be operated as
a school without causing any operational or safeguarding issues.
10. The first intake of pupils is expected in September 2020 with pupil numbers
expected to be increased on an incremental basis with an additional form of intake in
each year of circa 30 pupils.
Character of the Area:
11. Silver Meadow Primary School was constructed as part of a larger development in
Shinfield. The school construction is now complete but remains unused and empty.
12. The proposal does not seek to make alterations to the external elements of
approved building. Nor does it propose changes to landscaping or access and parking.
As such the impact on the character of the area is considered to be negligible.
Access and Movement:
Access
13. Access into the site will be derived via a priority junction, connecting with the internal
road network constructed as part of the Land West of Hollow Lane development. It is
noted that the site access arrangement benefits from detailed planning consent and has
been delivered.

112

Parking:
14. A total of 69 parking spaces are delivered on site, of which two are dedicated for
disabled users. Thirty cycle spaces are additionally available. There are good bus links
to the local area which will be increased in future years as part of the South of the M4
Bus Strategy. Since the school intake will grow incrementally, the parking available
exceeds the requirements for the operation of the school in the early years. The
additional staff numbers associated with the temporary office use will be limited by the
physical size of the building. It is considered that on this basis there can be a duel use
of the site and there is sufficient parking available, as such no objection is raised.
CONCLUSION
The application is compliant with the Council’s adopted policies, including Core Strategy
policies CP1, CP2, CP6 and CP9, and Managing Development Delivery policies CC01
and CC02. The proposal for a temporary use does not conflict with the Shinfield Parish
Neighbourhood Plan or South of the M4 SDL development guidance. No objections have
been received by the Council and the proposal does not alter the external elements of
the building or its surroundings. Temporary use of the first floor of Silver Meadow school
as office accommodation for a five year period is therefore recommended for approval.

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY
1. In determining this application the Committee is required to have regard to its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The duty is to have due regard to the need (in
discharging its functions) to:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not. This may include removing or minimising disadvantages suffered
by persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic; taking steps to meet the special needs of those with a protected
characteristic; encouraging participation in public life (or other areas where they are
underrepresented) of people with a protected characteristic(s).
c. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.
2. The key equalities protected characteristics include age, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The Council should give greater consideration
to decisions that have a disproportionately adverse impact on a protected characteristic
and this impact may be unintentional. In appropriate cases, this may involve an
understanding of the practical impact on individuals so affected by the decision. Regard
should be had to the effect of mitigation taken to reduce any adverse impact.
3. Silver Meadow School is unused school building completed in 2018. The application
site provides two disabled parking spaces as well as lift for disabled access between the
two floors. There is no indication or evidence (including from consultation of the
application) that groups sharing protected characteristics will be disproportionally affected
in an adverse way by the approval of this planning application. In terms of the key
equalities protected characteristics it is considered there would be no significant adverse
impacts as a result of the development.

113

This page is intentionally left blank

MapServe
473250

473000

472750

472500

GL
OU
CE

70

1

ST

6

ER

52.1m

1

51
58.5m

S AVE

NUE

14

3
59

78

HIRTE
15

St Mary's
Church

10

Honeycroft

12

Cottage

UE
EN
AV

Stockmans

82

THE MANOR
Church Farm

12

House

1

76

70

64

23
34

84
88

E

68

N
LA

WAY

4

8a
8

67

C

16

50

H
3

Play Area
90

11

20

6

2

11

18

79

15

SCOBELL CLOSE

15

44

SE
CL
O
IR
D
NG
B
SO

1

1

29

31

El Sub Sta

2

2
2

AY

53

m)
(u

39

39

5a

15

th
Pa

6

8
12

4

23
SK
YL
AR
K
W

8

11

7

21

10

38
Graveyard

51

5

41

14

46

3

LB

14

28

11

43

Posts

37
59

20

25

8

12

36

AD
RO
LM

WY

22

26

10
4

CHE

6

15

94

52

8b

C
R
U

1

42

8c

H

1

28

96

10

21

26

DEAR
DON

4a

33

32

52

31

25

61

56

10

60
Pond

10

57

27

23

16

71

12

18

6

26

17

AD

5

14

a
Are
y
Pla

20

47

30

1

6
3

21

9

40

39

3

10

2

12

3

AN
K

2

14

YB

3

99

1

5
12
14

MA

12

4

95
97

4

1

17

23

1

2

1

87
89

3

42

4

27
A3

1

8

5

AL
TE

RO

79

VE
RO
G

6

AD
ME

FAIR

Shinfield
Free Church

6

10

1

7

2

6
9

MADDOCK CLOSE

Y
DON WA
DEAR

8

11

Honeysuckle
Day Nursery

El Sub Sta
OSE

ER CL
HOLD

4

50

25

5
13

27

VE
5
2

1

Shelter
8

KE

E
LOS
RC

34

11

6
6

8

9

PAR

37

th
Pa

21

1

2

29

1

g
ncin
Bala nd
Po

26

th

63

41

SC
H

Drain

21

OO
LG
RE

34

EN

AD
RO

12

OT
T

PO

11 15

Pa

EET

PI

B334
9

15

20

5

43
11

B
TC

7

WESTALL STR

ALDER GROVE

GG

)

31

20

(um

2

ALLEN WAY

4

15

7

23

46.9m

7

BO

9
13

21

5

ON
LT

1 to

I
DR

115

Brethrens
Meeting
Room

2

12

55
51

Shinfield
View
47.5m

35

75

Drain

El Sub Sta

Hall

El Sub Sta

Rev

Date

Description

Car Park

Drain
19

War Memorial
Hall

1 to

Cobham
House

Tree
Bay ge
a
Cott

SCHOOLGREEN
elyn

65

67

The Bell
and Bottle
(PH)

66

Ros

Shinfield Health
Centre

Shinfield Infant
and Nursery School

473250

100

473000

472750

472500

0

Greenbank, University of Reading, London Road
Campus, London Road, Reading, RG1 5AQ
T.
01189 869 531
W.
www.thamesvalleysurveying.co.uk
Client:

Wokingham Borough Council

Project:

Silver Meadow Primary

Title:

Location Plan

Drawn by

JW

Date

18/6/19

200

metres

© Crown copyright 2019 Ordnance Survey 10005314
Cadastral data is subject to Crown copyright and is reproduced with permission of HM Land Registr
Scale:

1:2500 @ A3

Drawing Ref:

LP001

This page is intentionally left blank

NEW 1.8m FENCE TO
SEGREGATE OFFICE STAFF
FROM SCHOOL AREA

FIRST FLOOR STAFF ACCESS
DOOR WITH DIGI LOCK

R54

R06
R12

R01
R53

Lift

Y2 Cloaks

External Store

Cloaks

Stair 01
R11

R16

Year 1

Year 1

R05
R10

Year 2
Year 2
R55

Circulation 02

R02
R07

R13

Y2 WCs

Y1 WCs

Male WC
NEW ACCESS DOOR FROM SCHOOL TO FIRST
FLOOR OCCUPIED AREA. COMPLETE WITH DIGI

UP

R03

Female WC

LOCK TO ACCESS FIRST FLOOR AREA FROM
SCHOOL AREA AND THUMB RELEASE ON

R04

SECURE SIDE OF DOOR

R08

Cleaners Store

R14

R09

R15

Y1 Store
Y1 Store

Y2 StoreY2 Store

R17
R52

Circulation 01
Studio

R50

R51

Hall Store

PE Store

R29

R28

R27

R25

N. Store

Nursery Kitchen

R22

R21

Rec. Store

Rec. Store

R18

Group Room

Cleaners Store
Staff. Acces WC

R30

Nursery WCs

R26

R23

R20

Reception

Reception

Nursery
R33

R32

R31

Hygiene Room

Office

Lobby

R24

Recep. WCs

R19

Reception WCs

117

R56

R34

Circulation 03

Senco

R35
R49

Server Room

Main Hall

R36

Head

R37
R38
Interview
Staff Acc. W/C

Rev

Date

Description

R39

Lobby

R48

Kitchen
R41

Sick Bay
R40
R86

Office

R47

Manifold
Lobby

R42
R43

Electrical Switch Room
Plant
R46

Greenbank, University of Reading, London Road
Campus, London Road, Reading, RG1 5AQ
T.
01189 869 531
W.
www.thamesvalleysurveying.co.uk

R44
R45

WC

Store
Staff

Client:

Wokingham Borough Council

Project:

Silver Meadow Primary

Title:

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Drawn by

JW

Date

18/6/19

Scale:

1:200 @ A3

Drawing Ref:

A002

This page is intentionally left blank

1400
1400

1400
1400

1400
1400

1400
1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

R54

Lift

R58

Office
Area 1

R63

1400
1400

Office
Area 3

1400

1400

1400

Practical
Room

1400

Office
Area 2

1400

1400

R62

1400

1400

1400

1400

R66
R61

1400

R53

Stair 01

Office
Area 4

R57

1400

1400

1400

Y3 WCs

R82
R59

Cleaners & Caretakers

R64

R60

DN

R65

Y4 Store Y4 Store

Y3 StoreY3 Store

R81

Staff/Ass WC

R67

Circulation

R71
R74

R73

Y5 StoreY5 Store

R75

Office
Area 8

Riser

R70

Office
Area 6

R72

R85

R69

Y6 StoreY6 Store

Office
Area 7

R68

Office
Area 5

R78
R76

1400
1400

1400

1400

1400
1400
1400
1400

1400

1400
1400
1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

1400

Meeting
Room

1400

Meeting Room

R79

1400

1400

Library
R77

Senior Management
1400

1400

119
AREA HIGHLIGHETD IN RED TO BE
USED AS OFFICE ACCOMODATION
Rev

Date

Description

Greenbank, University of Reading, London Road
Campus, London Road, Reading, RG1 5AQ
T.
01189 869 531
W.
www.thamesvalleysurveying.co.uk
Client:

Wokingham Borough Council

Project:

Silver Meadow Primary

Title:

Proposed First Floor Plan

Drawn by

JW

Date

18/6/19

Scale:

1:200 @ A3

Drawing Ref:

A004

This page is intentionally left blank

